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_ABOUT v ).
CABBEEN“F+&

Cabbeen is a leading Chinese menswear designer brand.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in the design
of men’s apparel, footwear and accessories, brand management, and wholesaling,
consignment and retailing of menswear in the People’s Republic of China.
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HEADQUARTERS IN CHINA

Cabbeen Apparel Building
No. 379 Shougouling Road
Tianhe District

Guangzhou 510507

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN
HONG KONG

Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza I
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Cheung Sha Wan,

Kowloon

Hong Kong
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AND TRANSFER OFFICE
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HONG KONG BRANCH SHARE
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Wanchai

Hong Kong

AUDITOR
KPMG, Certified Public Accountants

LEGAL ADVISOR AS TO HONG KONG LAW
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www.ir.cabbeen.com
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—— FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
RS

2017 2016 Changes
—E—+tF —E—RF =
RMB’000 RMB’000 %
AR¥BTRT ARETT %
Financial highlights MHRREE
Revenue e 1,089,106 1,160,799 -6.2%
Gross profit EH 537,613 555,970 -3.3%
Profit from operation el 301,336 253,056 +19.1%
Profit for the year 5 A 203,213 181,689 +11.8%
Earnings per share A
(RMB cents) (AR®E5)
- Basic o 7 29.47 25.54 +15.4%
- Diluted -#E 29.45 25.46 +15.7%
Dividend per share (HK cents) &ERXA%E (G&1L)
— Interim dividend - PHIRR B 6.0 6.8 -11.8%
— Final dividend - REIRR B 8.5 5.0 +70.0%
— Total dividend - BB 14.5 11.8 +22.9%
Profitability ratios BRI =
Gross profit margin EF = 49.4% 47.9% +1.5 ppt
(HER2E
Operating margin SIS 27.7% 21.8% +5.9 ppt
&S 2
Net profit margin FER = 18.7% 15.7% +3 ppt
(HER2E
Return on total assets" BEMBEDRREO 10.3% 10.6% -0.3 ppt
&S 5 2h
Return on equity® RO HRE 19.3% 18.5% +0.8 ppt
(HER2E
Liquidity ratios REESEZR
Current ratio BN & 2.76 2.18
Average inventory FHEE
turnover days® [EEERE© 220 180
Average trade and bills FHE S REWRIE K
receivables turnover days®  JEUEEIREEKE @ 103 101
Average trade and bills T8 5N RIE R
payables turnover days® ANESIEIE PR Q) 283 294
Capital ratio BEb=x
Interest coverage ratio® BT S S8 18.2 43.3
Net debt to equity ratio®” FERELEERO 14.5% Net cash
FIRE
Gearing ratio® EEBEHREXO 27.3% 12.9%
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Notes:

Return on total assets equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total assets.

Return on equity equals net profit for the year divided by the
closing balance of total shareholders’ equity.

Average inventory turnover days is equal to the average of the
beginning and closing inventory balance divided by cost of sales
and multiplied by the number of days in the year.

Average trade and bills receivables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills receivables
balance divided by turnover (including value-added tax) and
multiplied by the number of days in the year.

Average trade and bills payables turnover days is equal to the
average of the beginning and closing trade and bills payables
balance divided by costs of sales and multiplied by the number
of days in the year.

Interest coverage ratio equals profit before interest and tax for
one period divided by interest expenses of the same period.

Net debt to equity ratio equals net debt divided by total equity
as of the end of the year. Net debt includes all borrowings net of

cash and cash equivalents.

Gearing ratio equals total debts divided by total equity.
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TO ALL SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (the “Company”,
stock code: 2030), | am pleased to present the results
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group” or “Cabbeen”) for the year ended 31
December 2017.

In respond to the environment of the industry and the
declining operating results of the Group in 2016, our
management team implemented a series of strategic
measures to take on the challenges in the industry with an
eye to the future development trend of the retail apparel
industry.

Firstly, as a leading fashion designer brand in China, we
have always been committed to the brand concept of
“Subverting popular” (BE7&)7E1T) in relation to our products.
In order to continuously develop young consumers group,
we put forward a slogan of “STAY20 STAY30” in 2017,
and adjusted the product lines to make our products more
focused on young consumers of the new generation.
This has achieved an encouraging result that over 72%
of our VIP are millennials and the sell-through rate of our
products also increased in the year 2017. Secondly, we
have streamlined our supply chain. Since the second half
of 2014, we have been transforming retail outlets operated
under wholesales models to consignment models, aiming
to enable more flexible product development and inventory
allocation. As at 31 December 2017, our stores operating
using consignment model accounted for more than 60%
of our total stores. In addition, we have adjusted our
advance ordering system and enhanced our cooperation
with suppliers. These measures help significantly shorten
our product development and production cycles.

BEWURR :
RABUREREROHARAR ((F2F] -
BARSE 2080 EE(EE)G(ES
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BATEMAE @ 1EATBIELHREERETAD
mhg - BM—ERFEERITINMEES -
BTHBERT—RELHEBRE BT
—Z—+FEH [STAY20 STAY30] &) 0 5F
VHABRERGERMNERENB I —KE
BHPHEE o £EmA ANARISREAK
R-RZE—+F X TE—ROVIPEPEL
ERT2MEREERWEMREN - HXE
HpEgEEE o § - —UF NFF LK - Bl
ZEBAMBRAGCENTEERARBEERER
EwA . BREEMABERFERAREINEE -
R-ZE—+F+-_A=+—08  R#EMEEE
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RAREEmMMAE R EEHERE -
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——— CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (CONTINUED)

RS (18)

In addition, we will strengthen our cooperation with
premium shopping malls, and reduce the proportion of
street shops. Our efforts in optimizing retail stores during
the last two years began to pay off and our overall same-
store sales improved from a decline of 8.7% in 2016
to a slight increase of 1.5% in 2017, with particularly
satisfactory performance in the sales growth of stores
under the brand of Cabbeen Urban. Furthermore, we saw
strong sales growth from our online stores throughout
2017. We believe that the brand of Cabbeen Urban and
our online business will be the drivers for the Group’s
future growth.

The abovementioned measures help streamline our
organization structure, reduce operating costs and
shorten the development and production cycles of our
products. Such reforms have achieved initial results in
2017, including a decline in the rate of management
cost, a resumption of growth in same-store sales and an
improvement in net profit margin. Although there was still
a single-digit decline in the overall sales in 2017, the sales
revenue in the second half of 2017 began to grow again
on a year-on-year basis. The net profit even turned around
from a year-on-year decline in the first half of 2017 to a
double-digit year-on-year increase for the whole year.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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The year 2017 is the 20th anniversary of the founding
of Cabbeen. Looking forward, we will continue to be
committed to brand concepts of Chinese fashion designer
and keep up with our multi-brand strategies and to provide
a wide varieties of menswear products to our customers
that represent good value for money. We will also continue
to enhance the efficiency of our supply chain, and seek for
balanced development of both online and offline business.
We are confident that the Group is now better equipped to
tap long-term growth opportunities in the apparel market
in China.

Finally, on behalf of the Board, | would like to express my
sincerest gratitude to all staff members for their dedication
and contribution, and to our shareholders and business
partners for their support. We will continue to endeavor our
best efforts to pursue growth of our business and create
value for our shareholders.

Ziming Yang

9 February 2018
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

As customers can now easily reach out to different brands
and products online, more and more customers are
looking for products that represent good value for money
or for shopping experiences that are fun and exciting. The
changing lifestyles and consumption patterns, such as
increasingly strong preference for lifestyle and experiences,
also create opportunities for the development of the
fashion apparel industry. We still believe the growing
middle class in mainland China will drive growth in the
fashion apparel industry over the long term. We therefore
are still dedicated to driving developments in the industry,
understanding our customers better and offering fashion
products to them which represent good value for money.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Overview

Cabbeen is a Chinese designer brand. We offer apparel,
shoes and accessories products for men and women
under Cabbeen Lifestyle, Cabbeen Urban, Cabbeen Chic
and 2AM brands targeting customers aged between
20 and 35. Cabbeen Lifestyle and Cabbeen Urban
contributed approximately 80.6% (2016: 80.4%) and
15.7% (2016: 15.7%) of our revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017.

1TEEEE

R TR L8 S mEBI TR MER
Em - BRBEZHEEEEEREBLSHNER
St B BNEYERR - MBEEETEHE(EH
R A SR BRI - I E AR
RIMESHBE R - AR RIRIHTITRABE
HRMEE - HFUIEE - REMS - PEAM
AL R RO P B B ARG HE BB 1) AR B 7T SR 08
£ o Bt - JAUDB B ERETTENES
R B TREMANBEE M RBRERHEA
VB L ROBF M EE T o

EqE)

BE

RERFPEAZTAIMAE - RES T RAZLR
# - EBEMEH  BEEFPEME20KESS
5o BRIETERENKRE - REEMT - FEH
R ERMENERE BE—T—+tF+=
A=+—HLFE  FEKRBEEFRESHTH A
AR ER480.6% (ZF—7 4F : 80.4%) &
15.7% (ZE—"F 1 15.7%) °
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——— MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREFIREAIR (18)

We are an omni-channel retailer and wholesaler, with
sales to customers both in stores and online, through
company-operated and franchise stores, websites, and
other wholesales arrangement with third-parties. As of 31
December 2017, we have 25 (2016: 26) distributors and
105 (2016: 119) sub-distributors operating 845 (2016: 899)
retail stores in mainland China. The five largest distributors
contributed approximately 42.5% (2016: 39.8%) of our
revenue for the year ended 31 December 2017 and our
major distributors are from Guangdong, Sichuan, Hunan,
Hubei and Fujian Provinces. We also operate online
stores on popular e-commerce platforms including Tmall,
JD.com, Wechat, VIP.com and our official website www.
cabbeen.com. Most of the products sold under our
brand names are designed by us and manufactured by
independent sources. The five largest suppliers contributed
33.4% (2016: 35.5%) of our total purchases during the
year 2017.

Retail channel performance

Performance of both online and physical stores operated
by us, our distributors and sub-distributors are summarized
below.

° Total retail revenue generated from physical retail
stores declined by 6.4% (2016: 6.5%) for the year
ended 31 December 2017 as compared to the
same period in 2016. Retail revenue was dragged
down by the decrease in sales volume with net
shop closures and reduction of production volume
for 2017 spring and summer collections.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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Same-store sales for physical retail stores increased
by 1.5% (2016: declined by 8.7%).

Average retail discount of our products at physical
stores for the year ended 31 December 2017
was approximately 21.3% (2016: 26.1%), 4.8
percentage point lower than that for the year ended
31 December 2016.

Retail revenue from online channels amounted to
RMB398.1 million, representing an comparable
increase of 56.2% from that for the year 2016.

Up to 31 January 2018, sell-through rate of the
Group’s 2017 collections was over 72%.
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——— MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREFIREAIR (18)

Stores network

Xlnjlang

{

Ningxia

g

We have built a nationwide distribution network with
stores, more concentrated in the Southern part of
mainland China and second and third tiers cities. As of
31 December 2017, we had 845 retail outlets (2016:
899) across over 300 cities in mainland China. Over two-
third of our retail outlets are situated in second and third
tier cities in the PRC because we believe there is greater
potential for growth in those areas. The proportion of retail
outlets in shopping malls was increasing in recent years
because we saw a switch of consumer traffic to shopping
malls. Among all of our retail outlets, 303 (2016: 484) were
operated under wholesale model, 541 (2016: 389) were
under consignment model and 1 (2016: 26) was a self-
managed retail store.
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Retail outlets by geographical region RitEE S HNEEEH

As of 31 December 2017 As of 31 December 2016
R-E-tE+-A=t1-H “R=1-A
Operation model Wholesales  Consignment Self- WWholesales
basis basis managed basis managed

e 152 HE : g&
Geographical region 1B
Eastem China 2 - 52 - 52 - 7 i 7
Northem China E3ld - 82 - 82 91 - - 91
Northwester China iy - 64 - 64 - 73 - 73
Southwestern China i 5 106 - 159 119 40 - 159
Southem China E 2 212 1 24 L 193 % %2
Northeastem China 31 - % - % 7 12 - 19
Centra China #n 29 - - 29 3 - - 3
Total it 303 541 1 845 484 389 2% 899

Retail outlets by brands #% G #EE| 5 B & /5

B Cabbeen Lifestyle £E KR~ 14717.4% 73.6%622  15317.0% 75.1% 675
B Cabbeen Urban RE#BH 2 0.2%
. 76 9.0% 69 7.7%
H 2AM Ve
B Multi-brands % g

As of 31 December 2017 As of 31 December 2016

R_F—+tF+=-A=+—H RZE—RF+=A=+—H

Retail outlets by channel #ZRE &5 W EEEH

208 24.6% 31.7%268  26529.5% 25.8% 232

B Shopping mall &%
¥ Department store B &A A
B Street shops frém

369 43.7% 402 44.7%

As of 31 December 2017 As of 31 December 2016
R_Z2—+F+-A=+—H R_2—R"F+=-A=+—H

Retail outlets by city-tiers 2t E&| 5N EE/EHH

B Tier 1 —u 124 14.7% 6.7% 57 149 16.6% 6.7% 60
= Tier 2 —R

B Tier 3 E?‘v‘? 426 50.4% 28.2% 238 450 50.0% 26.7% 240
B Tier 4 U

As of 31 December 2017 As of 31 December 2016
R=_Z—t+tF+=-A=+—H R=Z—R"F+=A=+—H
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——— MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREFIREAIR (18)

Retail outlets by operation models Z & & EX 85 WS E/EH

B \Wholesale # 2% 54: 62-2)3;
' Consignment 5
B Self-managed H%&

Transformation to consignment model

We have been transforming retail stores operated under
the wholesales model to the consignment model since the
second half of 2014. We had 541 stores operating using
the consignment model (2016: 389) as at 31 December
2017, representing 64.0% (2016: 43.3%) of our total
stores. The purpose of the change is to better control our
inventory allocation. We recognized that the repurchase
of inventories from distributors for transformation to
consignment model affected our financial performance
and position in the short run. However, we believe that the
transformation will improve the inventory turnover and sell-
through rate at our distribution channels which will in turn
improve the Group’s revenue and profits in a longer term.

Brand building

Virtually all aspects of our brand development,
from product design and distribution to marketing,
merchandising and shopping environments, are controlled
by us. We continue to invest in our business and enhance
the customer experience through investments in our
supply chain and omni-channel capabilities, investments in
marketing, enhancement of our online shopping sites and
remodeling of existing stores.

We also keep direct communications with our end
customers through WeChat platform, through which we
can monitor their shopping patterns, and provide them
with information about our promotional events and new
product launch information. The number of VIP members
were increasing steadily and approximately 40% of retail
revenue were from our VIP customers.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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Design and product development

Consumer preferences have been changing quickly
and consumers are becoming more sophisticated and
increasingly focused on design, value and quality. We are
therefore dedicated to investing in our in-house design and
research and development capabilities. As of 31 December
2017, our in-house design and research and development
team consisted of a total of 75 members (2016: 133),
including 29 (2016: 28) designers from mainland China,
other Asia countries, Hong Kong and Europe. We also
work with design institutes and contract designers from
around the world.

We have a wide variety of product items for our customers
who look for products with class and characteristics.
We offered over 3,700 new stock-keeping-units (SKUs)
for 2017 product collections (over 4,500 SKUs for 2016
product collections).

ERP system

We have an ERP system which integrates our inventories
management and financial reporting functions, and
covers all of our physical retail stores. Our ERP system
brings front-end distributors, in-house designers and
manufacturing suppliers together. We believe the
involvement of manufacturing and distributors from the
early stage helps increase efficiency and mitigate fashion
risks. In addition, we are able to track and monitor
purchases, sales and inventories of each distributor and
sub-distributor on a real-time basis and therefore monitor
their inventory level.

Logistics centre

We have been investing in our distribution infrastructures
and have upgraded the logistic centre with semi-
automated product conveying systems. Such upgraded
system enable us to expedite delivery and achieve higher
efficiency and greater accuracy, which are particularly
crucial for our expanding on-line retail business. The first
phrase logistic centre has been in use since June 2017.
We expect the second phase of our logistic centre in Fujian
will be completed and put into use by the end of 2018.
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——— MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREFIREAIR (18)

PROSPECTS

We are committed to own our position as a Chinese
designer brand as well as to focus on the dynamic and
changing customer preferences. Looking forward, we will
keep up with our multi-brand strategies and to provide a
wide varieties of menswear products to our customers
that represent value for money. We will expand our retail
network progressively and focus more on shopping malls
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and department stores. Meanwhile, we will put more
resources to develop our online sales platforms. We will
also continue to give high priority to cost control and will
take further measures to optimize our supply chain which
we believe can help shorten the production cycle of our
products and enable swift responses to changes in the
market.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of RMB1,089.1 million for
the year ended 31 December 2017, a decrease of 6.2%
compared with RMB1,160.8 million for the year ended
31 December 2016. The Group recorded operating profit
of RMB301.3 million, an increase of 19.1% compared

with that for the year ended 31 December 2016. Net
profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 amounted to
RMB203.2 million, an increase of 11.8% compared with
that for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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Revenue s
2017 2016
—EB—+tHF —F—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETIT
Offline business B TER
Wholesale i 328,560 568,504
Consignment A =! 508,722 455,640
Self-operated stores El=t 42,263 98,995
Less: products repurchased & : A IEER
for consignment business FEEE M (73,608) (59,004)
R N 805937 | 1064135
Online business R EEK
Wholesale revenue e
(sales return) ($HERM) 6,820 (32,867)
Retail revenue from online TP ERER EIEE
shops operated by us EENTERS 276,349 116,106
Service fee income AR 7S & UL A - 13,425
R R 283,169 | 96,664
Total revenue el gy 1,089,106 1,160,799
—E—LFEFR FERMERLF

19



20

——— MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREFIREAIR (18)

Decrease in revenue from our offline business for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was mainly due to drop in
sales volume, which was attributable to the reduction in
physical stores and production volume of 2017 spring/
summer products. Increase in e-commerce revenue was
attributable to increase in sales volume in online shops.

We repurchased some products from our distributors with
a total consideration of RMB73.6 million (2016: RMB59.0
million) during the year ended 31 December 2017 for the
purpose of starting consignment business in the northeast
region of mainland China and Sichuan Province. The
repurchase of products from distributors were recorded as
a reduction in revenue.

Cost of sales

For the year ended 31 December 2017, cost of sales
amounted to RMB551.5 million (2016: RMB604.8 million).
The decrease in cost of sales was mainly due to decrease
in sales volume.

Gross profit

Gross profit for the year ended 31 December 2017
decreased by RMB18.4 million or 3.3% from that in
2016. Gross profit margin was 49.4% (2016: 47.9%). The
increase in gross profit margin was because there was a
decrease in sales rebate to distributors.

Other income

Other income primarily consists of interest income from
bank deposits and government grants. The decrease in
other income from RMB51.7 million for the year ended
31 December 2016 to RMB42.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was mainly due to a reduction
in government grant income and bank deposit interest
income.
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Selling and distribution expenses

Selling and distribution expenses consist of mainly
operating cost for self-managed retail stores and
e-commerce sales channels, advertising and promotion,
and logistics and delivery expenses. The Group’s selling
and distribution costs amounted to RMB153.4 million
(2016: RMB160.4 million) for the year ended 31 December
2017, accounting for 14.1% (2016: 13.8%) of the Group’s
total revenue. The decrease in total selling and distribution
expenses was mainly attributable to the closure of
non-performing self-managed stores. On the other hand,
the Group incurred more advertising and promotion
expenses in the year 2017 for the promotion activities of
the brand’s 20th anniversary and online sales platforms.

Administrative and other operating
expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses mainly
comprise staff costs, design, research and development
expenses, provision for trade receivables, provision for
inventories, office rental, depreciation and amortization
charges and other miscellaneous expenses.

Administrative and other operating expenses for the year
ended 31 December 2017 amounted to RMB125.7 million
representing a decrease of RMB68.5 million or 35.3% from
that of the year 2016. The decrease in administrative and
other operating expenses for the year ended 31 December
2017 was mainly attributable to reduction in salary,
design consultancy fee and allowance for doubtful debts,
which was partially set off by an increase in provision of
inventories.

Profit from operations

The Group recorded a profit from operations of RMB301.3
million (2016: RMB253.1 million) for the year ended 31
December 2017, representing an increase of approximately
19.1% from that for the year 2016. Operating margin
in percentage terms improved from 21.8% for the year
ended 31 December 2016 to 27.7% for the year ended 31
December 2017 as a result of tight cost control measures,
closure of non-preforming self-managed stores and better
cost efficiency of e-commerce business.
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——— MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREFIREAIR (18)

Finance costs

For the year ended 31 December 2017, the Group’s
finance costs amounted to RMB16.6 million (2016:
RMB5.8 million) or 1.5% (2016: 0.5%) of the Group’s
revenue. Finance costs represent primarily interest
expenses for bank loans denominated in Hong Kong dollar
of a subsidiary operated in Hong Kong. The increase in
interest expenses was because of an increase in bank loan
and interest rates.

Income tax

For the year ended 31 December 2017, income tax
expenses of the Group amounted to RMB81.6 million
(2016: RMB65.5 million) and the effective tax rate was
28.6% (2016: 26.5%). The increase in effective income
tax rate was attributable to reduction in profits in group
companies in lower tax regimes.

Profit for the year

Profit for the year ended 31 December 2017 increased
by 11.8% to RMB203.2 million from RMB181.7 million
for the year 2016. Net profit margin for the year ended 31
December 2017 was 18.7% (2016: 15.7%). Basic and
diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2017 increased to RMB0.2947 (2016: RMBO0.2554) and
RMB0.2945 (2016: RMB0.2546), respectively.

Other key financial ratios

Average inventory turnover days of the Group were 220
days for the year ended 31 December 2017, as compared
to 180 days in the same period in 2016. The inventory
balance as at 31 December 2017 was RMB337.1 million,
as compared to RMB328.8 million as of 31 December
2016. The increase in inventory balance and turnover
days for the year ended 31 December 2017 was mainly
attributable to the increase in number retail outlets
operated using the consignment model.

Average turnover days of trade and bills receivables
increased to 103 days for the year ended 31 December
2017 as compared to 101 days for the same period in
2016.
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Average trade and bills payable turnover days were 294
days and 283 days for the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2017, respectively. This is consistent with the
credit period granted by the Group’s suppliers and the
Group’s practice of using 6-month bank bills to settle trade
payables.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had net current
assets of RMB1,101.9 million (2016: RMB839.8 million),
which included cash and cash equivalents of RMB134.6
million (2016: RMB222.9 million). Among cash and cash
equivalents as of 31 December 2017, RMB8.8 million
(2016: RMB28.4 million) was denominated in Hong Kong
dollar and the rest are mainly denominated in Renminbi.

The decrease in cash and cash equivalents for the year
ended 31 December 2017 was a combined effect of cash
flow generated from operations of RMB289.5 million,
a decrease in pledged bank deposits of RMB134.1
million, an increase in bank deposits with original maturity
over three months of RMB177.5 million, an increase in
three year term loan of RMB303.4 million, cash paid for
repurchase of shares amounted to RMB92.3 million and
the payment of dividends amounted to RMB66.4 million.

The Group recorded net operating cash inflow of
RMB289.5 million (2016: net operating cash outflow
of RMB13.2 million) for the year ended 31 December
2017. The cash inflow from operating activities in 2017
was mainly attributable to settlement of trade and bills
receivables and increase in operating profit.

Net cash used in investing activities for the year ended 31
December 2017 was RMB400.6 million (2016: net cash
generated from investing activities of RMB138.3 million),
which represented mainly investments in logistic centre, an
increase in bank deposits with original maturity over three
months and an increase in other financial assets.
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——— MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREFIREAIR (18)

Net cash from financing activities was RMB29.7 million
(2016: cash used in financial activities RMB198.5 million)
for the year ended 31 December 2017. This mainly
consisted of payments of dividends of RMB66.4 million,
repayment of bank loans of RMB147.1 million and new
bank loans of RMB324.7 million and repurchase of shares
of RMB92.3 million.

Long term and short-term bank loans as of 31 December
2016 and 31 December 2017 were at floating interest
rate. The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings were
denominated in the following currencies:

HE-_Z—tF+_A=+t—HILFERE
EEFERSFEAARK207TEEL(Z
T—RF:RmELHAReEARK10858
B WFrERRBRNKREARKGCAES
T EEBITERARE 1471 BT LG
RITERARE324.7BETANBERRMD A
REOQI3FET °
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At 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2017 2016
—Z—+tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T

Short term bank loans REIRTTER
Hong Kong Dollar BT 16,636 67,095
Renminbi AR - 60,000
16,636 127,095

Long term bank loan RAEJIRITER
Hong Kong Dollar BT 271,461 -

On 10 February 2017, the Group has fully drawn down
a three-year term loan facility of HK$350,000,000
(equivalent to RMB303,415,000). Pursuant to the facility,
the controlling shareholder shall maintain his equity
interest and voting rights in the Company at a certain
level, and at the same time it is subject to the fulfilment
of covenants relating to certain of the Group’s financial
ratios. A breach of these undertakings would result in the
drawn down facilities and interest becoming payable on
demand. The Group regularly monitors its compliance with
these covenants. As at 31 December 2017, none of the
covenants relating to the drawn down facilities had been
breached. The term loan are unsecured and carried at
amortised cost of RMB288.1 million as at 31 December
2017.
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As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s available and
unutilized banking facilities amounted to RMB439.5 million.

As at 31 December 2017, the Group held cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, other financial assets
and time deposits with initial terms of over three months
totaling RMB945.6 million (2016: RMB758.8 million), and
was in a net debt position of RMB153.5 million (2016: net
cash of RMB95.8 million). Net cash position equals cash
and cash equivalents less bank borrowings.

The Group adopts a set of centralized financing and
treasury policies in order to ensure the Group’s funds are
utilized efficiently. The Group’s liquidity position remains
strong and the Group possesses sufficient cash and
available banking facilities to meet its commitments and
working capital requirements. This strong cash position
enables the Group to explore investment and business
development opportunities when expanding its market
share in mainland China.

The Group’s primary objectives for managing its capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to provide returns
to shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by
pricing products commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.
The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder’s returns that might be possible with higher
level of borrowings and the advantages and security based
on a sound capital position, and makes adjustments
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS

The Group mainly operates in the mainland China with
most of the transactions originally denominated and settled
in Renminbi, of which foreign exchange risk is considered
insignificant. On the other hand, majority of our bank
loans are denominated in Hong Kong dollars and held in
group companies outside mainland China. In addition, the
Group pays dividends in Hong Kong dollars. Therefore, the
foreign exchange risks are primarily with respect to Hong
Kong Dollars.
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——— MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (CONTINUED)

EREFIREAIR (18)

The Group manages its foreign exchange risk by
performing regular reviews of the Group’s net foreign
exchange exposures and to mitigate the impact on
exchange rate fluctuations by entering into currency hedge
arrangement if necessary. During the year ended 31
December 2016 and 2017, no forward foreign exchange
or hedging contracts had been entered into by the Group.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2017, deposits with certain banks of
approximately RMB105.0 million in total (2016: RMB239.1
million) were pledged as securities for bank loans and
bills payable facilities. The pledged bank deposits will be
released upon the settlement of relevant bank loans and
bills payable.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS AND
CONTINGENCIES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had total capital
commitments of RMB45.9 million (2016: RMB29.2 million),
primarily related to the construction of logistic centre and
ERP system upgrades. As at 31 December 2016 and
2017, the Group had no material contingent liabilities.

HUMAN RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group had 402 employees
(2016: 442 employees). Total staff costs, including
directors emoluments, for the period amounted to
approximately RMB79.8 million (2016: RMB104.9 million).
Annual increment and year-end performance bonus
mechanism were incorporated in the Group’s remuneration
policy to retain, reward and motivate individuals for their
contributions to the Group. Share options are granted
to eligible employees to recognise their contribution and
provide incentives to achieve better performance in coming
years.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed
from Friday, 23 March 2018 to Wednesday, 28 March
2018 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining
the shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote at the
forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company (the
“2018 AGM”). In order to qualify for attending and voting at
the 2018 AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant
share certificate must be lodged with the Company’s share
registrar and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on Thursday, 22 March
2018.

In addition, subject to the approval of the proposed
final dividend by the shareholders at the 2018 AGM on
Wednesday, 28 March 2018, the register of members
will be closed on Friday, 6 April 2018 for the purpose of
determining shareholders who qualify for the proposed final
dividend. In order to qualify for the proposed final dividend,
all transfers accompanied by the relevant share certificate
must be lodged with the Company’s share registrar
and transfer office, Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 p.m. on Wednesday, 4 April 2018.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board recommended the payment of a final dividend
of HK8.5 cents (2016: HK5 cents) per ordinary share for
the financial year. Including the interim dividend paid for
the year ended 31 December 2017, total dividend payout
for the year is approximately HK$98.3 million (equivalent
to approximately RMB82.3 million) (2016: HK$84.0 million,
equivalent to approximately RMB73.0 million) or a dividend
payout ratio of 40% (2016: 40%). Subject to shareholders’
approval at the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company, the final dividend will be paid in cash on
or around 17 April 2018 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 4
April 2018.
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EREFIREAIR (18)

USE OF PROCEEDS

The shares of the Company were listed on the main board
of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 28 October 2013 with net proceeds from
the global offering of approximately HK$390.7 million
(after deducting underwriting commissions and related
expenses). As of 31 December 2017 and the date of this
announcement, proceeds not utilized of approximately
HK$70.4 million were deposited into interest bearing bank
accounts with licensed commercial banks. The Directors
intend to apply the unused proceeds in the manner as
set out in the announcement of the Company dated 3
February 2016.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

IBIREBHRS

The Board is committed to upholding a high standard of
corporate governance and business ethics in the firm belief
that they are essential for enhancing investors’ confidence
and maximizing shareholders’ returns. The Board reviews
its corporate governance practices from time to time in
order to meet the rising expectations of stakeholders,
and to comply with increasingly stringent regulatory
requirements as well as fulfill its commitment to excellence
in corporate governance.

After reviewing the Company’s corporate governance
practices and the relevant regulations of the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
(the “CG code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange
(the “Listing Rules”), the Board is satisfied that the
Company complied with the CG code provisions for the
entire year ended 31 December 2017.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is committed to providing effective and
responsible leadership for the Company. The Directors,
individually and collectively, must act in good faith and in
the best interests of the Company and its shareholders.
The Board has established four Board committees, being
the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Corporate Governance
Committee (each a “Board Committee” and collectively
the “Board Committees”), to oversee different areas of
the Company’s affairs.

The Board currently comprises four executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng,
Mr. Ronggin Ke and Mr. Qiang Wei and three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui,
Mr. Honghui Chen and Mr. Ming Shu Leung.
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Their biographical details and (where applicable) their family
relationships are set out in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 47
to 53 in this annual report. A list of the Directors identifying
their roles and functions are available on the websites of
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ziming Yang, the Chairman and an executive Director
of the Company, is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ronggin Ke,
who is an executive Director of the Company. Save as
disclosed herein, there are no other financial, business,
family or other material/relevant relationships among
members of the Board.

The Board sets the Group’s overall objectives and
strategies, monitors and evaluates its operating and
financial performance and reviews the corporate
governance standard of the Group. It also decides
on matters such as annual and interim results, major
transactions, director appointments or re-appointments,
investment policy, dividend and accounting policies. The
Board has delegated the authority and responsibility for
implementing its business strategies and managing the
daily operations of the Group’s businesses to the executive
Directors and members of senior management. The
functions and power that are so delegated are reviewed
periodically to ensure that they remain appropriate.

The Board is also responsible for developing, reviewing
and monitoring the policies and practices on corporate
governance and legal and regulatory compliance of the
Group, and the training and continuous professional
development of directors and senior management. The
Board also reviews the disclosures in the Corporate
Governance Report to ensure compliance.

All Board members have separate and independent
access to the Group’s senior management to fulfill their
duties. Independent professional advice can be sought to
assist the relevant Directors to discharge their duties at the
Group’s expense upon their request.
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All Directors are required to declare to the Board upon
their first appointment, the directorships or other positions
they are concurrently holding at other companies or
organizations. These interests are updated on an annual
basis as and when necessary.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board is supported by a number of committees,
including the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Corporate Governance
Committee. Each Board Committee has its defined and
written terms of reference approved by the Board covering
its duties, powers and functions. Their terms of reference
are available on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange.

All Board Committees are provided with sufficient
resources to discharge their duties, including access
to management or professional advice if considered
necessary.

(i) Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 8
October 2013. The Audit Committee comprises
three Independent non-executive Directors, namely
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, Mr. Honghui Chen, and
Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui, who
has appropriate professional qualifications and
experience in accounting matters, was appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee
are to assist the Board in providing an independent
view of the effectiveness of the financial reporting
process, internal control and risk management
systems, and relationship with external auditors
of the Group, overseeing the audit process and
performing other duties and such responsibilities
as assigned by the Board. The Audit Committee
meets with the Company’s external and internal
auditors, and reviews their audit plans, the internal
audit programs, the results of their examinations
as well as their evaluations of the system of risk
management and internal control.
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The Audit Committee held 2 meetings during
the year ended 31 December 2017. Major work
completed by the Audit Committee during the year
includes:

reviewed the Group’s annual report, interim
financial information and annual financial
statements;

reviewed significant accounting and audit
issues;

reviewed the external auditor’s qualifications,
independence and performance;

reviewed the external auditor’s management
letter and the management’s response;

reviewed annual internal audit plans;

assisted the Board to evaluate on the
effectiveness of financial reporting procedures
and internal control system; and

advised on material event or drawing the
attention of the management on related risks;

reviewed the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Group’s systems of internal control and
risk management;

reviewed connected transactions entered into
by the Group or subsisting during the year.
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(ii)

Remuneration Committee (i) FMZES

The Remuneration Committee was established on FMEZEEeR T —=FTANBK
8 October 2013. The Remuneration Committee Vo HMEE e BREMBEIIENITE
comprises two independent non-executive Directors ERADBELEERRHRIEEUR—RH
and one Executive Director, namely Mr. Yung Kwok TEERVBEE - BRABSLE BTN
Tsui, Mr. Ming Shu Leung and Mr. Siu Keung Ng. Mr. ZEGXFE -FTHNZESHNEERER
Yung Kwok Tsui is the chairman of the Remuneration B EBREERSAEEENERTM
Committee. The principal responsibilities of the BEREERBEEARAITEERSREERE
Remuneration Committee are to review and make I E RN BN S - K st H5E it S H K
recommendations to the Board on the overall R IERMEFEAEET - WHLA
remuneration structure and policy for all Directors FEERESeRHEER BMEEES
and senior management as well as the specific HEBERGHMNEMFR o A7)
remuneration packages for the executive Directors HEHMECED B E R RIBEEAE &IT
and senior management and on the establishment ZER  mRFMEFELATRARSE
of a formal and transparent process for developing T o RRRIAEMISZKE FEEFMT
such remuneration policy. No Director takes part E2 - KRB - BE - TFHERAEE
in any discussion on his own remuneration. The FREAR ETRESFEXNELZNH
Company’s objective for its remuneration policy is M e KE o

to maintain fair and competitive packages based
on business requirements and industry practice. In
order to determine the level of remuneration and
fees paid to members of the Board, market rates
and factors such as each director’s workload,
performance, responsibility, job complexity and the
Group’s performance are taken into account.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting FMEZEeRNEBE_T—tFTA
during the year ended 31 December 2017 and has =T —RIEFERRT-RE% B
reviewed the remuneration policy and structure EHESRANRSREREMNH K
relating to the Directors and senior management HMRREA R A R 2 AR & -
of the Company and the Company’s share option
scheme.
The remuneration of the members of the senior BE_ZT—+tF+_A=1+T—HIFE
management of the Group by band for the year RHEESSAEB SR EEENK S/
ended 31 December 2017 is set out below: SHEHINAT -
Remuneration bands Number of persons
B < & E
Nil to HK$1,000,000 =2 1,000,000/ 7T 9
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 &7t 2 1,500,000 7T 1
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T ZE 2,000,000 78 7T 2

ZE—LFFR FERMGERR A
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(iii)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

———— CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (CONTINUED)

Further particulars regarding Directors’ remuneration
and the five highest paid employees as required to
be disclosed pursuant to Appendix 16 to the Listing
Rules are set out in notes 6 and 7 to the financial
statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established
on 8 October 2013. It comprises one executive
Director and two independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Honghui
Chen and Mr. Ming Shu Leung. Mr. Ziming Yang
is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee.
The principal responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee are to review the composition of the
Board, including its structure, size and diversity
at least annually to ensure that it has a balance of
expertise, skills and experience appropriate to the
requirements of the business of the Group. It is also
responsible for considering and recommending to
the Board suitably qualified persons to become
a member of the Board, monitor the succession
planning of Directors and assess the independence
of independent non-executive Directors. The
Nomination Committee will also give consideration
to the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below)
when identifying suitably qualified candidates to
become members of the Board, and the Board will
review the Board Diversity Policy (as defined below),
S0 as to develop and review measurable objectives
for the implementing the Board Diversity Policy
(as defined below) and to monitor the progress on
achieving these objectives.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting during

the year ended 31 December 2017 and reviewed
the size, diversity and composition of the Board.

Annual Report 2017
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(iv) Corporate Governance Committee

The Corporate Governance Committee was
established on 8 October 2013. It comprises two
executive Directors and two independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Siu Keung Ng, Mr.
Qiang Wei, Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui and Mr. Ming Shu
Leung. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is the Chairman of the
Corporate Governance Committee. The principal
responsibilities of the Corporate Governance
Committee are to review and monitor the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, the
training and continuous professional development of
the Company’s Directors and senior management,
the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements,
and to review the Company’s compliance with the
CG Code set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing
Rules.

The Corporate Governance Committee held one
meeting during the year ended 31 December 2017
and has reviewed the Group’s corporate governance
policies and practices and sufficiency of training to
the Company’s Directors and senior management.

BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings are held regularly and at least four times a
year at approximately quarterly intervals. For regular Board
meetings, notices of at least 14 days are given to facilitate
maximum attendance of the Directors and agenda with
supporting papers are sent to Directors not less than 3
days before the relevant meeting is held. Directors may
propose to the Chairman or the Company Secretary to
include matters in the agenda for regular board meetings.
At the meeting, the Directors are provided with the relevant
documents to be considered and approved. Draft and
final versions of minutes are sent to all Directors for their
comments and records respectively within a reasonable
time after the board meeting is held. Minutes of Board
meetings are taken by the Company Secretary or a duly
appointed secretary of the Board meeting and are open for
inspection by any Director.
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The table below sets out the attendance of each Director TN&RF IS EEHEFARTHRRAF RS
at the annual general meeting (the “AGM”) and the ([BRERBFAE))  =FggahHtESS
meetings of the Board and other Board committees held ZE & &AM ¢

during the year:

Meetings attended/held

e/ Bres
Corporate
Audit Remuneration  Nomination  governance
AGM Committee ~ committee =~ committee  committee
rEER
RRBFAS ENZEE® HMZERE® REZ8e Z88

Executive Directors BITEE

M. Ziming Yang BERLE 11 A6 NATER  NATER 1M NATER
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 11 66  NATEH 11 NATER 1
Mr. Ronggin Ke RS EE 01 56  NATER  NATER  NATER  NATER
Mr. Qiang Wei Xy 0/1 66 NANER NATER  NATER 17

Independent non-executive B H1TES

Directors
Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui RAREE 1 6/6 2/2 11 NATER 11
Mr. Honghui Chen REBEL 01 6/6 22 NATER 171 NATER
Mr. Ming Shu Leung RHEEE 0/1 6/6 212 17 1A 11

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF ZREEESE
DIRECTORS

Each of the executive Directors and independent non- ARBIEHITES LB IENITEFHEAR
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a AIFI ARBELK  EHAE T — X F+ A
service contract with the Company for a term of three =T /\BEF=F - HEREBEARARINHEHKE
years commencing from 28 October 2016, subject to his  ZAMAINRFBEF A RIERBIE -
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in

accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
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In accordance with the Company’s articles of association,
a person may be appointed as a Director either by the
shareholders in general meeting or by the Board. Any
Directors appointed by the Board as additional Directors
or to fill casual vacancies shall hold office until the next
following general meeting, and are eligible for re-election
by the shareholders. In addition, all Directors are required
to retire by rotation at least once every three years at the
annual general meeting, and are eligible for re-election by
the shareholders.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

Pursuant to the CG Code, the Board adopted a board
diversity policy (the “Board Diversity Policy”) on 8
October 2013. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of diversity of Board members. While all
Board appointments will continue to be made on a merit
basis, the Company will ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives
appropriate to the needs of the Company’s business.
Selection of candidates will be based on a range of
diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender,
age, cultural and educational background, experience
(professional or otherwise), skills and knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND OFFICERS’ INSURANCE

The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in
respect of potential legal actions against its Directors and
officers.
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DIRECTORS’ CONTINUOUS TRAINING
AND PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

All Directors are aware of their responsibilities to the
Shareholders and have exercised their duties with care,
skill and diligence, in pursuit of the development of the
Group. All Directors are provided with monthly updates
on the Company’s performance and financial position
to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties. In addition, briefings and updates
on the latest development regarding the Listing Rules and
other applicable regulatory requirements are provided to
the Board during Board meetings to ensure compliance
and enhance their awareness of good corporate
governance practices. In November 2017, the Company,
together with its legal adviser, organized a training session
to provide the Directors with an update on the Listing
Rules.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are
separate and are not performed by the same individual
as this ensures better checks and balances and hence
better corporate governance. Mr. Ziming Yang holds the
position of the Chairman, who is primarily responsible
for strategic positioning. Mr. Siu Keung Ng serves as the
Chief Executive Officer, who is primarily responsible for the
operations and business development of the Group.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The role of the Independent Non-executive Directors is
to provide independent and objective opinions to the
Board, giving adequate control and balances for the
Group to protect the overall interests of the shareholders
and the Group. They serve actively on the Board and its
committees to provide their independent and objective
views.
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In compliance with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10A of the Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three independent
non-executive Directors, representing more than one-
third of the Board. One of the independent non-executive
Directors has the appropriate professional qualifications in
accounting or related financial management expertise as
required by Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules.

Each independent non-executive Director has submitted
annual confirmation of his independence to the Company
pursuant to rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. Based on the
contents of such confirmations, the Company considers
that all of the independent non-executive Directors are
independent.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the Company’s code
of conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions (the
“Securities Dealing Code”). Upon specific enquiries,
all Directors confirmed that they have complied with
the relevant provisions of the Securities Dealing Code
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.

Senior management who, because of their office in
the Company, are likely to be in possession of inside
information, have also been requested to comply with the
provisions of the Securities Dealing Code when dealing in
the Company’s shares.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Lai Wah Wong, the Company Secretary of the
Company, is a full-time employee of the Group and has
day-to-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She
also serves as the secretary of the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee, the Remuneration Committee,
the Corporate Governance Committee and other board
committees as organised by the Board from time to time.
Ms. Wong is responsible for advising the Board through
the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on
governance matters.
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During the financial year, the Company Secretary complied
with the relevant professional training requirement under
Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules. The biographical details of
the Company Secretary is set out in the section headed
“Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
on pages 47 to 53 in the annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognizes its responsibility to ensure
the Company maintains a sound and effective risk
management and internal control system. The Group’s
internal control system is designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and unauthorized disposition
and to manage operational risks. Review of the Group’s
internal controls covering major financial, operational
and compliance controls, as well as risk management
functions. The controls built into the risk management
system are intended to manage, not eliminate, significant
risks in the Group’s business environment.

The Group’s risk management framework includes the
following elements:

° identify significant risks in the Group’s operation
environment and evaluate the impacts of those risks
on the Group’s business;

o develop necessary measures to manage those
risks;

o monitor and review the effectiveness of such
measures.

The implementation of risk management framework of
the Group was assisted by the Group’s internal audit
department so that the Group could ensure new and
emerging risks relevant to the Group’s operation are
promptly identified by management, assess the adequacy
of action plans to manage these risks and monitor and
evaluate the effectiveness of the action plans. These are
on-going processes and our Audit Committee reviews
periodically the Group’s risk management systems.
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Audit committee reported to the Board the implementation
of the Group’s risk management and internal control policy
which, among other things, included the determination
of risk factors, evaluation of risk level the Group could
take and effectiveness of risk management measures.
Based on the reports from the Group’s internal control
department and the Audit Committee, the Board considers
the Group’s risk management and internal control system
is adequate and effective and the Group has complied with
the provisions on risk management and internal controls
as set out in the CG code.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY IN
PREPARING FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to prepare the
Company’s accounts which give a true and fair view of
the Group’s state of affairs, results and cash flows for the
year and in accordance with the International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, and the Companies Ordinance. The
Company has selected appropriate accounting policies
and has applied them consistently based on prudent and
reasonable judgments and estimates. The Board considers
that the Group has adequate resources to continue in
business for the foreseeable future and not aware of any
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that
may affect the business of the Company or cast doubts on
its ability to continue as going concern.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

KPMG has been appointed as the external auditor of
the Company. The Audit Committee has been notified of
the nature and the service charges of non-audit services
performed by KPMG and considered that such services
have no adverse effect on the independence of the
external auditor.
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During the year, the fees payable to KPMG or its affiliated
firms comprise service charges for the following:

Statutory audit ETEEIZ
Review of interim results EHPEEE
Internal control review N EpEL 128 R

There was no disagreement between the Board and the
Audit Committee on the selection and appointment of the
external auditor during the year under review.

NON-COMPETE UNDERTAKING BY
CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS

Mr. Ziming Yang, Acute Result Holdings Limited, Ascend
Fame Limited, Prime Ascend Limited are the controlling
shareholders (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of
the Company (the “Controlling Shareholders”). Each
of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that none of them is engaged in, or interested
in any business (other than the Group) which directly or
indirectly competes or may compete with the business
of the Group. To protect the Group from any potential
competition, the Controlling Shareholders have given an
irrevocable non-compete undertaking in the Group’s favour
on 8 October 2013 (the “Deed of Non-competition”).
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In order to properly manage any potential or actual
conflict of interests between the Group and the
Controlling Shareholders in relation to the compliance
and enforcement of the non-compete undertaking, the
Company has adopted the following corporate governance
measures:

(@ the independent non-executive Directors will
review, on an annual basis, the compliance with the
undertaking given by the Controlling Shareholders
under the Deed of Non-competition;

(b) the Controlling Shareholders undertake to provide
all information requested by the Company which is
necessary for the annual review by the independent
non-executive Directors and the enforcement of the
Deed of Non-competition;

(©) the Company will disclose decisions on matters
reviewed by the independent non-executive
Directors relating to compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking of the Controlling
Shareholders under the Deed of Non-competition in
the annual reports of the Company; and

(d)  the Controlling Shareholders will make an annual
declaration on compliance with their undertaking
under the Deed of Non-competition in the annual
report of the Company.

The Directors consider that the above corporate
governance measures are sufficient to manage any
potential conflict of interests between the Controlling
Shareholders and their respective associates and the
Group and to protect the interests of the shareholders, in
particular, the minority shareholders.

Each of the Controlling Shareholders has confirmed to the
Company that he/it has complied with the Deed of Non-
competition. The independent non-executive Directors
of the Company have reviewed the status of compliance
and enforcement of the Deed of Non-competition and
confirmed that all the undertakings thereunder have been
complied with.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS
AND SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company aims to, via its corporate governance
structure, enable all its shareholders an equal opportunity
to exercise their rights in an informed manner and allow all
shareholders to engage actively with the Company. Under
the Company’s articles of association, the shareholder
communication policy and other relevant internal
procedures of the Company, the shareholders of the
Company enjoy, among others, the following rights:

(i)

(ii)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Participation at general meetings

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for direct communication between
the Board and the shareholders. The Company
encourages the participation of the shareholders
through annual general meetings and other general
meetings where the shareholders meet and
exchange views with the Board, and to exercise
their right to vote at meetings. The Company shall
arrange notices of meetings and circulars containing
details on proposed resolutions to be sent to
the shareholders no less than 20 business days
before the meeting. At general meetings, separate
resolutions are proposed on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

Enquiries and proposals to the Board

The Company encourages shareholders to attend
Shareholders’ meetings and make proposals by
either directly raising questions on both operational
and governance matters to the Board and Board
Committees at the general meetings or providing
written notice of such proposals for the attention
of the Company Secretary at the registered office
of the Company in Hong Kong currently situated at
Unit A&B, 26 Floor, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue
Street, Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon or via email to
ir@cabbeen.com.
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(i) Convening extraordinary general

meetings

The Directors may, whenever they think fit, convene
an extraordinary general meeting. Extraordinary
general meetings shall also be convened on the
requisition of one or more shareholders holding, at
the date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid-up capital of the Company
having the right of voting at general meetings.
Such requisition shall be made in writing to the
Directors or the Company Secretary and deposited
at the registered office of the Company in Hong
Kong currently situated at Unit A&B, 26 Floor,
Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung
Sha Wan, Kowloon for the purpose of requiring
an extraordinary general meeting to be called by
the Directors for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition. Such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of
such requisition. If within twenty-one (21) days
of such deposit the Directors fail to proceed to
convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all
reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionist(s)
as a result of the failure of the Directors shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

There are no provisions under the Company’s
articles of association or the Companies Law, Cap
22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands regarding procedures for
Shareholders to put forward proposals at general
meetings other than a proposal of a person for
election as director. Shareholders may follow
the procedures set out above to convene an
extraordinary general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition.

(iii)
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The notice of annual general meeting together with
the accompanying circular setting out the relevant
information as required under the Listing Rules
are sent to shareholders at least 20 clear business
days prior to the meeting. Poll voting has been
adopted for decision-making at Shareholders’
meetings to ensure that each share is entitled to
one vote. Details of the poll voting procedures are
set out in the circular sent to Shareholders prior to
the meeting and explained at the commencement
of the meeting. Voting results are posted on the
Company'’s website on the day of the annual general
meeting.

Procedures for proposing a person for
election as a Director

Pursuant to the Article 85 of the articles of
associations of the Company, no person other
than a Director retiring at the meeting shall, unless
recommended by the Directors for election, be
eligible for election as a Director at any general
meeting unless a Notice (as defined therein) signed
by a Member (as defined therein) (other than the
person to be proposed) duly qualified to attend and
vote at the meeting for which such notice is given
of his intention to propose such person for election
and also a Notice signed by the person to be
proposed of his willingness to be elected shall have
been lodged at the head office or at the Registration
Office provided that the minimum length of the
period, during which such Notice(s) are given, shall
be at least seven (7) days and that (if the Notices
are submitted after the despatch of the notice of
the general meeting appointed for such election)
the period for lodgment of such Notice(s) shall
commence on the day after the despatch of the
notice of the general meeting appointed for such
election and end no later than seven (7) days prior
to the date of such general meeting.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change in the memorandum and articles

of association of the Company during the year ended 31
December 2017.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

SERXEHEEEEEIG

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ziming Yang (#5£8), aged 46, is the founder of
our Group. He is also the chairman of the Board of our
Company. He was appointed as an executive Director on
3 November 2011. Mr. Yang is primarily responsible for
our overall corporate strategies, planning and business
development, and leads our design and research and
development team.

Mr. Yang first started his fashion and wholesale of apparel
business in April 1992. In October 1997, Mr. Yang began
to design and wholesale our Cabbeen branded apparel.
Mr. Yang has over 20 years of experience in design. He
has been one of the most famous designers in China, who
won the award for “Best Menswear Designer™ (5 fE£ 55
& 5TAM) at the China International Fashion Week* (#
BREFEEE) in 2009 and “The 14th China Fashion Design
Top Award™ (148 BIRERFT®TES), which is the
top honor in apparel design in China in 2010. Mr. Yang
was accredited as “2010 Quanzhou Economic Figure”
(20109 fZ RN &7 A47) and was the member of the 10th
China Young Entrepreneurs Association (51 &5 B & F
PEXRBEEE)in 2010. In 2011, he was the chairperson
of Shishi Youth Chamber of Commerce’s Council (G Kim
SFREESEEER), honorable president of Shishi Textile
& Garments Commerce Chamber’s Council (£ T #7 4% ik
HEE@EESLEEER) and a committee member of the
11th Committee of All-China Youth Federation (R 2 H
SFBAeE+—ELZ8EZE). In 2012, Mr. Yang was
the first president of the Fashion Designers’ Association of
Fujian Province* (1R & IR FTATH S —fE® &) and
the honorable president of Quanzhou APEC Commerce
Chamber’s Council* (RMAPECEBHEELEER). In
March 2013, Mr. Yang became the consulting professor
of Beijing Institute of Fashion Technology (1t & AR
B%). In April 2014, Fujian Normal University (f&%&28M&5A
2) appointed Mr. Yang as a guest professor. In addition,
Mr. Yang is currently the vice president and a member
of the standing committee and the arts committee of
the China Fashion Designers Association (#F BIAREE %
sHET1#% ). Mr. Yang has been the vice president of the
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standing committee of the China Garment Association*
(P BIAREE 1% E) since October 2013. In April 2013, Mr.
Yang was awarded as 2012 Innovative person of China
textile industry* (2012 FREIAI AT FE BI¥T AYD) by The
Association of China Textile Industry* (F1 B#%h 4% T 284
).

Mr. Yang received his EMBA in Sun Yat-Sen University (4
ILRE2) in June 2011, Mr. Yang is the brother-in-law of Mr.
Rongain Ke (f]#5$X) who is also our executive Director.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (R43&), aged 47, is one of the
founding members of our Group and has been appointed
as an executive Director of our Company on 18 February
2013. Mr. Siu Keung Ng is primarily responsible for our
overall corporate planning and strategy execution and
is the chief executive officer of our Group since July
2010. Mr. Ng has over 15 years of experience in various
aspects, including business operation, management,
sales, procurement, financial and human resource. Mr. Ng
has been with our Group since 1997. Mr. Ng obtained his
bachelor’s degree in material engineering majoring in forge
craft and equipment from Shanghai Jiao Tong University (L=
YA AER) in July 1992.

Mr. Ronggqin Ke (f1#58%), aged 43, is one of the founding
members of our Group and has been appointed as an
executive Director of our Company on 18 February 2013.
Mr. Rongqin Ke is primarily responsible for our supply chain
management. Mr. Ke has over 15 years of experience in
various aspects, including manufacturing, product design
and research and development and procurement. Mr. Ke
has been with our Group since 1997.

Mr. Ke obtained his diploma certificate in business
administration from Hunan University of Technology (/#
m L A2 in January 2008. Mr. Ke was accredited as
“2011-2012 Top Ten Professional Managers of Apparel
Industry in Guangdong Province” (2011-20124 &R &
AREEFTH HERBLZEASIE A) in August 2012. He completed
the EMBA program at Lingnan College of Sun Yat-Sen
University (FF 1L R 22287 £557) in June 2013. Mr. Rongain
Ke is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ziming Yang.
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Mr. Qiang Wei (£3&), aged 43, has been the vice
president of our Group since July 2010 and was appointed
as an executive Director of our Company on 18 February
2013. Mr. Wei is primarily responsible for the finance,
operation of our Group. Mr. Wei has over 15 years of
experience in finance and accounting. Prior to joining
us, Mr. Wei was an accountant in Guangxi Bobai County
Foreign Trade and Economic Company* (EFiEH%
HOMEHEZ S48/ 7)) from January 1997 to October
1998. He was then worked in the finance department of
Guangzhou Complacent Industrial Co., Ltd. (BMKkz=H
[R A &) from November 1998 to October 2002. From April
2003 to March 2004 and from March 2004 to September
2008, Mr. Wei had been the finance manager and finance
director, respectively, in Guangzhou Sai De Electrical
Equipment Co., Ltd.* (EMNEE#EXREBRAF) and
Foshan U Right Garment Co., Ltd. (B IL{EEREGRE A
7). Mr. Wei joined our Group in December 2008 as the
financial director of Cabbeen Clothing (China) Limited and
took in charge of the company’s finance.

Mr. Wei completed a self-taught accounting diploma
course in April 1999 held by the Commission of Self-
taught Higher Education Examination of Guangxi Zhaung
Autonomous Region (BAEMHEERESSHEBESE
AZ E®), and subsequently obtained the Medium Level
Accountant title granted by Ministry of Finance of the
PRC in May 2002. Mr. Wei obtained his master degree in
business administration from Jinan University in December
2017.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui (#&&El), aged 49, is our
independent non-executive Director and was appointed
to our Board on 18 February 2013. Mr. Tsui has over
20 years of extensive experience in auditing and
accounting, including experience from corporations and
an international accounting firm. Mr. Tsui joined Ju Teng
International Holdings Limited (B &EIFR %A R A 7))
(stock code: 3336) in August 2004 and has been the
company’s executive director, chief financial officer and
company secretary since its listing in the Stock Exchange.
Mr. Tsui has resigned as company secretary of Ju Teng
International Holdings Limited on 1 March 2017. He has
also respectively been an independent non-executive
director of Shenguan Holdings (Group) Limited (18725 A%
((=E)ETR A 7)) (stock code: 829) since September 2009,
SITC International Holdings Company Limited (/&£ BIEX
R BBR/AR]) (stock code: 1308) since September 2010
and 361 Degrees International Limited (361Z B ER A
al) (stock code: 1361) since September 2012, all of which
are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Tsui obtained his bachelor’s degree of business in
accounting from Curtin University of Technology in August
1992 and his master’s degree of corporate governance
from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in December
2007. Mr. Tsui has been a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants since February 1997, a
member of Chartered Accountants Australia and New
Zealand since June 2000, and a member of CPA Australia
since September 1996. He has also been a member of
The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since
December 2007.
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Mr. Honghui Chen (BR &), aged 46, is our independent
non-executive Director and was appointed to our Board
on 18 February 2013. Mr. Chen has over 20 years of
extensive experience teaching universities in the fields
of management, economics and corporate social
responsibility. From July 1993 to June 2003, Mr. Chen
worked in Wuhan University of Science and Technology,
primarily teaching management and economics. From
July 2008 till now, Mr. Chen has worked in Sun Yat-Sen
University, primarily teaching courses including strategic
management and corporate social responsibility. Mr.
Chen had been granted the title of deputy professor
from April 2004 to July 2008 and has been subsequently
granted the title of professor since July 2008. Mr. Chen
had also been the deputy dean of Lingnan College in
Sun Yat-Sen University from November 2007 to March
2012 and has been the director of the Research Center
for Corporate Social Responsibility at Lingnan College
of Sun Yat-Sen University* (FIUKEER SR PET D
HEMEHRLEE) from July 2009 and the chair of the
Department of Business Management at Lingnan College
of Sun Yat-Sen University* (4 [LK 2225 & S0 4885 5 12
ZE1T), respectively. From 2004 till now, Mr. Chen has
done various researches on the topics of corporate social
responsibility and strategic management and economics
efficiency, which were subsidies by the PRC or local
government. The essay written by Mr. Chen in 2007 was
accredited as the Second Prize of The Philosophy and
Society Science Outstanding Achievement in Guangdong
Province* (ER & B2 2R2EFMR-FH).

Mr. Chen has been the independent director of Guangdong
Telepower Communication Co., Ltd.* (BB KK E R
T A% H AR A 7)) from January 2012 to December 2015.
Mr. Chen has also been the independent director of
Guangzhou Grandbuy Co., Ltd. (BM T E & KD BRR A7)
(SZSE Stock Code: 002187) since September 2016 and
of China National Accord Medicines Corporation Ltd (2 %4
B —BEEERDBIRAA]) (SZSE Stock Code:000028)
on 14 March 2017, both companies are listed on the
Shenzhen Stock Exchange.

Mr. Chen obtained the Qualification of Teacher of the PRC
in 1996. He also obtained his doctoral degree in enterprise
management from Zhejiang University in June 2003.
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SERXEHEEEEEFIS (18)

Mr. Ming Shu Leung (R #1&), aged 42, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director on 18 February
2013. Mr. Leung has been the chief financial officer and
company secretary of China ITS (Holdings) Co., Ltd. (#F
Bl e R B ARSI (ERR) AR A A]), a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 1900), since January 2008.
He has also been an independent non-executive director
of Comtec Solar Systems Group Limited (#5452 AR5 4%
EREB AR AR (stock code: 712), a company listed
on the Stock Exchange, since June 2008. In addition, Mr.
Leung was appointed as an independent non-executive
director of Sun.King Power Electronics Group Limited, a
company listed on the Stock Exchange, (stock code: 580)
with effect from 24 March 2017.

Mr. Leung has over 15 years of experience in the areas
of corporate finance and accounting. Mr. Leung started
his professional career at PricewaterhouseCoopers in
Hong Kong as an auditor in 1998. He then worked at
the global corporate finance division of Arthur Andersen
& Co. in Hong Kong, which subsequently merged with
PricewaterhouseCoopers, until December 2000. From
July 2001 to February 2003, Mr. Leung also worked as
a business consultant in Market Catalyst International
(Hong Kong) Limited, where he advised companies on
issues of strategy, organization and operations. Mr. Leung
then spent approximately three years from February
2003 to January 2006 at CDC Corporation, a NASDAQ-
listed company, as a senior manager in the mergers and
acquisitions department, and as the chief financial officer
of China.com Inc., a subsidiary of CDC Corporation and
a company listed on the Stock Exchange. From February
2006 to October 2006, Mr. Leung served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Xinwei Telecom Technology
Co., Ltd., a related party of KEEERHERHER AT
(Datang Telecom Technology Co., Ltd., a company listed

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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on The Shanghai Stock Exchange) which is engaged in
the development of telecommunication standard and
manufacture of telecommunication equipment. From
November 2006 to January 2008, he served as the chief
financial officer of Beijing Lingtu Spacecom Technology
Co., Ltd (StREEEZARKARAF]), a subsidiary of
Beijing Lingtu Software Co., Ltd (It REB# 4 EAMTA
R A7), a PRC digital mapping and navigation software
company.

Mr. Leung obtained his bachelor’s degree in arts with
first class honor in accountancy from The City University
of Hong Kong in June 1998 and a master’s degree in
accountancy from The Chinese University of Hong Kong in
November 2001. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants (FCCA) and a fellow
member of The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (FCPA).

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Lai Wah Wong (EE#), aged 43, is the chief
financial officer of our Group. Ms. Wong is also
our company secretary and one of the authorized
representatives of our Company. Ms. Wong joined our
group in April 2012 and is primarily responsible for our
overall financial management and company secretarial
affairs and coordination of investor relations. Ms. Wong
has over 15 years of experience in auditing, tax and
financial management. Prior to joining us, she had worked
in international accounting firms and other companies
listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Ms.
Wong obtained her bachelor’s degree of arts in accounting
at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 1997 and
master’s degree of science in corporate finance at The
Hong Kong University of Science and Technology in 2014.
She is also a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants.
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——— REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

BEERS

The Directors are pleased to present the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2017.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
and is domiciled in Hong Kong and has its registered office
at Unit A&B, 26/F, Billion Plaza Il, 10 Cheung Yue Street,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Group’s
principal place of business is in the PRC.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activities of the Group are wholesaling and
retailing of branded menswear and related accessories
in the PRC. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out in note 14 to the financial
statements.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2017, aggregate
sales to the Group’s largest and five largest customers
accounted for 11.9% (2016: 11.1%) and 42.5% (2016:
39.8%), respectively, of the Group’s total revenue for the
year.

Aggregate purchases from the Group’s largest and five
largest suppliers of OEM products accounted for 13.6%
(2016: 13.8%) and 33.4% (2016: 35.5%), respectively, of
the Group’s total purchases from suppliers for the year
ended 31 December 2017.

At no time during the year have the Directors, their
associates or any shareholder of the Company (who or
which to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than
5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had any interest
in the Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the latest five financial years is set out on
page 207 of the annual report. This summary does not
form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2017 and the state of the Company’s and the Group’s
affairs as at that date are set out in the consolidated
financial statements on pages 91 to 206 of the annual
report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Company and the
Group are set out in note 25 to the financial statements
and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s reserves available
for distribution, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated
and revised) of the Cayman Islands, amounted to
approximately RMB52.3 million.

DIVIDEND

On 1 August 2017, the Company declared an interim
dividend of HK6.0 cents (2016: HK6.8 cents) per ordinary
share for the six months ended 30 June 2017. The
Directors now recommend the payment of a final dividend
of HK8.5 cents (2016: HK5 cents) per ordinary share in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2017.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to RMB659,000 (2016: RMB100,000).
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NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Details of acquisitions and other movements of non-current
assets (including plant and equipment and intangible
assets) are set out in notes 9 and 11 to the consolidated
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company
during the year are set out in note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements. Shares were issued during the year
on exercise of share options.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
THE COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the Company
repurchased 44,764,000 shares of the Company on
the Stock Exchange for an aggregate consideration of
HK$107,440,040 (highest price per share was HK$2.66
and lowest price per share was HK$2.21, of which
18,487,000 shares were cancelled on 2 June 2017 and
26,277,000 shares were cancelled on 22 September
2017). The Directors are of the view that such repurchases
have the effect of enhancing the earnings per share of the
Group and would benefit the shareholders as a whole.
Depending on the market circumstances, the Company
may undertake further share repurchases as the Directors
may consider to be appropriate. Save for the disclosed
above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries,
had repurchased, sold or redeemed any of its listed
securities.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Business overview and financial
performance

The review of the Group’s business and financial
performance for the year ended 31 December 2017 are
provided in the section “Management Discussion and
Analysis” in this annual report.
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Principal risks and uncertainties

A number of factors may affect the results and business
operations of the Group, some of which are inherent to
fashion business and some are from external sources.
Major risks are summarized below.

(i)

(ii)

Fashion risk

Our success depends on our ability to define
products trends and anticipate, gauge and react to
changing consumer demands in a timely manner.
Failure to anticipate and respond timely to changing
consumer preferences could lead to lower sales
and excess inventory levels. With respect to each
design concept, it is important to have the right
volume of stocks and strike the right balance in the
mix between fashion basics and the latest trends.
To track the acceptance of our fashion concept
in the market closely, we introduce products in
different batches throughout the season and will
further shorten the product development cycle in
order to reduce the lead time between production
and delivery to customers. In addition, shopping
patterns and the length of product seasons can vary
in different parts of mainland China. Fashion designs
which are popular in one province of mainland China
at a given time may not be as popular in another
local market.

Intense competition

We compete not only with local Chinese menswear
brands, but also with other international fashion
brands. Areas of competition include product
designs, production costs, marketing programs,
customer services. If we do not respond timely to
our competitors, our costs may increase or the
consumer demand for our products may decline
and our revenue and profits would decrease.
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(iii)

(iv)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

——— REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Macroeconomic environment

The risk exists that negative macroeconomic
changes may result in negative changes in the
business environment. Fashion products may be
considered as discretionary items for customers.
Slower consumer spending may result in reduced
demand for our products, reduced orders from our
distributors, order cancellations, higher discounts,
increased inventories, lower revenue and margins. It
is therefore important that the Group is aware of any
such changes of economic environment and adjusts
its store opening plan, buying volume and business
plan under different market conditions.

Supply chain

We do not own or operate any manufacturing
facilities and depend upon independent
manufacturers to produce all of our products and
materials. Any disruption in the supply of fabric, raw
materials and products from suppliers may cause
problems in our supply chain. We have no long-term
contracts with any of our suppliers and we may
need to compete with other companies for fabrics,
raw materials and apparel products. Nevertheless,
we have developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our vendors so as to minimize
the impact from any supply disruptions and ensure
we can locate alternative suppliers of comparable
quality at a reasonable price all the time. For the
year ended 31 December 2017, 33.4% (2016:
35.5%) of our products were produced by our top
five suppliers and we have more than five years’
business relationship with these suppliers.
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(v)

(vi)

Financial conditions of our distributors

We extend credit to our distributors based on as
assessments of their financial conditions, repayment
history and sales performance of the retail outlets
operated by them, generally without requiring
collateral. To assist in the scheduling of production
of our products, our customers could place orders
four to five months ahead of delivery under our
sales fair ordering system. These advance orders
may be cancelled and the risk of cancellation may
increase when dealing with distributors struggling
with financial difficulties. A slowing economy could
also adversely affect the financial conditions of our
customers, which in turn could have an adverse
effect on our results of operation. In addition,
product sales are dependent in part on an appealing
store environment to attract consumers, which
requires continuing investments by distributors.
Distributors that experience financial difficulties may
fail to make such investments and result in lower
sales and orders for our products.

Information system

We are dependent on information technology
systems and networks, including the internet and
third-party hosted services across many of our
operating activities, including sales and distribution,
ordering and purchases, sales and distribution,
inventory management in all retail outlets,
e-commerce business, customer relationship
management, digital marketing and financial
reporting. Any material disruption or slowdown of
our IT systems, including a disruption or slowdown
caused by our failure to successfully upgrade our
systems, system failures, viruses or cyber attacks
could cause a loss of data or operation interruption.
Therefore, we invest continuously in our IT and
ERP system so as to keep up with the technology
security and availability and integrity of critical
operation data.

v)

(vi)
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——— REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)
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Reputational risk

Cabbeen is one of the leading Chinese fashion
causal designer brands and our success depends
on our ability to maintain and enhance our brand
image and reputation. Maintaining and promoting
our brands will depend on our product design,
marketing efforts and product quality. In addition,
effect of our marketing activities depends on
our ability to adapt to the rapid changing media
environment, including social media and online
advertising campaigns. Should existing and potential
customers lose confidence in Cabbeen/or one of
its brands, or in the industry in general, because
of negative publicity, the Group’s sales would
decrease. To safeguard and manage the brand,
it is important that the Group continues to uphold
its brand value, corporate image, product safety
and maintain high business ethics. In addition,
it is also important that communication with our
shareholders, customers and other stakeholders is
accurate, transparent and reliable.

Weather

Extreme weather conditions in the areas in which
our retail stores, suppliers and customers are
located could adversely affect our operating results
and financial condition.

Key Relationships

(i)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Employees

To remain competitive in the retail apparel industry,
we must attract, develop, and retain skilled
employees in our design, merchandising, supply
chain, marketing, and other functions.
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(ii)

We strive to motivate its employees with a clear
career path and opportunities for advancement
and improvement of their skills. We provide
pre-employment and on-the-job training and
development opportunities to our staff members.
The training programs cover areas such as
managerial skills, sales and production, customer
services, quality control, sales fairs planning,
workplace ethics and training of other areas relevant
to the industry.

We conduct employee engagement survey across
its Hong Kong and mainland China operations once
a year. We seriously consider all those valuable
feedback from our employees for enhancing
workplace productivity and harmony.

In addition, we offer competitive remuneration
packages to employees and have also adopted
share option schemes to recognize and reward the
contribution of the employees to the growth and
development of the Group.

Suppliers

We have developed long-standing relationships
with a number of our vendors and take great care
to ensure that they share our commitment to quality
and ethics. We carefully select our OEM and require
them to satisfy certain assessment criteria including
track record, experience, financial strength,
reputation, ability to product high-quality products
and quality control effectiveness. We also require
our OEMs to comply with our anti-bribery policy.

(ii)
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(iii)

(iv)

——— REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS (CONTINUED)

Distributors

We sell our products to end customers through
third-party distributors. We work with our
distributors like we are business partners and
ensure we share the view for upholding our brand
value and customer services, specifically focusing
on attracting and retaining customers in order to
drive sales growth. We and our distributors reach an
agreement on retail sales target and store expansion
plan before they place their orders. We require
our distributors and sub-distributors to comply
with our retail policies, including but not limited to
nationwide product retail selling price, standard
store images, promotional activities and use of our
ERP system. We also monitor the financial condition
and repayment history of our distributors, and retail
sales performance of the stores operated by them.

Customers

We are committed to offer a broad and diverse
range of inspiring, value-for money, good-quality
fashion with our various brands to our customers.
We also stay connected with our customers. We
maintain our VIP database and have ongoing
communications with our customers through
various channels like the Company’s website,
telephone, direct mail, marketing materials and
social media. We also work with our distributors
and provide training to their key sales personnel to
provide quality and value-added customer services
at retail channel.

Environmental Policies

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly

corporation that pays close attention to conserving natural
resources. We strive to minimize our environmental impact
by saving electricity and encouraging recycle of office
supplies and other materials. We also require factories
of our OEM to operate in strict compliance with the
relevant environmental regulations and rules and possess

all necessary permission and approval from the relevant

Chinese regulators.
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Compliance with Laws and Regulations

The Group’s operations are mainly carried out by the
Company’s subsidiaries in the mainland China while the
Company itself is listed on the Stock Exchange. Our
establishment and operations accordingly shall comply
with relevant laws and regulations in the mainland China
and Hong Kong. During the year ended 31 December
2017 and up to the date of this report, we have complied
with all the relevant laws and regulations in the mainland
China and Hong Kong.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors of
the Company as at the date of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float under
the Listing Rules throughout the year ended 31 December
2017 and at any time up to the date of this annual report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under
the Company’s articles of association or the laws of the
Cayman Islands where the Company is incorporated.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ziming Yang (Chairman)

Mr. Siu Keung Ng (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Rongain Ke

Mr. Qiang Wei

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Yung Kwok Tsui
Mr. Honghui Chen
Mr. Ming Shu Leung
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Each of the executive Directors and independent non-
executive Directors of the Company has entered into a
service contract with the Company for a term of three
years commencing from 28 October 2016 subject to his
retirement and re-election at annual general meeting in
accordance with the Company’s articles of association.
The details of the remuneration of each of the Directors
are revealed on note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on
pages 47 to 53 of the annual report. In accordance with
article 84 of the Company’s articles of association, Mr.
Siu Keung Ng, Mr Qiang Wei and Mr. Honghui Chen will
retire from the Board by rotation at the forthcoming annual
general meeting and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-election.

No Director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has an unexpired service contract
with the Group which is not determinable by the Company
or any of its subsidiaries within one year without payment
of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or in existence
during the year ended 31 December 2017.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers all the independent non-executive Directors
to be independent.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions”
and note 28 to the consolidated financial statements, no
contract of significance to which the Company, or any of
its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party, and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year under review.

CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the section “Connected Transactions”
and in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements,
there had been no contract of significance between the
Company or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.

COMPETING BUSINESS

None of the Directors of the Company had any interest
in any competing business with the Company or any
of its subsidiaries during the year under review. Each of
Mr. Ziming Yang, Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime
Ascend (the controlling shareholders (within the meaning
of the Listing Rules) of the Company) has confirmed
to the Company that he/it has complied with the non-
compete undertaking given by them to the Company
under the Deed of Non-competition on 8 October 2013.
The independent non-executive Directors of the Company
have reviewed the status of compliance and enforcement
of the non-compete undertaking and confirmed that all
the undertakings thereunder have been complied with
throughout the year ended 31 December 2017.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions for the year as disclosed
in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements also
constituted connected transactions as defined under
the Listing Rules, which are required to be disclosed in
this report in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules. Details of such connected transactions (as defined
under the Listing Rules) are set out below:

Lease of properties from Junyuan
Development Company Limited (F ¥t B4R
ERAMR2AT) (“Junyuan Development”) (the
“Leases”)

Junyuan Development is wholly owned by Mr. Ziming
Yang, the Chairman and executive Director and Controlling
Shareholder (within the meaning of the Listing Rules) of the
Company. Junyuan Development is therefore a connected
person of the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

The Group entered into lease agreements with Junyuan
Development on 31 May 2016 to lease certain premises
at Shishi City, Fujian Province, from Junyuan Development
for a term of one year commencing from 1 June 2016 to
31 May 2017 (the “2016 Leases”). Total rental payable
by the Group under the lease agreements amounted to
RMB3,005,374.15, details of which were disclosed in the
Company’s announcement dated 31 May 2016.

Upon expiry of the 2016 Leases, the Group entered into
new lease agreements with Junyuan Development on 31
May 2017 to continue to lease the relevant premises for
another year from 1 June 2017 to 31 May 2018 (“2017
Leases”). Total rental payable by the Group under the
lease agreements amounted to RMB2,836,934.28, details
of which were disclosed in the Company’s announcement
dated 31 May 2017.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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The transactions contemplated under the 2016 Leases and
2017 Leases constitute continuing connected transactions
on the part of the Company under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31 December 2017,
total rental paid or payable by the Group under the above
leases amounted to RMB2,907,117.56 which did not
exceed the annual caps for these transactions.

Opinion from the independent non-executive
Directors on the connected transactions

The Directors (including all independent non-executive
Directors) have reviewed the above connected transactions
and confirmed that these transactions were entered into:

(1) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

) on normal commercial terms or better; and

3) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them and on terms that are fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders
of the Company as a whole.

The Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules in respect of the aforesaid connected
transactions.
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External auditor’s report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions

The Leases constitute continuing connected transactions
as defined in the Listing Rules. KPMG, the auditor of
the Company, was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference
to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing
Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing
Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The Company has received an unqualified
letter from KPMG containing their finding and conclusions
in respect of the continuing connected transaction
disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS IN SECURITIES

As at 31 December 2017, the interests and short positions
of the directors and chief executives of the Company in the
shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
and its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)),
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Long positions in the Company

RAEQTWER

Number of

underlying
shares Approximate
Number of comprised percentage of
Name of director shares held in options® shares in issue®
BIRHEFTY R FERTR®A
Exps FEERO#E EBRO#E BHAEALLO
Mr. Ziming Yang (1814 5 5B 5 A (el 451,200,000 200,000 451,400,000 67.65%
Mr. Siu Keung Ng Rt 2,926,000 900,000 3,826,000 0.5734%
Mr. Rongain Ke RIS E 3,850,000 1,500,000 5,350,000 0.8018%
Mr. Qiang Wei FRAAE 503,000 700,000 1,203,000 0.1803%

1)

Acute Result Holdings Limited (“Acute Result”), Ascend Fame
Limited (“Ascend Fame”) and Prime Ascend Limited (“Prime
Ascend”) are wholly-owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang
and Mr. Ziming Yang is therefore deemed to be interested in
all the shares in which Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime
Ascend are interested.

Multiplus International Limited (“Multiplus”) is owned as to
99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr. Ziming Yang. By virtue of
a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by and between
Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang in addition to the voting right
attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang holds in Multiplus, he also
has the right to control the exercise of the voting rights attached
to all the shares in Multiplus held by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly,
Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in
which Multiplus is interested.

Ms. Liting Ke was granted 200,000 share options pursuant to
Share Option Schemes (as defined below) of the Company.
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(4) Mr. Ziming Yang is the spouse of Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr.
Yang is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Ms.
Liting Ke is interested.

5) These represent interest in underlying shares of the Share Option
Schemes granted (as defined below) by the Company.

(6) Based on a total of 667,264,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2017.

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017, none
of the Directors and the chief executives of the Company
and their respective associates had any interests and short
positions in the shares, underlying shares and debentures
of the Company or any of its associated corporations
(within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded
in the register of the Company required to be kept under
Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.
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INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF
SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2017, the persons or corporations
(not being a Director or chief executive of the Company)
who had an interest or short position in the shares and
underlying shares of the Company which were required
to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
336 of the SFO were as follows:

TERRNVEDZRKR

RZZE—+F+=-_A=+—H U TALTEHE
B(EEEHARAEBITHRAE) RAEARA
&t MBI P B IRIEE H KB E K65
XV EBEE 2 & 3 9 BG SR M) AN A R FE sk A 8%
RIRB AN EIEHIE 336 KR EBTIFEE
A ERSA R

Approximate
percentage of

Number of shareholding
Capacity/Nature of interest Shares interest®
FRESLD
51 REmtE RGEE BaLL®
Ms Liting Ke M@ Interest in a controlled corporation/ 451,400,000 67.65%
TR IE 201 1 @6 Interest of spouse
REZEEER R BB
Acute Result @@ Beneficial owner 288,450,000 43.23%
A AW EmEB A
Ascend Fame @@ Beneficial owner 52,500,000 7.87%
e EAHEAA
Keen Network @4 Beneficial owner 31,500,000 4.72%
eSS EnlEAA
Prime Ascend @@ Interest in a controlled corporation 31,500,000 4.72%
TR @) REEE R R
Multiplus © Beneficial owner 78,750,000 11.80%
<t EnlEA
™ Ms. Liting Ke is the spouse of Mr. Ziming Yang. Accordingly, Ms. (1) MBER T /GEHALENERS - Bt - FEE

Liting Ke is deemed to be interested in all the shares in which Mr.
Ziming Yang is interested.

2) Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are wholly-
owned and controlled by Mr. Ziming Yang and Mr. Ziming Yang
is therefore deemed to be interested in all the shares in which
Acute Result, Ascend Fame and Prime Ascend are interested.
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) Multiplus is owned as to 99% by Ms. Liting Ke and 1% by Mr.
Ziming Yang. By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated 31
July 2012 by and between Ms. Liting Ke and Mr. Ziming Yang, in
addition to the voting right attached to the share Mr. Ziming Yang
holds in Multiplus, he also has the right to control the exercise
of the voting rights attached to all the shares in Multiplus held
by Ms. Liting Ke. Accordingly, Mr. Ziming Yang is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Multiplus is interested.

(4) Ms. Liting Ke was granted 200,000 share options pursuant to
Share Option Schemes (as defined below) of the Company.

) Keen Network Holdings Limited (“Keen Network”) is owned
as to 33.33% by Prime Ascend, 33.33% by Dominant Success
Holdings Limited (“Dominant Success”) and 33.33% by Rosy
Connect Investments Limited (“Rosy Connect”’). Prime Ascend
is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Ziming Yang. Dominant
Success is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Siu Keung Ng.
Rosy Connect is directly and wholly-owned by Mr. Rongqgin Ke.
Mr. Ziming Yang, Mr. Siu Keung Ng and Mr. Ronggin Ke are
executive Directors of the Company.

By virtue of a shareholders’ agreement dated 31 July 2012 by
and among the shareholders of Keen Network, in addition to the
voting rights attached to the shares in Keen Network that it holds,
Prime Ascend also has the right to control the exercise of the
voting rights attached to all the shares in Keen Network held by
other shareholders. Accordingly, Prime Ascend is deemed to be
interested in all the shares in which Keen Network is interested.

(6) Based on a total of 667,264,000 issued shares of the Company
as at 31 December 2017.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2017,
the Directors were not aware of any other person or
corporation having an interest or short position in shares
and underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be disclosed to the Company under the
provisions of Division 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a pre-initial public offering share
option scheme (the “Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme”)
and a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of providing incentives
and rewards to eligible participants who contribute to the
Group.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme on 8 October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding
certain eligible persons for their past contributions and
attracting and retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going
relationships with, such eligible persons who are significant
to and/or whose contributions are or will be beneficial
to the performance, growth or success of the Group.
Options to subscribe for an aggregate of 8,520,000 shares
(the “Shares”) of the Company (the “Pre-IPO Share
Options”) were granted on 8 October 2013. The exercise
price per Share is HK$2.024, being 80% of the initial
public offering price. No further option could be granted
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after 8 October
2013. All Pre-IPO Share Options granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme may be exercised during the
option period commencing from the first anniversary of the
Listing Date to the date falling 10 years from the grant date
of the Pre-IPO Share Options and can only be exercised in
the following manner:

(i) 30% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the first anniversary of the Listing
Date;

(ii) 60% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the second anniversary of the Listing
Date; and

(iii) 100% of each Pre-IPO Share Options may be
exercised from the third anniversary of the Listing
Date.
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Details of the Pre-IPO Share Options as at 31 December
2017 are as follows:

RZE—+F+_A=1t—BE XA FRAEEN
BIREFBOT

Exercised
Outstanding  Lapsed during during Outstanding
asat theyearended the year ended as at
1 January 31 December 31 December 31 December
2017 2017 2017 2017
R B8z gz i
“E—tF “E—tF “E—tF “E-tF
-B-B +ZB=t-B +=ZA=t-B +=A=+-H
e RATE LFEEBAN LFEEBTE e RATE
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBFAE 900,000 - - 900,000
Mr. Ronggin Ke RIS E 700,000 - - 700,000
Mr. Qiang Wei FRAAE 700,000 - - 700,000
In aggregate A&t 4,889,000 440,000 550,0001" 3,899,000
Total @t 7,189,000 440,000 550,000 6,199,000

Note 1: The weighted average closing price of the corresponding Shares
immediately before the dates on which these Pre-IPO Share
Options were exercised was HK$2.4.

The total number of Shares available for issue under the
Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is 6,199,000, representing

approximately 0.929% of the Company’s issued share
capital as at the date of this annual report, i.e. 667,264,000
Shares. 440,000 Pre-IPO Share Options were lapsed and
550,000 Pre-IPO Share Options were exercised during the
year ended 31 December 2017. No Pre-IPO Share Options
were canceled during the year ended 31 December 2017.
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Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme on 8
October 2013 for the purpose of rewarding certain eligible
persons for their past contributions and attracting and
retaining, or otherwise maintaining on-going relationships
with, such eligible persons who are significant to and/
or whose contributions are or will be beneficial to the
performance, growth or success of the Group. Subject
to the earlier termination of the Share Option Scheme
in accordance with the rules thereof, the Share Option
Scheme shall remain in force for a period of ten years
commencing on 28 October 2013.

Eligible participants of the Scheme include any proposed,
full-time or part-time employees, executives or officers of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; any Directors or
proposed Director (including non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors) of the Company or
any of its subsidiaries; any direct or indirect shareholder of
the Company or any of its subsidiaries; and any advisers,
consultants, suppliers, customers and agents to the
Company or any of its subsidiaries. The maximum number
of shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other schemes of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed
10% of the shares in issue as at the Listing Date, i.e.
70,000,000 Shares.

No option may be granted to any participant of the Share
Option Scheme such that the total number of Shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted to that person in any 12-month
period up to the date of the latest grant exceeds 1% of the
Company’s issued share capital from time to time.
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An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms
of the Share Option Scheme at any time during a period
as determined by the Board and not exceeding 10 years
from the date of the grant. There is no minimum period for
which an option must be held before it can be exercised;
however, the Board may, subject to the provisions of the
Listing Rules, in its absolute discretion when offering the
grant of an Option impose any conditions, restrictions or
limitations in relation thereto in addition to those set forth
in the Share Option Scheme as it may think fit. Participants
of the Share Option Scheme are required to pay the
Company a nominal consideration in total HK$1.00 upon
acceptance of the grant on or before 30 days after the
offer date. The exercise price of the options is determined
by the Board in its absolute discretion and shall not be less
than whichever is the highest of:

(@) the nominal value of a Share;

(b) the closing price of a Share as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets on the offer
date; and

(c) the average closing price of a Share as stated in
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange’s daily quotation
sheets for the five Business Days (as defined in the
Listing Rules) immediately preceding the offer date.

On 3 August 2017 (the “Date of Offer”), the Company
offered to grant options to subscribe for an aggregate of
6,000,000 shares of the Company to employees of the
Group under the Share Option Scheme at an exercise
price of HK$2.19 per share. The closing prices of the
Company’s shares immediately before the Date of Offer
and on the Date of Offer were HK$2.18 and HK$2.19
respectively. The offers were accepted by the grantees
within 30 days from the Date of Offer. The Share Options
granted shall vest in the grantees on 3 August 2022, and
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become exercisable before 3 August 2027, the date on
which such Share Options shall lapse under the provisions
of the Share Option Scheme. Mr Rongqin Ke, an executive
director of the Company, is one of the grantees and he
is granted 800,000 Share Options. Ms. Liting Ke, wife
of the Company’s executive director and substantial
shareholder Mr. Ziming Yang and a design director of
the Company, is one of the grantees and she is granted
200,000 Share Options. The grant of such Share Options
has been approved by all the independent non-executive
directors of the Company. Save as disclosed above, none
of the grantees is a director, chief executive or substantial
shareholder of the Company, nor an associate (as defined
under the Listing Rules) of any of them.

As at the date of this report, the total number of shares
available for issue under the Share Option Scheme was
70,000,000, representing approximately 10.49% of the
Company’s issued share capital, and the remaining life
of the Share Option Scheme was about 5 years and 8
months.

ARRANGEMENT FOR DIRECTORS TO
PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in “Share Option Schemes” above, at
no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director of the Company
or their respective spouses or minor children, or were
such rights exercised by them, or was the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors of the Company to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in,
or debt securities (including debentures) of the Company
or any other body corporate.
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RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes organized by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities for the Group’s eligible
employees in the PRC, and operates a Mandatory
Provident Fund scheme for the employees in Hong Kong.
Particulars of these retirement plans are set out in note 23
to the consolidated financial statements.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

There were no significant events after the reporting period
of the Group.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2017 have been audited by KPMG, who
shall retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of
KPMG as auditor of the Company is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

By order of the Board

Ziming YANG
Chairman

Hong Kong, 9 February 2018
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

LI ENEMERES

KPMG

Independent auditor’s report
to the shareholders of Cabbeen Fashion Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Cabbeen Fashion Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 91 to 206,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2017, the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity
and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then
ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2017 and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’'s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(“the Code”) together with any ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial
statements in the Cayman Islands, and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our
professional judgement, were of most significance in
our audit of the consolidated financial statements for
the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters.
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Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FE AR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 125.

D a ARSI 2 RE 126 AR EFHHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

Revenue principally comprises sales of menswear
goods to distributors and via consignees.
WaEF2aERoHEEBRERHESES

oA °

Each year, the Group enters into a framework
distribution agreement or a consignment
agreement with each distributor or consignee
and manufactures and sells its products in
accordance with the terms of separate purchase
orders.
ERESFREZHHPIR BB LIERD B
&R - WIRBESIRERT BARTEE KX
HEHREMR °

For sales to distributors, once the products are
transported from the designated warehouse by
the Group, the risks and rewards of ownership
of the goods are considered to have been
transferred to the distributor and revenue is
recognised at that point.
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Our audit procedures to assess the recognition of
revenue included the following:

BAFHE KRR B ZEF 2B N E

o assessing the design, implementation and
operating effectiveness of management’s key
internal controls over revenue recognition;
AHEEIRER MU R S A EPIEHI YRR
it B SOEIERR

o inspecting agreements with distributors and
consignees, on a sample basis, to understand
the terms of the sales transactions including
the terms of delivery and acceptance,
applicable rebates arrangements and any sales
return arrangements to assess the Group’s
revenue recognition criteria with reference to
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
REBEAREERE HE #HE MARHEE A BE - A
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Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

D BRI Z it 2 RE 126 AR @ FHHE °

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 125.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

For sales via consignees, once the products
are sold to end users by the consignee, the
risks and rewards of ownership of the goods
are considered to have been transferred to the
consignee and revenue is recognised at that
point. The Group receives confirmations from
consignees on a monthly basis of both the
transaction amounts and balances due to the
Group.

REBRERELNHENS » Em—BEBRK
HEETRmAF  AEEmEAENERR LD
WGEAEER TRER - W ZE R B R
@ BEEEARKRERABR S © B NER
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We identified the recognition of revenue as a key
audit matter because revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the Group and because
there is an inherent risk of manipulation of the
timing of recognition of revenue by management
to meet specific targets or expectations.
BPER SRR AAREZEFIE  ARKER
EEENBERGEIIERZ— MERPIREERE
FRERFTTE B AR S TR HA T #8212 W s e SR R R Y
BREMR -

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether
revenue transactions recorded during the
financial year had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
BREARLEF B EPMER S EBRXIFX
- BREEEEIRERIEENEG ABRER
2> 5 BN 8 1 2 P B A B B R - AT OB IR
FEANTHNBAERZHEEEREE BV EE
AR

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether
specific revenue transactions around the
financial year end had been recognised in the
appropriate financial period by comparing the
transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including goods delivery notes
or monthly confirmations from consignees and
the terms of sale as set out in the distribution or
consignment agreements;
BREAEEFBHEBRAEISHEEAIIFX
- BRESEIXREREFNEGAERER
7> $H A B 17 2 P 8 0 8 5 K - AT AR
FEAENEERRRZZEEERNEENIIK
HARI AR
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Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FE AR

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 125.

D a ARSI 2 RE 126 AR EFHHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

assessing, on a sample basis, whether sales
rebates during the financial year had been
recognised in the appropriate financial period
by reconciling the movements in sales rebates
accruals, recalculating the sales rebates
recognised during the financial year on the
basis of the terms as set out in the distribution
or consignment agreements and comparing
sales rebates payments during the financial
year to confirmations from distributors or
consignees and other relevant underlying
documentation;
BREAREEF B ARIHEQINES - RIE
DI BT A ERREF A BRI R F
EAERRHEEDH - KB BFEERAE
HE @I FRER B D iHEm SRR ERE
NE AR S - FH AR M B E N i
ERMNELR D RNEE Y AR R

identifying significant credit notes issued and
sales returns from the sales ledger after the
financial year end and inspecting relevant
underlying documentation to assess if the
related revenue had been accounted for in the
appropriate financial period in accordance with
the requirements of the prevailing accounting
standards;
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Revenue recognition

Wy 22 FERR

D BRI Z it 2 RE 126 AR @ FHHE °

Refer to note 2 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 125.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

° inspecting significant manual adjustments
to revenue during the reporting period,
enquiring of management as to the reasons
for such adjustments and comparing details
of the adjustments with relevant underlying
documentation.
BENBERANH WS IIENEZFERHE
MEREERELERARNIEHR MR
B E RS R
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Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 116.

BRJEE TS HRAN i 16 RE 116 EHIEFTHE °

The Key Audit Matter
BAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNEESE

Sales of inventories in the fashion industry can
be volatile with consumer demand changing
according to current fashion trends.

MIVHEE T LS REEE AR EIRBE m 2
B RETENFEHERLRKY -

The Group typically sells or disposes of off-
season inventories at a markdown from the
original price to make room for new season
inventories in its stores. Accordingly, the actual
future selling prices of some inventories may fall
below their purchase costs.
EXE-RTBHEXRBABTFE - LWREE
HWRFTEHFEEREZER - Bt - ETEFEENER
ARREEHSERETRBRR

Management considers several factors in
determining the appropriate level of inventory
provisions, including inventory ageing, historical
rates of sales at normal price levels and at
markdown prices, and the channels available for
selling off-season inventories.
ERENETHENTFERBEKTIREESER
= PREEERER  REFERKERIZRER
ROELHEXRANHE BT FENRIBRE -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of
inventories included the following:

BAFHEFERENEZEFEEA T IH

° assessing whether the inventory provisions at
the reporting date were calculated in a manner
consistent with the Group’s inventory provision
policy by recalculating the inventory provisions
based on percentages and other parameters in the
Group’s inventory provision policy and considering
the application of the Group’s inventory provision
policy with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
BESEEFERBRENB I L REAMSH
B EFERBR2ZER TS EANRAE
ZEEEETERBRROER - FUAFER
HERHNFEREBREOKREEEETERE
BER-—BHAAEE

° assessing, on a sample basis, whether items
in the inventory ageing report were classified
within the appropriate ageing bracket by
comparing the barcode tags for the inventory
items selected with relevant purchase
documents;

BREAEEF B WPTEFEIEB IR RE
BB R S - AT ERER RS T MIER
ERBAEEHEREKAER]

° performing a retrospective review by comparing
the carrying values of inventories as at 31
December 2016 with sales prices achieved
during the current year, to assess the reliability
of management’s write-down and provisioning
process;

BERE T —RNF+A=T—RZFERE
BEREARFE 2 EEETHE - (EHEPRE A
L E IR EMOR R ERIZ 2 AT

B LEER | FERGARLT
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——— INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

LI ETEMERES (18)

Valuation of inventories

FEME

BREE TSR AN T 16 RE 116 EHIEFTHUE °

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 116.

The Key Audit Matter
FAREREE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

EEZDNERESE

We identified the valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter because of the significant judgement
exercised by management in determining the
appropriate levels of inventory provisions which
involves predicting the amounts of inventories
which will be unsold at the end of each season
and the markdowns necessary to sell such off-
season inventories on a discounted basis through
outlets and other channels in future years. Both
of these factors can be inherently uncertain and
could be subject to management bias.

BPEFEREINREAREZSEE  AREEE
EETESNTFEREKFRITEEAHE -
EHENEARNSEFTERAENTFEHRE LR
AR FBBIHERHEMRERELELFE
FEEMBIELNF - ZFREHFEEB T
HEEM - WA X BIEERIFTRR

evaluating the Group’s inventory provision
policy by comparing management’s expectation
of the amounts of inventories which are unlikely
to be sold in the foreseeable future at current
prices and the corresponding expectation of
markdowns with historical sales amounts and
markdown data for the current and prior years
provided by management; and

BB E IR BE A ARAI BN ] R RKIZE A
EREENTFERENTENSAE RN NTEL
HEREMREHNE A LBEFENELH
EHELTHNEE HEEEENTFERER
®i M

enquiring of the management and senior
members of the sales team about any expected
changes in plans for markdowns or disposals
of off-season inventories and comparing the
carrying value of inventories to actual prices for
sales transactions subsequent to the reporting
date on a sample basis.
MERENMHERGNSREEASRAHNEH
iR BEFEEINEAERES - I
BEARENRFEREERRS A HRIHEE
RHNBRER -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN

THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT
THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included
in the annual report, other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other
information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

mEMBBRRUMEMERRE
P95 Lt 3% i X BB 3R 5
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R MIRPIBUL B X BRED RS o
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EEE-
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SEFARERBERR S ENZEERHNE
PR SRS R R BB R RHRBIH R R E R
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——— INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

LI ETEMERES (18)

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. This report is made solely to you, as a body, and
for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we
exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the
override of internal control.
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Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.
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——— INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (CONTINUED)

LI ETEMERES (18)

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence and, where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit
Committee, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Ng Yu Hei.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

9 February 2018
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

fFeRRXEMEEIEE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #i2 —E—+F 1= H=1—HIFFZE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (LA A & 557 )

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Revenue Wz 2 1,089,106 1,160,799
Cost of sales SHER A (551,493) (604,829)
Gross profit EX 537,613 555,970
Other income HA A 3 42,786 51,709
Selling and distribution HE RO HEFAX
expenses (153,392) (160,425)
Administrative and other TR EMEERS
operating expenses (125,671) (194,198)
Profit from operations K& RF 301,336 253,056
Finance costs ELE= V%N 4(a) (16,555) (5,848)
Profit before taxation RRBE A2 F 4 284,781 247,208
Income tax expense FRS i 5(a) (81,568) (65,519)
Profit for the year FRiaF 203,213 181,689
Attributable to: T &7 :
Equity shareholders of A AEERARER
the Company 201,883 181,689
Non-controlling interests FEERR A 1,330 -
Profit for the year FRER 203,213 181,689
“E—tEFER FERFARAAF
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——— CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (CONTINUED)

freREREMEEIXEE (18)

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-A=+—HILF)ZF
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN FEH517R)

2017 2016
—E—+tF AN
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Other comprehensive FREMZEKE
income for the year
ltem that may be reclassified RJREREEEF D IE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz HIER :
— Exchange differences on — BB R E AR SN
translation of the financial R IRE
statements of operations HIPE X =58
outside the mainland
China (2,340) (3,052)
Total comprehensive FAZEWEATE
income for the year 200,873 178,637
Attributable to: LUN& 5B
Equity shareholders of RARIERARR
the Company 199,543 178,637
Non-controlling interests FEERR A A 1,330 -
Total comprehensive FREENEARE
income for the year 200,873 178,637
Earnings per share BEREN(ARES) 8
(RMB cents)
Basic HAK 29.47 25.54
Diluted e 29.45 25.46

The notes on pages 98 to 206 form part of these financial
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in note 25(b).
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

fReImikRE

(Expressed in Renminbi) (A R #5I7)

Non-current assets

FRBEE

2017
—2—tf

RMB’000
AR®T

2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
AREET T

Property, plant and equipment 1% - = K& & 9 73,076 57,521
Interests in leasehold land KEHETHIEERZ
held for own use under MET i e
operating leases 10 23,312 23,319
Intangible assets EBEEE 11 40,218 34,848
Prepayments for acquisition ~ WRERIE M RE 2
of plant and equipment SENE/CE 9,744 =
Other loans receivable Hip e R 13 64,118 =
Deferred tax assets EETRAE E 15(b) 26,158 37,786
e 236,626| 158474
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 16 337,052 328,813
Trade and other receivables & 5 &k H b B GKIE 17 445,829 465,086
Other financial assets Hithv &g & E 18 253,159 21,400
Deposits with banks with REIFEBE=1EA
original maturity date BERITIE K
over three months 452,860 275,400
Pledged bank deposits EEFRITFRK 19 105,015 239,068
Cash and cash equivalents  3R&RIREEHEY 20 134,593 222,885
S S 1,728,508 | 1,552,652
Current liabilities REBAEE
Bank borrowings RITER 21 16,636 127,095
Trade and other payables B 5 R EMERN IR 22 590,042 555,696
Current tax payable JE 1~ BNEAT 18 15(a) 19,929 30,041
) 626,607 | 712,832
_Netcurrentassets nBEERE | 1,101,901 | 839,820
Total assets less current EELZERAHER
liabilities 1,338,527 993,294
Non-current liabilities ERBEAE
Bank borrowings RITER 21 271,461 =
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBRE 15(b) 11,770 11,577
R P 283231 | 11,577
NET ASSETS EEFE 1,055,296 981,717
—E—LFEFR FERFERAA
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——— CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (CONTINUED)

RN (18)

(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN B #%)7R)

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREFIT
CAPITAL AND RESERVES & AR & 25
Share capital LR 5,203 5,583
Reserves i 1,018,653 976,134
Total equity attributable AATEHEBRR
to equity shareholders FE(G 4R a
of the Company 1,023,856 981,717
Non-controlling interests iR AEZS 31,440 —
TOTAL EQUITY BRER 1,055,296 981,717

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 9 February 2018.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng
ROBRE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TTBABAFRATTER

The notes on pages 98 to 206 form part of these financial
statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

fASiEmREEE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 # 2 —F—+F+=-A=+—HILF)Z
(Expressed in Renminbi) (AN FEH8517R)

Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company

AARERRERL
Capital Non-
Share  Share redemption  Capital Statutory Exchange Retained controlling
capital premium  reserve reserves  reseve  reseve  profits Total interests Total
-1 FER
hx REEE HERE EtEE fERE ENRE REEN 0 £t 0 BE 45
RVMB0O0 RMBOO0 RMBIOO0 RMBO0O RMBI000 RMBIOOO RWB'000 RMB'000  RMB'OO0  RMBI000
ARETT ARETT ARMTT ARETR ARETL ARETT T ARETT ARETT
As at 1 January 2016 RZ8-AE-F- 5580 89204 - 48 8 10416 711375 896,901 - 896,901
Changes in equity RoE-7E
for 2016: NERSE
Proft for the year ERigH - - - - - - 181689 181,689 - 181689
Other comprehensive EREfEEYE
income for the year - - - - - [30%) - 30 - 3092
Totel comprehensive ERRENREE
__meomeforteyer T ToT....T......7.. 0 161689 TUBGET - - 13T
Diidend declyed ESiRE 50 ) - - - B A - )
Shares issuedl under U S
share option scherme Bkt 2500 3 811 - - - - 569 - 569
Fouiy-setted EacENRA
share-based BERNRA
fransactions 4} - - - 530 - - - 50 = 50
Approprition fo ETETRE
statutory resenves - - - - 1580 - (1980) - - -
Asat3! December 2016 M=F-1E
and 1 January 2017 +ZR=1-BR
ZE-tE-5-f 5583 4112 - T8 044 (2254 891484 981,7TH7 - W17
Changes in equity AoE-tE
for 2017: NERSE
Proft for the year Epigi| - - - - - - 0188 201883 1330 203213
Other comprehensive EREfREYE
income for the year - - - - - (%0 - 30 - (2340
Totel comprehensive ERRENREE
Ceomeforttever |t tmt M) N8 10958 130 2081
Diidend declaed REihe 0 - - - - - - @648 @M - (6419
Shares issued under REBRET
share option scheme ki 25(0)i 4 1348 - (0 - - - 052 - 952
Transler betweenreserves  FafafisA - - - W - - 40 - - -
Fquity-setfed EREENRN
hare-based BERNRS
fransactions 4b) - - - 360 - - - 360 - 360
Appropriaion fo BEATRE
statutory reserves - - - - 6161 - (6161) - - -
Shares repurchased EORk( 2500 (384) - 304 - - - (92209 (92,298 - (229
Capital injected by
non-contoling inerests  SEARERIEE - - - - - - - - N0 3010
AsatdiDecember 017 H-E-tE
+ZA=1-H 5203 6,060 B4 42308 45575 (4504) 928920 1023856 31440 1,055,206

The notes on pages 98 to 206 form part of these financial 55 98 &£ 206 B FT# M it B2 E W IR R AK
statements. o o

B LEER | FERGARLT
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———— CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

fESHENEE

for the year ended 31 December 2017 #t2 —E—+F 1= H=1—HIFZE
(Expressed in Renminbi) (XA #5117 )

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREET T
Operating activities KETER
Cash generated from operations #& & /& E TSI & 20(b) 374,344 66,307
Income tax paid AN (84,800) (79,461)
Net cash generated RESEBATE
from/(used in) (FrA)FRE
operating activities 289,544 (13,154)
Investing activities REEE
Payment for the purchase of BB « 5 &
property, plant and BLEINE
equipment (43,211) (46,292)
Payment for business ES ¢ SNEN
acquisition 12 - (2,566)
Payment for the purchase BEELEEMNK
of intangible assets (10,522) (r74)
Payment for leasehold land ~ #{EE A 2 S T
held for own use (494) (23,400)
Proceeds from disposal of HEMZE - BEK
property, plant and REFT1ERIE
equipment 2,873 685
Net (increase)/decrease of REISBEB=EA
deposits with banks with BRI TIE K
original maturity date over (3) /R FEE
three months (177,460) 13,222
Net decrease in pledged EEFRITIFR
bank deposits RAFERE 134,053 189,307
Proceeds from disposal HESREEFTSHRIE
of financial assets 21,634 62,974
Payments for the purchase BB S BVEE K
of financial assets (250,835) (74,000)
Loans to minority shareholder A1/ 81 IR E X (25,610) -
Loans to third party mE=FRRHER (63,005) -
Interest received = RIS 11,933 19,103
Net cash (used in)/ REZH (FTH) /B3R E
generated from investing
activities (400,644) 138,259
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Financing activities

Proceeds from bank

BEEE

RITERAERIA

2017
—E—tF

RMB’000
AR®T

2016
—E—RF
RMB’000
AREET T

borrowings 324,749 123,420
Repayment of bank BERITENX

borrowings (147,095) (221,727)
Dividends paid EfIRE 25(b) (66,418) (94,920)
Interest paid ERHE (15,898) (5,848)
Proceeds from issue BT FT1S RUR

of shares 25(c)(iii) 952 569
Payment of share IR BB

repurchase 25(c)(ii) (92,298) -
Capital contribution by Loy=pNE]

non-controlling interests FEER T B

of subsidiaries 30,110 -
Payment of other E M EFRACART R

borrowing cost (4,367) -
Net cash generated BMEEEBHME(FTA)

from/(use in) BES

financing activities 29,735 (198,506)
Net decrease in cash RERESEEY

and cash equivalents WA RE (81,365) (73,401)
Cash and cash equivalents A—A—HBWERER

at 1 January REEEY 222,885 294,543
Effect of foreign exchange HMNETE R E B

rate changes (6,927) 1,743
Cash and cash equivalents R®+=A=+—8H

at 31 December MRERRSEEY 20(a) 134,593 222,885

The notes on pages 98 to 206 form part of these financial

statements.
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——— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(a)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable
International Financial Reporting Standards
(“IFRSs”), which collective term includes
all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“SEHK?”). Significant accounting policies
adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised
IFRSs that are first effective or available for
early adoption for the current accounting
period of the Group. Note 1(c) provides
information on the new and revised IFRSs
that are relevant to the Group for the current
and prior accounting periods reflected in
these financial statements.

Annual Report 2017
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2017 comprise
the Company and its subsidiaries (together
referred to as the “Group”).

These financial statements are presented in
Renminbi (“RMB”), rounded to the nearest
thousand, as the Group’s principal activities
were carried out in the PRC. RMB is the
functional currency for the Company’s
subsidiaries established in the mainland
China. The functional currency of the
Company and the Company’s subsidiaries
outside the mainland China are Hong Kong
dollars.

These financial statements are prepared on
the historical cost basis except that financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets which are
stated at their fair value as explained in the
accounting policies below (note 1(f)).
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Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Basis of preparation of the
financial statements (Continued)

The preparation of financial statements in
conformity with IFRSs requires management
to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the application of
policies and reported amounts of assets,
liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions
are based on historical experience and
various other factors that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances, the
results of which form the basis of making the
judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ
from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions
are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in
the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

Judgements made by management in the
application of IFRSs that have significant
effect on the financial statements and
major sources of estimation uncertainty are
discussed in note 29.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(c)

New and revised IFRSs that are
first effective for the current
accounting period

The IASB has issued several amendments
to IFRSs that are first effective for the current
accounting period of the Group. However,
additional disclosure has been included
in note 20(c) to satisfy the new disclosure
requirements introduced by the amendments
to IAS 7, Statement of cash flows: Disclosure
initiative, which require entities to provide
disclosures that enable users of financial
statements to evaluate changes in liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-
cash changes.

The Group has not applied any new standard
or interpretation that is not yet effective for
the current accounting period.
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Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the
Group. The Group controls an entity when
it is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Group has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Group and
other parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements
from the date that control commences until
the date that control ceases. Intra-group
balances, transactions and cash flows and
any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealised losses resulting from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in the same way
as unrealised gains but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Subsidiaries and non-controlling
interests (Continued)

Non-controlling interests represent the equity
in a subsidiary not attributable directly or
indirectly to the Company, and in respect
of which the Group has not agreed any
additional terms with the holders of those
interests which would result in the Group
as a whole having a contractual obligation
in respect of those interests that meets the
definition of a financial liability. For each
business combination, the Group can elect to
measure any non-controlling interests either
at fair value or at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

Non-controlling interests are presented
in the consolidated statement of financial
position within equity, separately from equity
attributable to the equity shareholders of the
Company. Non-controlling interests in the
results of the Group are presented on the
face of the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as an
allocation of the total profit or loss and total
comprehensive income for the year between
non-controlling interests and the equity
shareholders of the Company.

In the Company's statement of financial
position, an investment in a subsidiary is
stated at cost less impairment losses (note

1(1).
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Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(e)

(f)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Goodwill
Goodwill represents the excess of

(i) the aggregate of the fair value of the
consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of the
group’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree; over

(i) the net fair value of the acquiree’s
identifiable assets and liabilities
measured as at the acquisition date.

When (i) is greater than (i), then this excess is
recognised immediately in profit or loss as a
gain on a bargain purchase.

Goodwill is stated at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Goodwill arising on a
business combination is allocated to each
cash-generating unit, or groups of cash
generating units, that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination and is
tested annually for impairment (see note 1())).

On disposal of a cash generating unit
during the year, any attributable amount
of purchased goodwill is included in the
calculation of the profit or loss on disposal.

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets

(i) Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are initially stated at fair
value, which is their transaction price
unless fair value can be more reliably
estimated using valuation techniques
whose variables include only data from
observable markets. Cost includes
attributable transaction cost.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(f)

(9)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss and
available-for-sale financial assets
(Continued)

(i)

(i)

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Continued)
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss are classified as current
assets. Any attributable transaction
costs are recognised in profit or loss as
incurred. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured,
with any resultant gain or loss being
recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
does not include any interest earned
on these financial assets as these are
recognised in accordance with the
policies set out in note 1 (u)(ii).

Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are
initially stated at fair value plus any
directly attributable transaction costs.
Interest income from these financial
assets is recognised using the effective
interest method in profit or loss in
accordance with the policy set out
in note 1(u)(ii). When these financial
assets are derecognised or impaired
(note 1(l), the cumulative gain or loss is
reclassified from equity to profit or loss.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At the end of each reporting
period the fair value is remeasured. The gain
or loss on remeasurement to fair value is
recognised immediately in profit or loss, except
where the derivatives qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting or hedge the net investment
in a foreign operation, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the
nature of the item being hedged.
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Property, plant and equipment

The following items of property, plant
and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment
losses (note 1(1)):

- buildings held for own use which are
situated on leasehold land classified as
held under operating leases (see note
1(); and

- other items of plant and equipment.

The cost of self-constructed items of
property, plant and equipment includes the
cost of materials, direct labour, the initial
estimate, where relevant, of the costs of
dismantling and removing the items and
restoring the site on which they are located,
and an appropriate proportion of production
overheads and borrowing costs (note 1(w)).

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress.

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment,
less their estimated residual value, if any,
using the straight-line method over their
estimated useful lives as follows:

= Buildings situated on leasehold land
are depreciated over the shorter of the
unexpired term of lease and their estimated
useful lives, being no more than 50 years
after the date of completion.

- Leasehold Shorter of 3 -5 years
improvements or remaining term

of the lease

- Plant and machinery 5-10 years
- Motor vehicles 4 -5 years
- Furniture, fixtures 3 -5 years

and equipment
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

)

Property, plant and equipment
(Continued)

Both the useful life of an asset and its residual
value, if any, are reviewed annually.

Gains or losses arising from the retirement
or disposal of an item of property, plant and
equipment are determined as the difference
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the item and are
recognised in profit or loss on the date of
retirement or disposal.

Interests in leasehold land held for
own use under operating leases

Interests in leasehold land held for own use
under operating leases represent cost of
acquiring land use rights paid to the PRC’s
governmental authorities. Land use rights are
stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses (see note 1(l)(ii)).
Amortisation is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease
term of the right which is 48 years.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets that are acquired by the
Group are stated at cost less accumulated
amortisation (where the estimated useful life
is finite) and impairment losses (note 1(l)).

Amortisation of intangible assets with finite
useful lives is charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the assets’ estimated
useful lives. The following intangible assets
with finite useful lives are amortised from
the date they are available for use and their
estimated useful lives are as follows:

Computer software 5-10 years
Distribution network
and trademark 20 years
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

@)

(k)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Both the period and method of amortisation
are reviewed annually.

Intangible assets are not amortised while their
useful lives are assessed to be indefinite. Any
conclusion that the useful life of an intangible
asset is indefinite is reviewed annually to
determine whether events and circumstances
continue to support the indefinite useful life
assessment for that asset. If they do not,
the change in the useful life assessment
from indefinite to finite is accounted for
prospectively from the date of change and in
accordance with the policy for amortisation
of intangible assets with finite lives as set out
above.

Operating lease charges

Leases which do not transfer substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership to the
Group are classified as operating leases.
Where the Group has the use of assets
held under operating leases, payments
made under the leases are charged to
profit or loss in equal instalments over the
accounting periods covered by the lease
terms, except where an alternative basis is
more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the leased asset. Lease
incentives received are recognised in profit or
loss as an integral part of the aggregate net
lease payments made. Contingent rentals are
charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment of assets

(i) Impairment of investments in
debt securities and receivables
Investments in debt securities and
receivables that are stated at cost or
amortised cost or are classified as
available-for-sale financial assets are
reviewed at the end of each reporting
period to determine whether there
is objective evidence of impairment.
Objective evidence of impairment
includes observable data that comes
to the attention of the Group about one
or more of the following loss events:

- significant financial difficulty of

the debtor;

- a breach of contract, such as a
default or delinquency in interest
or principal payments;

= it becoming probable that the
debtor will enter bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

and

- significant changes in the
technological, market, economic
or legal environment that have
an adverse effect on the debtor.

If any such evidence exists, any
impairment loss is determined and

recognised as follows:
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in
debt securities and receivables
(Continued)

- For trade and other receivables
carried at amortised cost, the
impairment loss is measured as
the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash
flows, discounted at the financial
asset’s original effective interest
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate
computed at initial recognition of
these assets), where the effect
of discounting is material. This
assessment is made collectively
where these financial assets share
similar risk characteristics, such as
similar past due status, and have
not been individually assessed
as impaired. Future cash flows
for financial assets which
are assessed for impairment
collectively are based on historical
loss experience for assets with
credit risk characteristics similar to
the collective group.
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTEHEXR®)
POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EERE®R
() Impairment of investments in () EEIFHFREREWRX
debt securities and receivables ERE (&)
(Continued)

If in a subsequent period the

W EZERB - W

amount of an impairment loss BEEBEERD
decreases and the decrease can A LA B8
be linked objectively to an event b, B2 7 1 SRR 1B /S

occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised, the

BREEN S
2. AlRESES

impairment loss is reversed FRBRBEE R
through profit or loss. A reversal BEEBERLENEE
of an impairment loss shall not BEEREMEBRL
result in the asset’s carrying e B 1 F 2 I & 1
amount exceeding that which RREEBEENER
would have been determined TREEENEE -
had no impairment loss been

recognised in prior years.

For available-for-sale financial - FATHLEE SR
assets, the cumulative loss that EE ERAFE
has been recognised in the FEERNRFTE
fair value reserve is reclassified BEF»EERE
to profit or loss. The amount me RIERERL
of the cumulative loss that is ZHEE2BAK
recognised in profit or loss B (0B A A

is the difference between
the acquisition cost (net of

i%/%&%fﬁ>/\m
A A F1EZ Z5 R

any principal repayment and EEAIRNEBERER
amortisation) and current fair EEMETRRES
value, less any impairment o
loss on that asset previously
recognised in profit or loss.
“E—tEFER FERFARAAF 111



112

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of investments in
debt securities and receivables
(Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Impairment losses are written
off against the corresponding
assets directly, except for
impairment losses recognised
in respect of trade and bills
receivables included within
trade and other receivables,
whose recovery is considered
doubtful but not remote. In this
case, the impairment losses
for doubtful debts are recorded
using an allowance account.
When the Group is satisfied that
recovery is remote, the amount
considered irrecoverable
is written off against trade
and bills receivables directly
and any amounts held in the
allowance account relating
to that debt are reversed.
Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously charged
to the allowance account are
reversed against the allowance
account. Other changes in
the allowance account and
subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off
directly are recognised in profit
or loss.
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii)

Impairment of other assets
Internal and external sources of
information are reviewed at the end
of each reporting period to identify
indications that the following assets
may be impaired or, except in the
case of goodwill, an impairment loss
previously recognised no longer exists
or may have decreased:

property, plant and equipment;

- pre-paid interests in leasehold
land classified as being held
under an operating lease;

- construction in progress;
- intangible assets;
- goodwill; and

- investments in subsidiaries in
the Company’s statement of
financial position.

If any such indication exists, the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. In
addition, for goodwill and intangible
assets that have indefinite useful lives,
the recoverable amount is estimated
annually whether or not there is any
indication of impairment.
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(i) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Calculation of recoverable
amount

The recoverable amount of an
asset is the greater of its fair
value less costs of disposal and
value in use. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future
cash flows are discounted to
their present value using a pre-
tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments
of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the
asset. Where an asset does not
generate cash inflows largely
independent of those from other
assets, the recoverable amount
is determined for the smallest
group of assets that generates
cash inflows independently (i.e.
a cash-generating unit).

Annual Report 2017

1

FESHBE®)

)

EERE#®)

(i)

HitEERE(Z)

ArEARE SR

BEMANE S
RERNFEREE
RAEEREBEEZ
MRS E - R&F
mEREER &
AARKRRERET
R R IR T 15
HEERREER
BERFERBRNT
EEREEES
HREHBE - WE
EMELBRSR
ANE LB
HitvEEMELR
BHamA - Rptee
BYELRERA
B/ NEEEH R (B
ReELBEM)EBE
RIS



1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 1 FESTBEER®
POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued) ) EERE®R
(i) Impairment of other assets (i) HttEEREGE)
(Continued)
= Recognition of impairment - R EEE
losses
An impairment loss is MEEXEMBIR
recognised in profit or loss if the ELEBEUMNERE

carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to
which it belongs, exceeds its
recoverable amount. Impairment
losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are
allocated first to reduce the
carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the cash-generating
unit (or group of units) and then,
to reduce the carrying amount
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B AR B R
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EBEEEELEI R
ERIZREEL
B (BB
P& 5 B 2 (E AT 7
BHEREE Hi®
2B ER B D
B (e

of the other assets in the unit i) REMEEMNER
(or group of units) on a pro rata HE ' HEEMNKR
basis, except that the carrying HETEREER
value of an asset will not be HAFEDREE
reduced below its individual fair XA (RRREET =) 3K
value less costs of disposal (if FTREE(NEE
measurable) or value in use (if JE) °

determinable).
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)
() Impairment of assets (Continued)

(ii) Impairment of other assets
(Continued)

Reversals of impairment losses

In respect of assets other than
goodwill, an impairment loss
is reversed if there has been
a favourable change in the
estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss in respect of
goodwill is not reversed.

A reversal of an impairment loss
is limited to the asset’s carrying
amount that would have been
determined had no impairment
loss been recognised in prior
years. Reversals of impairment
losses are credited to profit or
loss in the year in which the
reversals are recognised.

(m) Inventories

Inventories are carried at the lower of cost
and net realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the weighted
average cost formula and comprises all costs
of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to
their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less
the estimated costs of completion and the
estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(m)

(n)

Inventories (Continued)

When inventories are sold, the carrying
amount of those inventories is recognised as
an expense in the period in which the related
revenue is recognised. The amount of any
write down of inventories to net realisable
value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the
write-down or loss occurs. The amount of
any reversal of any write-down of inventories
is recognised as a reduction in the amount of
inventories recognised as an expense in the
period in which the reversal occurs.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (note 1(l)), except where the
receivables are interest-free loans made to
related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment
of doubtful debts.
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(o)

(p)

(q)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable
transaction costs. Subsequent to initial
recognition, interest-bearing borrowings are
stated at amortised cost with any difference
between the amount initially recognised and
redemption value being recognised in profit
or loss over the period of the borrowings,
together with any interest and fees payable,
using the effective interest method.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are initially
recognised at fair value and subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which
case they are stated at cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and on hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(r)

Employee benefits

(i)

(ii)

Short term employee benefits
and contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans
Salaries, annual bonuses, paid
annual leave, contributions to defined
contribution retirement plans and
the cost of non-monetary benefits
are accrued in the year in which the
associated services are rendered
by employees. Where payment or
settlement is deferred and the effect
would be material, these amounts are
stated at their present values.

Contributions to appropriate local
defined contribution retirement
schemes pursuant to the relevant
labour rules and regulations in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”)
are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as incurred.

Share-based payments

The fair value of share options granted
to employees is recognised as an
employee cost with a corresponding
increase in a capital reserve within
equity. The fair value is measured at
grant date using the binomial option
pricing model, taking into account
the terms and conditions upon
which the options were granted.
Where the employees have to meet
vesting conditions before becoming
unconditionally entitled to the options,
the total estimated fair value of the
options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the
probability that the options will vest.
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(r)

Employee benefits (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Share-based payments
(Continued)

During the vesting period, the number
of share options that is expected
to vest is reviewed. Any resulting
adjustment to the cumulative fair
value recognised in prior years is
charged/credited to the profit or loss
for the year of the review, unless the
original employee expenses qualify
for recognition as an asset, with a
corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the
amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of
options that vest (with a corresponding
adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions
that relate to the market price of the
Company’s shares. The equity amount
is recognised in the capital reserve until
either the option is exercised (when
it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it
is released directly to retained profits).

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised
at the earlier of when the group can
no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when it recognises
restructuring costs involving the
payment of termination benefits.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax

Income tax for the year comprises current
tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities. Current tax and movements
in deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognised in profit or loss except to the
extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of
tax are recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on
the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period, and any adjustment
to tax payable in respect of previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities arise from
deductible and taxable temporary differences
respectively, being the differences between
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
for financial reporting purposes and their tax
bases. Deferred tax assets also arise from
unused tax losses and unused tax credits.
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

1

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

All deferred tax liabilities, and all deferred
tax assets to the extent that it is probable
that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilised, are
recognised. Future taxable profits that may
support the recognition of deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences
include those that will arise from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences,
provided those differences relate to the same
taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse either in
the same period as the expected reversal
of the deductible temporary difference or in
periods into which a tax loss arising from
the deferred tax asset can be carried back
or forward. The same criteria are adopted
when determining whether existing taxable
temporary differences support the recognition
of deferred tax assets arising from unused tax
losses and credits, that is, those differences
are taken into account if they relate to the
same taxation authority and the same taxable
entity, and are expected to reverse in a
period, or periods, in which the tax loss or
credit can be utilised.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

The amount of deferred tax recognised is
measured based on the expected manner
of realisation or settlement of the carrying
amount of the assets and liabilities, using tax
rates enacted or substantively enacted at the
end of reporting period. Deferred tax assets
and liabilities are not discounted.

The carrying amount of a deferred tax asset
is reviewed at the end of each reporting
period and is reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow the related
tax benefit to be utilised. Any such reduction
is reversed to the extent that it becomes
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available.

Additional income taxes that arise from the
distribution of dividends are recognised when
the liability to pay the related dividends is
recognised.

Current tax balances and deferred tax
balances, and movements therein, are
presented separately from each other and
are not offset. Current tax assets are offset
against current tax liabilities, and deferred
tax assets against deferred tax liabilities, if
the Group has the legally enforceable right
to set off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the following additional
conditions are met:
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Income tax (Continued)

- in the case of current tax assets and
liabilities, the Group intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise
the asset and settle the liability

simultaneously; or

- in the case of deferred tax assets and
liabilities, if they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority

on either:

- the same taxable entity; or

- different taxable entities,
which, in each future period in
which significant amounts of
deferred tax liabilities or assets
are expected to be settled or
recovered, intend to realise the
current tax assets and settle
the current tax liabilities on a
net basis or realise and settle

simultaneously.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(t)

(u)

Provisions and contingent
liabilities

Provisions are recognised for other liabilities
of uncertain timing or amount when the
Group or the Company has a legal or
constructive obligation arising as a result of
a past event, it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can
be made. Where the time value of money is
material, provisions are stated at the present
value of the expenditure expected to settle
the obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required, or the
amount cannot be estimated reliably, the
obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability,
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by
the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more future events are also disclosed as
contingent liabilities unless the probability of
outflow of economic benefits is remote.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable. Provided
it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Group and the revenue and
costs, if applicable, can be measured reliably,
revenue is recognised in profit or loss as
follows:

(i) Sale of goods
Revenue is recognised when the
customer has accepted the related
risks and rewards of ownership.
Revenue represented the sales value
of goods sold less returns, discounts,
rebates and value added tax (“VAT”).
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(u) Revenue recognition (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it
accrues using the effective interest
method.

E-commerce service income
E-commerce service income is
recognised when the consigned goods
from distributors sold through the
Group’s online shops are delivered and
accepted by end customers.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised
in the statement of financial position
initially when there is reasonable
assurance that they will be received
and that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching to them.
Grants that compensate the Group
for expenses incurred are recognised
as revenue in profit or loss on a
systematic basis in the same year
in which the expenses are incurred.
Grants that compensate the Group for
the cost of an asset are deducted from
the carrying amount of the asset and
consequently are effectively recognised
in profit or loss over the useful lives
of the asset by way of reduced
depreciation expense.

Unconditional discretionary government
grants from the local municipal
government authorities are recognised
in the profit or loss as other revenue
when the amount is received.
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

v)

Translation of foreign currencies

Foreign currency transactions during the year
are translated at the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the transaction dates. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are translated at the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. Exchange gains and losses are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that
are measured in terms of historical cost
in a foreign currency are translated using
the foreign exchange rates ruling at the
transaction dates.

The results of operations outside mainland
China are translated into Renminbi at the
average exchange rates for the year which
approximating the foreign exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions.
Statement of financial position items are
translated into Renminbi at the closing foreign
exchange rates ruling at the end of reporting
period. The resulting exchange differences
are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated separately in equity
in the exchange reserve.

On disposal of an operation outside mainland
China, the cumulative amount of the
exchange differences relating to that foreign
operation is reclassified from equity to profit
or loss when the profit or loss on disposal is
recognised.
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(w)

(x)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition, construction or production
of an asset which necessarily takes a
substantial period of time to get ready for its
intended use or sale are capitalised as part of
the cost of that asset. Other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Research and development

Expenditure on research activities is
recognised as an expense in the year
in which it is incurred. Expenditure on
development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has
sufficient resources and the intention to
complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the cost of materials,
direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
overheads. Other development expenditure is
recognised as an expense in the year which it
is incurred.

Annual Report 2017
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1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Related parties

(@)

A person, or a close member of that
person’s family, is related to the Group
if that person:

M

(i)

(i)

has control or joint control over
the Group;

has significant influence over the
Group; or

is a member of the key
management personnel of the
Group or the Group’s parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any
of the following conditions applies:

()

(i)

The entity and the Group are
members of the same Group
(which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary
is related to the others).

One entity is an associate or
joint venture of the other entity
(or an associate or joint venture
of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures
of the same third party.

1
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

1  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

(y) Related parties (Continued)

(b) (Continued)
(ivy  One entity is a joint venture of a
third entity and the other entity
is an associate of the third entity.

(V) The entity is a post-employment
benefit plan for the benefit of
employees of either the Group
or an entity related to the Group.

(vl The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified
in (a).

(vij A person identified in (a)(i) has
significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of
the entity (or of a parent of the
entity).

(viil  The entity, or any member of
a group of which it is a part,
provides key management
personnel services to the Group
or to the Group’s parent.

Close family members of an individual are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that
individual in their dealings with the entity.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Continued)

()

Segment reporting

Operating segments, and the amounts of
each segment item reported in the financial
statements, are identified from the financial
statements provided regularly to the Group’s
most senior executive management for the
purposes of allocating resources to, and
assessing the performance of the Group’s
various lines of business and geographical
locations.

Individually material operating segments
are not aggregated for financial reporting
purposes unless the segments have similar
economic characteristics and are similar
in respect of the nature of products and
services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods
used to distribute the products or provide
the services, and the nature of the regulatory
environment. Operating segments which are
not individually material may be aggregated if
they share a majority of these criteria.

The Group operates in a single segment of
sale of menswear goods. Accordingly, no
segmental analysis is presented.

1
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

2 REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are the sale of
apparel and related accessories. It mainly sells its
products to wholesale and consignment distributors.

The amount of each significant category of revenue

i

AEENE R SHEIRE KA
HEEHEEMAE THHRAHEDH
?:ﬁ o

EEBWS BRI SRR

is as follows:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —ZT—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T

Sale of apparel and AR &AL EMEHE
related accessories 1,089,106 1,147,374
E-commerce service income BFRHERIFUA - 13,425
1,089,106 1,160,799

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group repurchased products from certain wholesale
distributors at a consideration of RMB73,608,000
(2016: RMB59,004,000). The amount of
RMB73,608,000 (RMB59,004,000) was deducted
from the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31
December 2017. Those products repurchased would
be sold through distributors on consignment basis.
Revenue from sale of products on consignment are
recognized when products are sold to customers at
the retalil stores or on internet.

During the year ended 31 December 2017, the
Group had three (2016: one) customers with whom
transactions have exceeded 10% of the Group’s
revenue. The amount of sales to these customers
during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
RMB358,045,000 (2016: RMB128,336,000). Details
of concentrations of credit risk arising from these
customers are set out in note 26(a).
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HE-_T—+tF+_A=+—HLHF
g AEERE AR 73,608,000 7T
(ZZF—RF : AR¥ 59,004,000 7T) A
ETHE S EEEDERTERAEE
HE_ZT—+F+-_A=+—RBILFE
Z Wk AR ¥ 73,608,000 7T (A
R #59,004,0007T) ° FrEEEIMZEE
miSEBDHEEARE A HEE - R
EmZBERERERENTSEEH
A LHETRERER o

HE-_T—ttF+-A=+—HIHF
B AKBHE=F(ZZ—X F: —%)
EEMRSBHAEBRZAI10% °
HE-_ZET—+tF+=-A=+—H1
FERNZEEFPNEEEARARE
358,045,000 (=T —RF : AR¥K
128,336,0007T) - BHZEREFEA
HEFEERBRFFBEH NI 26()



OTHER INCOME 3 HigA
2017 2016
—E—tF —EF—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETF T
Interest income MEMA 13,515 14,577
Government grants (i) T8 (i) 13,909 29,711
Net gain on sale of promotion HEHRE METR
and display materials ME R F = 1,347 621
Net foreign exchange gain/(oss)  4MEURES, (E518) F5E 9,089 (2,537)
Net loss on disposal of HEME - BER
property, plant and equipment  RIEREIEF 5B (3,236) (2,174)
Net fair value gain on financial RN EF AR
assets at fair value through TREENATE
profit or loss Fllas 2,323 =
Investment income on AtEHECRIEED
available-for-sale financial FERA
assets 234 374
Others HAt 5,605 11,137
42,786 51,709
Note: Mt

(0} Government grants in the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017 represented unconditional cash awards
granted by government authorities.
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

134

4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 4 BRBIADZEA
Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/ BRBIATRFE B (T A)
(crediting):
2017 2016
—E—F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARET T
(a) Finance costs & A
Interest on bank RITERAER
borrowings and RITHAN ZRIRRIR
discounting of
bank acceptance bills 16,555 5,848
(b) Staff costs BIRAK
Contributions to defined AT HFERREE
contribution retirement R (Fi7E23)
plans (note 23) 5,158 6,096
Equity settled share-based 1z E AR A&
payment expenses AR RAZ
(note 24) (fg5E24) 360 530
Termination benefits BHR BN 3,826 4,324
Salaries, wages and other & « TE RKHEMEF
benefits 70,412 93,918
79,756 104,868

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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4

PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (Continued) 4

Profit before taxation is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

(c) Otheritems

Amortisation
— land lease premium
— intangible assets
Depreciation
(Reversal of)/
Impairment losses
— trade and
other receivables
— intangible assets
— goodwill
Operating lease charges
in respect of properties
— minimum lease
payments
— contingent rentals
Auditors’ remuneration
Research and
development cost (note)
Cost of inventories
(note 16(b))

HbHE

B

- THHEE M

- BIPERE

e

(@),

HEE1R

- B 5 MEAD IR

-BIPRE

- g

NS YEL Sy
HEEHM

- RIEHERK
-SEME
ZEEN I =

FI RS (ML)

FERKA (FIEE 16(0))

BRFLAT A ()

BEAnaMER, (GEA)

2017
—E—tF

RMB’000
AR®T T

501
5,313
11,805

(13,957)

18,256
5,503
3,241

27,224

585,327

2016
—E-RF
RMB’000
AREFIT

81
4,607
15,265

13,957
2,125
780

34,265
19,592

3,604
43,871

617,998

Note:

For the year ended 31 December 2017, research and
development costs include staff costs of employees in the design,
research and development department of RMB17,961,000
(2016: RMB24,678,000) which are included in the staff costs as

disclosed in note 4(b).

BE-_Z—+F+-A=1+—HILFE - {ER
AR BIERT MELFAZELMEENET
KAANRE 17,961,000 (T —RF : AR

24,678,0007T) *+ BRI AT 4(b) FTIXEE

TRAR -

—E—LFEER
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

5 INCOME TAX IN THE 5 HZEEBZRTHIASESH
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS

(@) Income tax in the consolidated (a) HZEBRZXRTPHAMEHIE
statement of profit or loss
represents:

2017 2016
—E—+tF —F-RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETIT
Current tax BPER T I8
PRC corporate AR B 1 S FTISA5 (iif)
income tax (iii) 59,847 68,019
Hong Kong Profits Tax (i) ~ &&FISH (ii) 682 2,411
Under provision BEFENRETR
in respect of prior years 1,417 1,034
PRC withholding tax A TR AR
— dividend (iv) - BB (iv) 7,400 9,000
— others - Hh 401 2,280
69,747 82,744
Deferred tax ELEBIE
Origination and reversal 4 N B O 2 R5 15
of temporary =¥ (M5 15(0))
differences (note 15(b)) 11,821 (17,225)
81,568 65,519
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INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

(@) Income tax in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss
represents: (Continued)

Notes:

(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the
Cayman Islands and the British Virgin Islands
(“BVI"), the Group is not subject to any income
tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

(i) For the years ended 31 December 2017 and
2016, the provision for Hong Kong Profits
Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the estimated
assessable profits for the year.

(iii) Guangzhou Zixi Enterprise Management Co.,
Ltd (“Zixi”) is recognised as a High and New
Technology Enterprise (“‘HNTE”) and is entitled
to a preferential income tax rate of 15% effective
from 2015. Except for Zixi, the statutory income
tax rate applicable to the Company’s other
subsidiaries in mainland China is 25%.

(iv) Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law
and its related regulations, non-PRC-resident
enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10%
(unless reduced by tax treaties/arrangements) on
dividends receivable from PRC enterprises for
profits earned since 1 January 2008. In addition,
under the Arrangement between the Mainland of
China and the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region for the Avoidance of Double Taxation and
the Prevention of Fiscal Evasion with respect to
Taxes on Income and its relevant regulations, a
qualified Hong Kong tax resident will be liable
for withholding tax at the rate of 5% for dividend
income derived from the PRC if the Hong Kong
tax resident is the “beneficial owner” and holds
25% or more of the equity interests of the PRC
company. Deferred tax liabilities have been
provided for based on the expected dividends
to be distributed from these subsidiaries in
the foreseeable future in respect of the profits
generated since 1 January 2008. The Group
adopted the 5% withholding tax rate for PRC
withholding tax purpose since 5 August 2017.

5
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(i

(iv)
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
PROFIT OR LOSS (Continued)

5

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(b)

Reconciliation between tax
expense and accounting profit at

applicable tax rates:

REBRBERPIRENR @)

(b)

BRI > SRR TE AR R E

MEHEF KR :

2017 2016
—E—tHF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFT
Profit before taxation BR A5 A A 284,781 247,208
Notional tax on profit REARSHBER
before taxation, BER KT E R
calculated at the Br A BT A Y
standard tax rates HERMIE
applicable to the
respective tax
jurisdictions 71,834 62,007
Effect of non-deductible ~ NAJHIFHA X MFE
expenses 2,369 883
Effect of non-taxable BAGRIRARE
income (401) (164)
Effect of tax losses not RERTRIBEENTE
recognised 1,879 4,601
Utilisation of previously AR E R ERTIEEE
unrecognised tax
losses (508) (14)
Statutory tax concession  JAE IR R (1,966) (10,301)
Under provision BEFERN
in prior years BETE 1,417 1,034
PRC dividend A B AR B TR AR
withholding tax (MI7E15(b))
(Note 15(b)) 6,543 5,193
Other withholding tax HEIEn 401 2,280
Actual tax expense ERMIER X 81,568 65,519

Annual Report 2017



6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6 EEEHM

The details of directors’ emoluments are disclosed EEHFMFBHENT ¢
as follows:

Salaries, Equity-settied

allowances Retirement share-based

Directors’ and benefits Discretionary ~ scheme payments
fee inkind  bonuses contributions  Sub-total (note)

HRHA

LER ERibE

RER Biferd BANR —2-tF
Exhe RUEN  BERL 3 i) it
RMB0O0  RMB'000  RMBIOO0  RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMB'000  RMBY000
ARBTR ARRTT ARMTR ARMTZ ARMTR ARRTI ARETR

Executive directors UrEs

M. Ziming Yang e ik - 16 - 15 3 - 31
Mr. Siu Keung Ng ROBEE 138 247 47 37 469 - 469
M. Rongain Ke TRSEE 172 189 53 2 443 3 476
Mr. Qiang Wei L 168 145 42 2 3 - 3
Independent BUEHTES

non-executive directors

M. Yung Kiwok Toui XA i 311 - - - 311 - 311
Mr. Honghui Chen REBSEE 281 - - - 281 - 281
Mr. Ming Shu Leung Pl ik 3 - - - 311 - 3
Total @t 1,381 597 142 103 2,228 3 2,256
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——— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

6 DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 6 EEHM e
(Continued)

Salaries, Equity-settled
allowances Retirement share-based
Directors’  and benefits - Discretionary scheme payments 2016
fee inkind ~ hbonuses contributions  Sub-total (note) Total
HRIAR

e B

2R Riferal R
gshe  ENEN  BRRC 3% IS
RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOOO

ARBTT ARETR ARMTR ARETT ARETL ARETR

Executive directors yrEs

M. Ziming Yang FEBEE 324 588 - 7 989 - 989
Mr. Siu Keung Ng RPE%E 367 600 30 56 1,083 I 1,124
Mr. Dongliang Tian (Note) ~ FRERSC4 (HisE) 72 160 - 8 240 11 251
Mr. Rongain Ke FRE 378 549 - 24 951 55 1,006
Mr. Qiang Wei Ly 378 615 - 23 1,016 55 1,071
Independent BUEHTES
non-executive directors
M. Yung Kok Tl RAREE 312 - - - 312 - 312
Mr. Honghui Chen BRRBLE 282 - - - 282 - 282
Mr. Ming Shu Leung 2L 312 - - - 312 - 312
Total @t 2,425 2512 30 188 5,155 192 5,347
Note: Btk -
Mr. Dongliang Tian resigned as an executive director with effect HRBRAEEEE T —RF=H — BB ENT
from 1 March 2016. BEEo
These represent the estimated value of share options granted ZESBEREARRZERETERNESRLY
to the directors under the Company’s share option schemes. HEIRENEFHEE - ZSBERENBETIRE
The value of these share options is measured according to 5T 1()(i) BT A SR B sk AR (D BER AR R 5 H
the Group’s accounting policies for share based payment FETBURIMETE ©

transactions as set out in note 1(r)(ii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal ZEBYENFE  BEEZEBRRRAE L ER
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed under the BHEERESERS [BRETE | —B R
paragraph “Share Option Schemes” in Report of The Directors 24 %5 FE -

and note 24.
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INDIVIDUAL WITH HIGHEST 7
EMOLUMENTS

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
none (2016: none) are directors whose emoluments
are disclosed in note 6 above. The aggregate of the
emoluments in respect of the remaining individuals
are as follows:

REFHMAL

TEEERTMALH  BE(ZZE—X
F:ORB)ES  WERFMRN XM
FEOHEER o BTN EBIA T HYE BN ARFE 40
o

2017 2016

—E—+tF —E—XRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Salaries and other emoluments ¥ & Fz 4t 5 A 3,949 7,581

Contributions to retirement BRIREAET BT

benefit scheme 74 168

Discretionary bonus FIBTEAL 871 1,233
Equity settled share-based VARR 10 B B R MO R A

payments HEENR 60 149

4,954 9,131

The emoluments of the five (2016: five) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following
bands:

B (ZE—RF: AR ESFMAL
EYE B T T PSR

2017 2016

—2-tF —TRF

Number of Number of

individuals individuals

A¥ AE

HK$500,000 to HK$1,000,000 500,000 7T = 1,000,000 7T 2 _
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7T £ 1,500,000 7T 1

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T 2 1

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T 2,500,000 7T = _

HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 87T 3,000,000 87T - 1

HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T 2 3,500,000 7T - 1

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

8 EARNINGS PER SHARE 8 BREF
(a) Basic earnings per share (@ EBREXRZEF
The calculation of basic earnings per BRERBFTIAFERNRMNA
share is based on the profit for the year of K % 203,213,000t ( = & — /<
RMB203,213,000 (2016: RMB181,689,000) F: AR ®181,689,0007T ) &
and the weighted average number of FAME FITEBRINETH
689,547,000 ordinary shares (2016: £0689,547,000% (= F — /R F :
711,331,000) in issue during the year, 711,331,000% ) & E £ & 10
calculated as follows: ™

Issued ordinary shares at HW—H—HHEEITEBR

1 January 711,478 711,148
Effect of share options IEERENTE

exercised (note 25(c)ii))  (FIFE 25(c)ii)) 244 183
Effect of shares BRRHOZE

repurchased (M &E 25(c)i))

(note 25(c)(ii) (22,175) -

Weighted average number A+ —H=+—HH
of ordinary shares T m AR N T H 8
at 31 December 689,547 711,331
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8 EARNINGS PER SHARE (Continued) 8 HBRERN®

(b)

Diluted earnings per share (b)

For the year ended 31 December 2017,
the calculation of diluted earnings per
share is based on the profit for the year of
RMB203,213,000 (2016: RMB181,689,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares of 690,042,000 shares (2016:
713,584,000), calculated as follows:

FREFRR

HE-ZT—+F+=-_A=+—H
IEFE  SRESRFTIAFEA
i A A R #203,213,000 T ( =&
— N AR¥181,689,0007T)
N B A% N 1928 690,042,000
A& (== —7<4F : 713,584,000 A% )

REETEIT

Weighted average number A+ —-A=+—H
of ordinary shares B 3 R N X5 E

at 31 December 689,547 711,331
Effect of deemed issue of  R{EIRIEA A R ERTE

shares under the NERBEITRDHTZE

Company’s share option  (Fff5£24)

scheme for nil

consideration (note 24) 495 2,253
Weighted average number A+—=-A=+—H

of ordinary shares I AR I 1T 2K

(diluted) at 31 December (%) 690,042 713,584

The effect of the Company’s share options
was dilutive for the year ended 31 December
2016 and 2017.

BEZZ - R"FRZF—LtHF
TZA=+—HLLFE  ARA
BREZ EMARRELE -

—E—LFEER
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——— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND 9 WYX BERSRKE
EQUIPMENT

Furniture,
Leasehold  Plantand Motor fixtures and Construction
improvements  machinery vehicles  equipment  in progress Total

Bl %E

BENRRE  RERASR nE O Rk HBIE i
RMBOOO  RMBOOO ~ RMBOOO  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBIOO
ARRTR  ARMTT ARMTR ARRTT ARETT  ARETR

Cost: A

At 1 January 2016 ®=2-7£-f-H 34,627 1,401 11,501 24276 778 72,583
Addtions AE 6,374 5 - 7% 38,658 45773
Disposals hif5 (3959) - (279) 219) (169) (4,614
Transfer B - - - 1,265 (1,265) -
Exchange adjustment iR 19 - 9 14 - 132
At 31 December 2016 RZF- ET-Az1-A

and 1 January 2017 R=2-t£-A-H 37,067 1,406 11,321 26,078 002 113874
Addtions RE 868 79 3 4392 27423 33532
Disposals i3 (11,307) - (294) (476) - (12,077)
Transer g 1,730 40,851 = 2 (42,605) -
Exchange adjustment [E 8% (20) = (107) (16) - (143
_ At31 Decemoer 2017 REBLF12AZT-B 2838 43083 1098 ¢ 0002 22820 135186
Accumulated depreciation:  RaHE :

A 1 January 2016 R_Z-5-A-H 14,119 600 9,646 18,401 - 42,766
Charge for the year Efvi 11,357 214 384 3310 - 15,265
Writtenback on disposals (& (1,353) - (265) (137) - (1,755)
Exchange adjustment 5 AR 19 - 5 5 - 7

At 31 December 2016 RZE-"E+-A=t-H
-A-H

and 1 January 2017 k=g-tF-f- 24,142 814 9818 21,579 - 56,353
Charge for the year Eink 6,592 1,941 220 3052 - 11806
Written back on disposals Hi‘%{ié@ (5:371) (184) (77 (330) - (5,969)
Exchange adjustment R A% (20) = 48) (12) - 80)

_ At3! Decamber 2017 REZ-tF12A=TB B33 261 9913 43 - 60
Net book value: REFE:
At 31 December 2017 e sy 3015 40,482 1,040 5719 22820 73076
At 31 December 2016 R F+-A=t-A 10,925 592 1503 4499 38,002 57,51

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND 10 K&HETEH/EGAZEEL

HELD FOR OWN USE UNDER ih 2 REZS
OPERATING LEASES
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Cost 2%
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—RF—H—H -
Additions INE 23,400
At 31 December 2016 and Bé— T—R"FT+A=1t—HEK
1 January 2017 —tF—H—H 23,400
Additions 5%% 494
At 31 December 2017 RZZE—tF+=H=1+—H 23,894
Accumulated amortisation E-5E F
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R"F—H—H -
Charge for the year FRBR 81
At 31 December 2016 RZE—RFET+ZH=1+—H 81
Charge for the year FRMER 501
At 31 December 2017 R —tF+=-_A=+—H 582
Net book value REFEE
At 31 December 2017 RZZF—+tF+=—H=+—H 23,312
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RE+ZH=+—H 23,319
Interests in leasehold land held for own use under EHETHIEERCHEL M R
operating leases represented the Group’s land use BASEMRF R BE T2 T HbF
rights on leasehold land located in the PRC. FAHE -
At 31 December 2017, the remaining useful life of RZE—tF+A=+—08 +HfF

the land use rights was 47 years (2016: 48 years).

ARZHBRERFRRITF(ZE—R
& 48%F) o

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(=715 %)

10

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

F UAEEST)

INTERESTS IN LEASEHOLD LAND
HELD FOR OWN USE UNDER
OPERATING LEASES (Continued)

In June 2016, the Group entered into a three year
loan agreement amounted to RMB25,000,000 with
Fujian Yibin Properties Co., Ltd. (“Yibin”). Yinbin
is 100% indirectly owned by Mr. Ziming Yang, an
executive director and the controlling shareholder
of the Company. The loan bears an interest of 35%
above the three-year benchmark lending interest
rate as announced by the People’s Bank of China.
The amount of interest income incurred during the
year ended 31 December 2016 was RMB619,000.
No amounts were outstanding as at 31 December
2016.

In November 2016, the Group entered into an
agreement with Yibin to acquire the land use right
of a land and the construction-in-progress situated
on the land at an aggregate consideration of
RMB56,299,000. The Group settled the payable
by paying RMB31,299,000 in cash and offsetting
RMB25,000,000 loan owed by Yibin to the Group.
No amounts were outstanding as at 31 December
2016.

Annual Report 2017
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KREHETMEFERA2HAEL
M2 RS ()

RZZE—REARA  AKBEHERRE
EXERAAITBREDIZIAEAR
# 25,000,000t 2 = FE X HE - B
BEBRARD T%ﬂmi%&% % A% 3R 15 52 AP

SEREE2EHRE  c BERIRAPRHAR
RITAmz= EEUA HERR ¥ 35%
R EHEE-—RNE+-_A=1+—

BIEFE EAMNBEKRA2EAAR
#619,000t R—ZE—~F+_-H
=t—H UEHNKEESHE-

RZE—RF+—A  REBHEBRER]
S peR 0 AURES — iR b SR A Tt (5 PR A

MAIRZRMER TR - BREAA
R# 56,299,000 7T - A EEBZBRE X
AR # 31,299,000 7T K IR S4B 4%
KEB 2 AR 25,000,000 TERES
ERNRE R —RFF+ZA=+—
B WEHKREESEE -
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INTANGIBLE ASSETS

11

BREE

Computer
software Others Total
EiEH Hith st
Note RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
izt ARBTIT ARETIT ARETT
Cost: AN :
At 1 January 2016 R=-ZE—XRE—H—H 44,742 6,813 51,555
Addition NE 4,046 2,237 6,283
At 31 December 2016 R=ZT—X4F
and 1 January 2017 +=-A=+—HK
—E—+F—H—H 48,788 9,050 57,838
Additions NE 10,698 = 10,698
Disposals HeE (17) — (17)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+%F
+=—A=1+—H 59,469 9,050 68,519
Accumulated Rt ERBERESE -
amortisation and
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H 16,258 - 16,258
Charge for the year FRHkR 4,495 112 4,607
Impairment loss BIEEE 12 — 2,125 2,125
At 31 December 2016 HR=Z—XF
and 1 January 2017 +—A=+—H8K
—FT—+F—H—H 20,753 2,237 22,990
Charge for the year FWHkR 5,313 - 5,313
Written back
on disposals R & R ] @) - @)
At 31 December 2017 R-ZT—+4F
+=-A=+—H 26,064 2,237 28,301
Net book value: BRTEFE
At 31 December 2017 RZ-_ZT—+F
+=—A=+—H 33,405 6,813 40,218
At 31 December 2016 R-_ZT—/<F
+=—A=+—H 28,035 6,813 34,848
—E—LFEFR FERFERAA
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Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

11

12

13.

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Continued)

The amortisation charge of intangible assets for
the year is included in “administrative and other
operating expenses” and “selling and distribution
expenses” in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income.

GOODWILL

On 27 January 2016, the Group acquired a yoga
clothing business in Hong Kong from Surya
Premium Sportswear Limited (“Surya”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong, for a consideration of
HKD3,000,000, equivalent to RMB2,566,000.

At 31 December 2016, the Group assessed the
recoverable amounts of the acquired assets and
goodwill and as a result the carrying amount of
RMB2,125,000 and RMB780,000 of intangible
assets and goodwill respectively were written down
to Nil. The recoverable amount is determined based
on value-in-use calculations.

OTHER LOANS RECEIVABLE

Other loans receivable as at 31 December 2017
represent two loans to a third party. The first loan
has face value of RMB50,000,000, is interest free
and carries a conversion option to acquire 33%
equity interest in a company (the “target company”)
holding a piece of land in Guangzhou City, the
PRC. Conversion option will be lapsed by July 2019
should the conversion criteria are not met and the
loan would become due and payable. The second
loan has face value of RMB15,840,000 and bears
an interest at 30% above PBOC base interest rate
and is repayable by July 2019. Both loans were
guaranteed by the third party’s 50% equity interest
in the target company.

Loans receivable was recorded at present value
as non-current other loans receivable while the
conversion option was recorded as other financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss (see note
18) as at 31 December 2017.

Annual Report 2017

11

12

13

B EE®)
FERERESEREBR I AGAE%
REMRERSZE T (TR R
SOBRAY | R [ R RIS ] o

5]
R_ZE—XRF—A-t++tH A&EH
B Surya Premium Sportswear Limited
([Surya) - —HIR B B MK &Y
RA)WEREBZHMRERS - K
{8 73,000,000 ;L (HHE RN AR
2,566,000 7T) °

I

R-ZT—XRFE+-_A=+—H £~&H
AR WEEERH B ZAIWE SRR
37 A it 5 Bl i BR E B A R %6 2,125,000
TTZEVEERARET780,0007T 2/
ZHRET - A EI B IREFERE

T

B EETE -

HiEE R
R-_E—+F+_A=+—HzEHfM
EWRERERA—BE=ZFXZ M
EER - FEEFEEAARK
50,000,000 7T * A% B MK f5 s iamgE ]
WHE—MRFPBEEMNTEE — Rty
ARI(TBBAR]])Z 33%M%HE - Wi
FEEIREE  SREENR _Z—NF
+tARIRSME—EEFTE RS -
F_EEFEERARKE15,840,0007T
Nz B A RERITEAERR )% 30% 51
BWEARZZE—NFLARERE -ME
EFHBE=FREERQFZ50% K
TR -

R-ZE—+F+_A=+—8  EKE
FRIEBEEARI BIENMEBEYRE
o MBREARY SR A FHER AR
me Bt e mEE (RHMEE18) -
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INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

The following list contains only the particulars of
subsidiaries which principally affected the results,
assets or liabilities of the Group. The class of shares
held is ordinary unless otherwise stated.

14 RHBARNKRE

TRESINHAKEFRE EEXBE
BERZENHMBARFE - KA
RSN - AT AR B AR -

Proportion of ownership interest

Place of Particulars of Group’s
incorporation issued and effective
Name of company and business  paid up capital interest
ERALR BRAR ALEN
17%H BEME  SRRAME WO
Cabbeen Clothing China PRC HK$50,000,000 100%
Co,, Ltd.* (note) hE 50,000,00077C
(‘Cabbeen China)
R () ARAR ()
(I+E%8))
Guangzhou Cabbeen Clothing PRC HK$20,000,000 100%
Co., Ltd." (note) i 20,000,000 7
BMHRERSERA (HiT)
Quanzhou Mijee Electronic PRC Ni 100%
Commerce Co., Ltd.* (note) EF z
SMmEREFERERAR (M)
Guangzhou Zixi Enterprise PRC HK$8,000,000 100%
Management Co., Ltd. * e 800000077
(note)
BATREARERARAT
(&)
Guangzhou Xubin Clothing PRC RMB5,000,000 100%
Co., Ltd." (note) i ARH5,000,0007C
BMTRERSERA (HiT)
Fujian Zhuogao Clothing PRC RMB10,000,000 100%
Co., Ltd* (note) i AR 10,000,007
R RRHARAR ()
Niujiaoling Real Estate PRC RMBG65,000,000 60.6%

(Guangzhou) Co,, Ltd.* (note) i AR 65,000,007
RS () RO ()

Note: These are wholly foreign owned enterprises in the PRC.

*

The English translation of the companies’ names is for
reference only. The official names of these companies are
in Chinese.

BRRRRLY

Held by the Held by the
Company subsidiaries Principal activities
LY HEAR

fifsh fiss  TEEH
- 100% Wholesale of menswear
BB

- 100% Wholesale of menswear
HEEE

- 100% Wholesale of menswear

HEEE

- 100% Trademark holding and
retail of menswear

BRENERBREE

=9

gtail of menswear

- 100% fa
S

]

=]

- 100% Retail of menswear

= 60.6% Real estate development

BHERNE

Hat - ZERRRPEIIEEELE -

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

14
(Continued)

INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

14

The following table lists out the information relating
to Niujiaoling Real Estate (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd., the
only subsidiary of the Group which has a material
non—controlling interest (NCI). The summarised
financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter—company elimination.

RBATNERE (@)

TREJIEETAEER (BN BERA
Al(RNEEE—FB BT RS
MEBAR) ZER - TIFBEMME
R T A RIS HA 2 288 ©

NCI percentage

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Carrying amount of NClI

Revenue

Profit for the year

Total comprehensive income
Profit allocated to NCI
Dividend paid to NCI

Cash flows from operating
activities

Cash flows from investing
activities

Cash flows from financing
activities

b =]

el Bt
MBEE
FRBEE
mBAE
FRBEE
BEFE
IR R AR (A

Yo zm
F A A
i\ﬁﬂﬁl*i@ﬁﬁ
DR IHTAHE R 2 7
IEAS T IEtE R R 2 BB

KETEEBIRERE
WEEHFBIRERE

BELDAFHRTRE

39.4%
5,215
64,118
922
68,411
26,954

3,411
3,411
1,344

(34)

(65,840)

65,930

Cabbeen Fashion Limited Annual Report 2017
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INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

15

mE MR R AR TG

(@) Current taxation in the (a) “ZREMBRRTAMENEAF
consolidated statement of IHIE ¢
financial position represents:
2017 2016
B ¥ - —E—REF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR¥ETT
PRC Corporate Income Tax " BI{E RTS8 19,293 27,012
Hong Kong Profits Tax BBMEH 636 3,029
19,929 30,041
(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b) ERANEEHEEERE
recognised: f&:
() Movement of each component of () EZEHEEEREEN
deferred tax assets and liabilities =)
The components of deferred tax ARG B SRR R R A
assets/(liabilities) recognised in the BELEMEEE (AFE)
consolidated statement of financial B9 48 AKX BB 0 & 4 1A & & 2n
position and the movements during 1N

the year are as follows:

PRC dividend
withholding tax
relating to the
undistributed
profits of the
Inventory  Allowances for Accrued Unrealised ~ Company’s PRC
Deferred tax arising from: provision  doubtful debts expenses profits ~ subsidiaries*
RRALNE
MEKELT
F i il
WMEEFELRERE FEBE RERE FEREN  PERSENA:
RMB'000 RMBI000 i RMB'000
, ARETT ARETT
At1 January 2016 R-E-nE--A 1304 - 8528 145% (15,384) 8984
Cediedioconsoiceled  iFARRREER
sttementofpoftoross (i)
(note 5a) 3279 3489 1,503 5147 3807 17,005
At 31 December 2016 RZE-nEr2A=1-AR
and 1 January 2017 5-tE-A-8 4583 3489 10,031 19,683 (11,577) 26209
Creditedcharged) o A/ (k) 5AEER
consoicated staementof (M5
proft or loss (note () 8439 (3489 (5,316) (12312 87 (11.821)
At 31 December 2017 R-E-tE+-A=1-A 13022 - 4715 7371 (10,720 14,388

B LEER | FERGARLT
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

15 INCOME TAX IN THE 15

FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(b) Deferred tax assets and liabilities (b)

recognised: (Continued)

(i) Movement of each component of
deferred tax assets and liabilities
(Continued)

* The amount included the provision
of withholding tax on profits of the
PRC subsidiaries amounting to
RMB6,543,000 for the year ended 31
December 2017 (2016: RMB5,193,000),
and the reversal of deferred tax liabilities
on withholding tax upon distribution of
dividends amounting to RMB7,400,000
during the year ended 31 December
2017 (2016: RMB9,000,000).

(i) Reconciliation to the consolidated
statement of financial position

e MBMRRERAB SR
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF (%)

CHABNELHEAEERSE
(- SNC )
() EZEHREEEREREN
EWIBE (&)
* ZERBRERBE_T
—t#+=-A=+—AH
LEREZHEME AR

% ) AE oAy 7B 40 B
# A R %6,543,0007T
(ZE2E—RF: AR%
5,193,0007T) * RREZE
—T—+FF+A=1+—
BILEEERESENE
HNBIEHHNECHBA
& @ A R # 7,400,000
T(ZZE—RF: ARK
9,000,000 7T) °

(i) #HFEHBRRKER

2017 2016
—B—tF ‘
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Net deferred tax asset RERE R R
recognised in the R IR
consolidated statement WMEEEFE
of financial position 26,158 37,786
Net deferred tax liability RERE BB R
recognised in the R IR
consolidated statement MIEBEFE
of financial position (11,770) (11,577)
14,388 26,209

152 Cabbeen Fashion Limited | Annual Report 2017



15

INCOME TAX IN THE
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

(c)

(d)

Deferred tax assets not
recognised

The Group did not recognise deferred tax
assets in respect of cumulative tax losses of
certain PRC subsidiaries of RMB9,408,000
(2016: RMB3,872,000), which will be expired
in five years, as well as unused tax losses
of its Hong Kong subsidiaries of RMB nil
(2016: RMB1,909,000) which do not expire
under current tax legislation. The tax effect
on such tax losses has not been recognised
as it is not probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilised will
be available in the relevant tax jurisdiction and
entity.

Deferred tax liabilities not
recognised

Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC
dividend withholding tax relating to certain
undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC
subsidiaries were not recognised as the
Company controls the dividend policy of
these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment
made by management as at the end of each
reporting period, it was determined that the
undistributed profits of RMB708,785,000
(2016: RMB747,142,000) of the Company’s
PRC subsidiaries would not be distributed in
the foreseeable future.

15

e

(#)

(c)

(d)

BRI R A Y A 1S B

RERBNIELEBEEE

AEBWEER GBS T M
BARIMBRHBEEBEEARK
9,408,000 L (=ZZE—RF : AR
3,872,000 7T ) HY iE & 7% 18 &
EOREHIBEEERRAFAR
H - TEEREFEHNBAFR
BIRITRE RS A B &S B H &9 R
PATEEBARBEZL(ZE
—NF  AR¥1,909,0007T) °
AR EEEE AR T KRR R
RS EREA A NEEEEN
JERTURF - I BAERE %
EMBEEBEOHGETE

AEZNELEREAER

I R E AN B R BB AR
B T AR 9 K& ) A B 89 B AR
EBRIRMNELEHIEESE  RA
BARNRIEGIZENEB A AR
BEHBE - HRBREBEENSREH
HEREELOFMG  BERATEARR
7] BB B A R R 99 R g A A
R % 708,785,000 ( = & — /X
F AR¥ 747,142,000 70) 5T
SRR RERDIK ©

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

16 INVENTORIES 16 =F&

RAPBHIRARNTFE B

(@ Inventories in the consolidated statement of (a)

154

(b)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

financial position comprise:

2017 2016
—E—+F —ERF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARET T

Raw materials R4 12,582 21,652
Finished goods K am 324,470 307,161
337,052 328,813

The analysis of the amount of inventories
recognised as an expense and included in
profit or loss is as follows:

ERRFAX L ABENFES

BT

2017 2016
—S—+HF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T AREFIT

Carrying amount of EHEFEMNREE
inventories sold 551,493 604,829
Write down of inventories 17 & 33,834 13,169
585,327 617,998

Annual Report 2017



17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17

B 7 R EMERRIEA

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥ET T AREFIT

Trade receivables B 5 W KIE 334,017 388,515
Bills receivable e IE 12,500 -
Allowance for doubtful debts R - (13,957)
Trade and bills receivables B S WA & R EE 346,517 374,558
Prepayments to suppliers MR TR 5RIE 7,414 12,432

Other deposits, prepayments Hipiz e - EAFIEK

and receivables JEWSRIE 91,898 78,096
445,829 465,086

All of the current trade and other receivables are
expected to be recovered or recognised as expense
within one year, except for the Group’s deposits of
RMB2,201,000 (2016: RMB6,398,000), which are
expected to be recovered after more than one year.

FTERNERE 5 & H b FE UL IB TR BB 0
—FRKREIKERAEAY - HBREER
BRE-FREBNAEBENZES AR
#2,201,000(ZZE—RF: AR®
6,398,000 7T ) R 4h ©

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

17

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

The Group accepts bank acceptance bills from
major banks in the PRC for settlement of trade
debts. The management considered that the risk
of these bills relates substantially to credit risk.
Accordingly, when these bills were transferred
by either discounting or endorsement, they
were derecognised as a financial asset. At 31
December 2017, the Group transferred bank
acceptance bills totalling RMB293,280,000 (2016:
RMB321,810,000), and derecognised them as
financial assets. These bank acceptance bills will
mature six months from the date of issue.

(@) Ageing analysis
Included in trade and other receivables are
trade and bills receivables with the following
ageing analysis based on invoice date and
net of allowance for doubtful debts as at 31
December 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

17

B REMEWTEIE @)

AEERGEEESEEEMTREEER
THRITRAHLER - BEEBRERRZER
BHRRFZEHEERREH - ALt
EREEBREBMRANEEEER - Z
ZEBRDRIERAEREE - NZZ
—tF+-_A=+—H ' A5EEEHE
EBEE A NR¥293,280,000L( ==&
—7NE: AR%321,810,0007T) AR
THRLER  URIEEREAERE
E o ZFRITALER S EITAEE
ET/NE A EE -

(@) BfRERDHT
RIE—LtFR-TB-RF+
A=+—RFAEZ REMEW
HIAH) B 5 e W TR IE K M R 1%
R RERB B R R IR R A HIK
BRECOMTINT -

2017 2016

—E—tF —E—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Within 3 months =EANUA 254,317 251,480
More than 3 months but ~ =1E A LA_E7XE A AR

within 6 months 76,356 73,339

More than 6 months but ~ 7~1E A LA E—5F AR

within 1 year 15,814 49,739

More than 1 year —FLAE 30 -

346,517 374,558

Trade and bills receivables are due within
180-270 days from the date of billing. Further
details on the Group’s credit policy are set
out in note 26(a).

Annual Report 2017
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17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(b)

Impairment of trade and bills
receivables

Impairment losses in respect of trade and
bills receivables are recorded using allowance
account unless the Group is satisfied that the
recovery of the amount is remote, in which
case the impairment loss is written off against
trade and bills receivables directly (note 1(l)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful
debts during the year, including both specific
and collective loss components, is as follows:

17 EFZREMEWEIE @)

(b) BEZEWREREKREEN
wAE
BEAE S RUGRIE R EREIERRN
BAEEERBERABEREAR
BrIEARE E R AR B FRIB A A] A
MRIE - EER NRESEE
BERESRNFIEREKREES
s (BEEE1()) ©

FAZREREBEES (2HEER
RAREEED)WT

2017 2016

—E—+tF AN

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTTT

At 1 January R—H—H 13,957 -

Impairment loss (¥E) HERREEE (13,957) 13,957
(reversed)/recognised

Uncollectible amounts 881 BT U (=] kI8 - -

written off
At 31 December R+—A=+—8H - 13,957

At 31 December 2016, trade debtors and
bills receivable of RMB22,494,000 were
individually determined to be impaired. The
individually impaired receivables related to
customers with aging over 270 days and
management assessed that only a portion of
the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The Group received all of the receivables
subsequently in 2017, thus a reversal of the
impairment loss was made in 2017.

RZE—XRFE+-_A=+—8"
B IRBEER R ERER AR
22,494,000 7T % & 7l & £ & R
B - BEFEBENERREREK
HRIEZ AR IEBIE270H BE R
JE &5t T8 22 AT e (=1 2B 2 FE U 5k
g o

AEEEER —F—+FWE A
BRYEIE At R=T—+
FRORERS

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

17 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(Continued)

(c)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Trade and bills receivables that
are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade and bills
receivables that are neither individually nor
collectively considered to be impaired are as
follows:

17 EZREMEWFEIE (@)

(c) WEEENEZEBKHEAR
BWEE

I 4 1 51| o BE B AR A IR R
ENE S RNZENERZEEN
BRE DT -

2017 2016
—ZE—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT

Neither past due nor R EA TR E
impaired 329,401 365,477
Within 3 moths =EAA 7,917 544
3 to 6 months past due BHI=Z= XA A 9,199 -
346,517 366,021

Receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired related to a wide range of customers
for whom there was no recent history of
default.

As at 31 December 2017, receivables that
were past due but not impaired relate to five
independent customers that have good track
records with the Group (2016: one, related
to an independent customer). Based on past
experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect
of the balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the
balances are still considered fully recoverable.
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7R 780 5 7 488 Ok 8 ) B W R TR T £
MEIY B R EHNEZ R TP R

RZE—+tF+HA=+—H"
£ %80 2R 18 AR Rk 1B /Y B i R T T B
AR EAEEA R T RN
BUBRPEH(ZT—RF:H
—E2BIUEPEB) REBE
KE AN EEERUEBERE
B MAEBGERIDES A2
WmE - WEREREHENEH
ERRELRERRE



18 OTHER FINANCIAL ASSETS 18 Htt&mEE

At At

31 December 31 December

2017 2016

R=ZF—tF RIZT—RF

+=A=+—HB +ZHA=1—H

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T T ARBT T

Available-for-sale financial assets () AIEHE S REE () 188,000 21,400
Financial assets at fair value BAFER ABR®

through profit or loss L EREE

— Conversion option (note 13) — wEaE (f1sE13) 5,159 -

— Wealth management products (i) — 3% 842 & (i 60,000 -

253,159 21,400

(i)

Available-for-sale financial assets as at
31 December 2017 were seven principal-
guaranteed wealth management products
issued by banks in the PRC with principal
amount of RMB188,000,000 (31 December
2016: RMB21,400,000). The wealth
management products will be matured on
26 January 2018, 23 February 2018,
27 February 2018, 21 March 2018 and on
9 April 2018 respectively (31 December
2016: 6 February 2017).

Financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss as at 31 December 2017 was a
principal-guaranteed wealth management
product issued by a bank in the PRC with
principal amount of RMB60,000,000, which
will be matured on 22 June 2018.

(i)

R—E—tF+=-_A=+—8"
At ESHEEATEATH
ZRITETHRAE B ER -
N %A AR 188,000,000
T(ZE—RFE+_A=+—
H: AR#21,400,0007T) ° %
ZEVERBIIR=2F—N
F—A-+XB - \F
“A-+=Z8 - —_E—N\F=
A-++H - —ZEZE—N\E=AH4
—t+t—BR=ZZE—NFEAIH
(ZE—R"F+=—A=+—8":
—E—+F-HA/NH)FH -

R-_ZE—+F+_A=1+—8"
BEAFEFABRZZEMEE
AR EHZRITEITHRANR
BHER A2BAARE
60,000,0007T * R =T —\F
NAZTZHE|E -

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

19 PLEDGED BANK DEPOSITS 19 EHEARTEX
Bank deposits have been pledged as security for RITEREEIBIERENEZBROER
bills payable (note 22). The pledged bank deposits (f5x22) - EEIFRITFRSENEER
will be released upon the settlement of relevant bills FAFET RARIRARRR o
payable.

20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEEEEY

(a) Cash and cash equivalents (@) BHERRSLEEVBEIE
comprise:

2017 2016
—¥-tF ST AHF

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETT

Cash at bank and on hand #R1TFHRK & FERE 122,978 213,474
Other deposit HAb AR 11,615 9,411

Cash and cash equivalents T4RE BIESRL KA

in the consolidated ReRREEED

financial position 134,593 222,885
At 31 December 2017, cash and cash RZE—tF+=HA=+—8"
equivalents placed with banks in the mainland FERTPREAMRITHNRE KR
China amounted to RMB112,658,000 (2016: EEM A AR 112,658,0007T
RMB190,152,000). Remittance of funds out (ZZ—7"F : AR%190,152,000
of mainland China is subject to the relevant 7T) c BFREAMEHNESEE
rules and regulations of foreign exchange ST AR B IR T 1 A 9 SN T I 9 4
control promulgated by the PRC government. FARR B SOEAR o
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20

(Continued)

(b) Reconciliation of profit before
taxation to cash generated from

operations:

REeERREEEW®)

BRBL RS R R L& BB P18
HEWEER -

2017 2016

—E—+F —E—XRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARET T

Profit before taxation BR 75 A4 A 284,781 247,208

Adjustments for: FHEE -

Depreciation e 4(c) 11,805 15,265
Amortisation of BB EEE 4(c)

intangible assets 5,313 4,607
Amortisation of lease METENKIE

prepayments BEiE 4(c) 501 81
Impairment for goodwill EESEEE 4(c) - 780
Impairment loss of EBEEERE

intangible assets &8 4(c) - 2,125
Finance cost B & R AR 4(a) 16,555 5,848
Net foreign exchange HNE (Weas)

(gain)/loss B 1855 (7,638) 73
Interest income FEHA 3 (13,515) (14,577)
Net loss on disposal of HEYDE - KR

property, plant &)

and equipment HRE 3 3,236 2,174
Net loss on disposal of HEEFEEE

intangible assets B85 15 -
Net fair value gain on AT ERABR

financial assets at fair WEmEER

value through profit or loss NEEFRZE 3 (2,323) —
Investment income on A HESRE

available-for-sale BED

financial assets FEWA 3 (234) (374)

Equity settled share-based #zmiEE ARG &
payment expenses EMHONREALZ  40b) 360 530
Changes in working capital: &8 & & &
Increase in inventories FEEmM (8,239) (62,048)
Decrease in trade and H 5 Rk H A FER

other receivables TR 50,037 13,101
Increase/(decrease) in B 5 R EAFER

trade and other s, )

payables 33,690 (148,486)

Cash generated from REREBAEES
operations 374,344 66,307
—E—LFEFR FERFERAA
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20 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 20 BERBEZEEY &)

(Continued)

(c) Reconciliation of liabilities arising (c) METHFELAEBEZHER
from financing activities
The table below details changes in the TREMESBAEEALREE
Group’s liabilities from financing activities, BEZEHFE  BRRE MIE
including both cash and non-cash changes. Re#y  REIHELECARE
Liabilities arising from financing activities are EReERECHIRKRBERER
liabilities for which cash flows were, or future REAEEGERERERD A
cash flows will be, classified in the Group’s ARMERBEAZRERENE
consolidated cash flow statement as cash & °

flows from financing activities.

Bank loans
and other
borrowings
SRITERR
R RN
$000
T
(Note 21)
(BzE21)
At 1 January 2017 N=-ZE—+F—H—H 127,095
Changes from financing FMERSREZ2BE !
cash flows:
Proceeds from new IRITERZ 1S 5KIA
bank loans 324,749
Repayment of bank loans EERITER (147,095)
Other borrowing costs paid B2 E A A FRAC A (4,367)
Total changes from BMERSRE
financing cash flows 2 EE)aTE 173,287
Exchange adjustments PE AR (12,285)
At 31 December 2017 R-B—tF
+=A=+—H 288,097
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21

BANK BORROWINGS

As at 31 December 2017, the Group’s bank loans
were secured by pledged bank deposits of RMB nil
(2016: RMB82,000,000).

On 10 February 2017, the Group has fully
drawn down a three-year term loan facility of
HK$350,000,000 (equivalent to RMB303,415,000).
Pursuant to the facility, the controlling shareholder
shall maintain his equity interest and voting rights
in the Company at a certain level, and at the same
time it is subject to the fulfilment of covenants
relating to certain of the Group’s statement of
financial position ratios, as are commonly found
in lending arrangements with financial institutions.
In 2016, RMB67,095,000 were subject to similar
covenants relating to the Group’s financial ratios. A
breach of these undertakings would result that the
drawn down facilities and interest would become
payable on demand. The Group regularly monitors
its compliance with these covenants. As at 31
December 2017, none of the covenants relating to
the drawn down facilities had been breached. The
term loan as at 31 December 2017 are unsecured
and carried at amortised cost.

The carrying amounts of the bank borrowings are
denominated in the following currencies:

21

BITER
R-ZZE—+FE+-_A=1+—H  x&EH
RSRITEFUUBIEFRITERARBS
TT(ZZE—RF : AR¥82,000,0007T)
VERAR o

R-ZZE—+t&F_A+H AEEEXE
R EL = F HiE 7 g & 350,000,000 7%
7T (HEE N AR 303,415,0007T) ° 1R
BZEE  ERBRENARQG ZRE
DR EREBERE K FREH
HEKEBEBASEBRE THBRAKL
RHHE - BEROTE RN EYBEE
NERZHE - RZT—XRF ARK
67,095,000 7T PR 1A B 2N &% B B 75 b &K
BB ZEURE - WERZE AR ' &
BRERTNERIZBERFE - &
EETHERHEBETZELE 2B -
R-_ZE—+F+-_A=+—H #EF
FAERDBECRFEER - KR =T
—+tF+-A=1+—H ZEHEZRAE
IR AR SR AR BR o

RITERZ REE AT EEEHE

2017 2016
—E—tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
Hong Kong Dollar BIT 288,097 67,095
Renminbi AR - 60,000
288,097 127,095
“E—tEFER FERFARAAF
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22 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

22 EBFRHMESFIE

2017 2016

—Z2—tF —FRF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETT

Trade payables B S ENFIE 142,578 66,036

Bills payable (note (a)) ANES A EIR) 311,851 336,049
Trade and bills payables (note (b)) & 2 RERFIE K

HANESEACIEA()) 454,429 402,085

Receipts in advance TEWRIE 13,904 21,903

Other payables and accruals HMENRIBERETER 121,709 131,708

590,042 555,696

FIA S 5 N BN RIRTR IR —F
NAEIER RBMATIRERERE -

All of the trade and other payables are expected to
be settled or recognized as income within one year
or are repayable on demand.

@ Z—ZE—tF+-A=+—HHE
NEBEABEIBRITFERARE
105,015,000 (ZZE—RF : A
R # 157,068,000 7T ) 1 5 #8 (Fft
F$19) ©

b)) EBEZEMNFARENREREE
R EHNEREDITIT -

(a) Bills payable as at 31 December 2017
were secured by pledged bank deposits of
RMB105,015,000 (2016: RMB157,068,000)
(note 19).

(b)  An ageing analysis of the trade and bills
payables based on the invoice date is as

follows:
2017 2016
—E—+tF :
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARETIT
Within 3 months =EAUA 346,551 211,181
More than 3 months but ~ =fE A A _E/XE A A
within 6 months 103,326 188,976
More than 6 months but 7~ ME A A E—F A
within 1 year 2,909 1,862
More than 1 year —F LAk 1,643 66
454,429 402,085
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EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT
BENEFITS

Defined contribution retirement plans

The PRC subsidiaries of the Group participate in
defined contribution retirement benefit schemes (the
“Schemes”) organised by the PRC municipal and
provincial government authorities whereby the PRC
subsidiaries are required to make contributions at
the rate of 14% to 19% of the eligible employees’
salaries to the Schemes. The Group has accrued for
the required contributions which are remitted to the
respective local government authorities when the
contributions become due. The local government
authorities are responsible for the pension
obligations payable to the retired employees
covered under the Schemes.

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF scheme”) under the
Hong Kong Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for employees employed under the
jurisdiction of the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance. The MPF scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by
independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme,
the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the
employees’ relevant income, subject to a cap
of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

The Group has no other material obligation for
the payment of pension benefits beyond the
contributions described above.

23

BERKER

REMFRMAKEE
AEENTEHRBAR2ERFETR
Ko AR BURT HERE AT R S B SR (R FGR AR
@AM BI(Tax5H 81 1) - Tt BB
BRABIANGEREEHFSMNI4%E
19% K Eb R AT EEL R - NEE
EREZABHE - RERBIRSENS T
E3h 77 BT o 377 IR A A st (R0 2%
AERENRKEE XN RAREARER
e

AEBETRBERARHME AR SR SR
7 BRBRERBIEOIE T BLAERE
ArEERMATIERTESETE([58]
EEETEl]) - BIESF S AHBILRE
ANEEHFE HFORIRETE] - RIBRIA
T8 BEREEBEBARSIMH
R HREREEERKRARSY. - H
TS B & A HERIYA 30,0008 TH) L
BR © [AIETEIVEH R HRENR RS

B EX At AERON - REERRARERE
MR EEEELMEREE

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has two share option schemes
namely, the Pre-IPO Employee Share Option
Scheme (the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme) and
the Share Option Scheme, which were adopted on
28 October 2013.

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

On 28 October 2013, the Company granted
options to subscribe for an aggregate
of 8,520,000 shares of the Company to
its directors, employees and one of its
distributors, under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme at an exercise price of HK$2.024,
being 80% of the initial public offering price.
No further option could be granted under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme after 28
October 2013. Options granted had vesting
periods of 1 to 3 years commencing from 28
October 2013, being the date of the listing of
the Company on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange. Each option gives the holders the
right to subscribe for one ordinary share in
the Company.

Pursuant to the rules of the share option
scheme, options will lapse when the grantee
ceases to be an employee of the Group
for reasons other than death, permanent
disability, retirement and transfer of
employment to related parties, or terminates
the business with the Group.

Annual Report 2017
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EEEEURD/BERNRS

Z/N

AIRAMIBELERTE - BIERA

P ERIE B EEE 8 (AR A%
ERIERAER 8 RBARERTE  %F
AR =T A-+/\B&E#H -

(a)

BXRAMBERBRESTS
RZZE—=F+HA=+/\B " K
NEREBEBE X AREERBRE
FElMEESE EERESER
<2 — B H Al RS 8,520,000
BRARNRIRD 2 B - 17 E
B4 L (BE XA RAES
B280%)  R-—ZE—=%1A
ZHNBEAAREERARE
ERIERET SR D EMER
#eERNERECEBHE S
E—=F+A=-+/\BBIAEXRQ
AREE R FTER LT A ED) RBE
AH1EIF - BERER T
BEARANRE-RAQALE
HQO

RIEBBET SRR - AR
ANBEH -~ SKARE - SRR
BERMB T AN REAMAE R
AR BB H & AR B
X755 RIRBBRER SR -



24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED 24 REREEURGCAEENRKS

TRANSACTIONS (Continued) (&)

(@) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (@) BAXRAMEESRBRESTS
(Continued) (&)
The number of pre-IPO share options RFEHEBEARITERA] TITEZ
outstanding and exercisable as at year end BRAARESHBRESRE W
dates are as follows: 5 &

Outstanding as R—A—BERTE
at 1 January 7,189,000 8,091,000
Exercised during the year FRE1T{E (550,000) (330,000)
Lapsed during the year FREKRK (440,000) (572,000)
Outstanding as R+ A=+—HREKRTE
at 31 December 6,199,000 7,189,000
Exercisable as R+ZA=+—Ba T
at 31 December 6,199,000 7,189,000
The weighted average closing price FA - REBRERETEB SR
immediately before the date on which share Z I ER2.408 (=
options were exercised during the year was T—RNF 1 25387T) °

HK$2.40 (2016: HK$2.53).

The share options outstanding at 31 RZFE—tF+—A=+—HH
December 2017 had a weighted average RITEBIRE 2 MEFHFIRE
remaining contractual life of 5.8 years (2016: HFEHARE58F(ZTE—RF : 68
6.8 years). F)o

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Share Option Scheme

Pursuant to the Share Option Scheme, the
directors of the Company are authorised, at
their discretion, to invite eligible participants,
including employees and directors of any
company in the Group, to take up options
at a nominal consideration of HK$1 to
subscribe for shares of the Company to
a maximum of 70,000,000 shares. On 3
August 2017 (the “Date of Offer”), options
were offered by the Company, which were
accepted by one director and certain other
employees on 3 August 2017 to subscribe
for 6,000,000 shares of the Company under
the Share Option Scheme at an exercise
price of HK$2.19. The closing prices of the
Company’s shares immediately before the
Date of Offer and on the Date of Offer were
HK$2.18 and HK$2.19, respectively. The
options have vesting periods of 5 years
commencing from the Date of Offer and
have a contractual life of 10 years. There
were 6,000,000 share options outstanding
and none of which was exercisable as at
31 December 2017. Each option gives the
holders the right to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company.

Fair value of share options and
assumptions

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based
on a binomial option pricing model. The
contractual life of the share option is used as
an input into this model. Expectations of early
exercise are incorporated into the a binomial
option pricing model.
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24 REHEEFURDAERNRS

(#8)

(b) HERRESHE
RIZERAETE - ARRESE
RENSEFEERK2EE(R
BAEEETERARZEE R
BEE)EMNERE LNERRE
178 7L 52 B8 5 % 70,000,000 A% A&
ANERD - RZE—+FENA=
A28 NARIKLE
i —RESRETHEMES
R-E—+tFNAZBAEAZSE
FEARHE - AR IR AR 5T BlIR 1T
£ (€ 2.197% JT 3% ## 6,000,000 %
RARMD o AR AN R EE
EHHBRRNELHERZ KT
EBHRA2.188 LKk 2.1987T °
BhEsFBHEZHH R
RHSERELHNFHHRI0F - 1B
—FT—+F+=-A=+—H"' &
6,000,000 7 1 R 17 52 2 B8 Ak 4
BZEBRESTAIITE - )
R TRE AEARE R
RAEEBR o

(c) BREAFERRER

1E /IR i 8 BOHE 2 [ 3 T R 2
Rz R FED2RBAREER
B2 RTEMmMAE - AIRHER
ARt AT ERA DA B
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24 EQUITY SETTLED SHARE-BASED
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(c)

Fair value of share options and
assumptions (Continued)

24 REHREHFURDAERNRS

(%)

(c) BREAFERERE

2017
—E—tF
Fair value at measurement date ~ REtEBHZ AFE HK$ & jt 0.58-0.59
Share price I&E HK$ &t 2.19
Exercise price 11EE HKS$ %t 2.19
Expected volatility (expressed TEHR R R (IR —IE A BhfEE R
as weighted average volatility IH MERIFRE A 2
used in the modelling under INREFITRIRYIR)
binomial lattice model) 40.56%
Option life (expressed MBS B (i = IE A B P iR =
as weighted average life B MEARTERA 2
used in the modelling under INEFSEEIYR)
binomial lattice model) 10 years F
Expected dividends TEHARR B 5.84%
Risk-free interest rate (based on  EREBFIZE (1B
Hong Kong Government Bond) BERABNESREL) 1.53%

The expected volatility is based on the
historic volatility (calculated based on the
weighted average remaining life of the share
options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available
information. Expected dividends are based
on historical dividends. Changes in the
subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken
into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with
the share option grants.

BHREDERBERECRE
PR DN IO RIeh F HAET &) -
W AR XA AT 45 B R R SO B8
M EMEZEELHE - A
BRETIABERBRESE - TH
BWABBBRRESRGH L TE
EERTELEEATE -

BT IR BRI MR L -
b R 3 B S AR S IR IS IO R H
Bz A FEE - REBARE
3 8 Bt R T S IR o
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS
(@) Movements in components of
equity

The reconciliation between the opening and
closing balances of each component of the
Group’s consolidated equity is set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity.
Details of the changes in the Company’s
individual components of equity between the
beginning and the end of the year are set out
below:

Share
Company capital

A2R

Balanceat 1 January 2016~ W=E-7%

25 EBXR - #FERRE

Share
premium

Ry
RMB'000

ARETT

(a)

Capital
redemption
feserves

EEE T 2 E

AEEGRAEESTHBINFIR
FREGNHRANGAERE
BK - AR AR ERIE DR F
VEFRNESFBHIIMT

(Accumulated

losses)/

Capital  Exchange retained
reserves reserve proflts

Ardh  EXER
RMBOOO  RMBOOD

ARETR  ARETR

-A-RiGs 5,580 80,204 - 5,139 7,33 (33,167) 74,090
Changes in equity for 2016;: =B
EngE:
Totd comprenensieincome - FREENGHE
forthe year - - - - 3451 94,197 98,248
Shares issued under share REEREE
option scheme Lkiy 2500 3 811 - (245) - - 569
Eouiy setfled share-based EaEEIRNA
fransactions AR - - - 530 - - 530
Dividends declared EERRE 250b) = (85,309 = = 9617) - (94920)
Balance at 31 December 2016 H=F-7%
and 1 January 2017 tZR=t+-AR
“2-t£-f-8
53 Kl 5,583 4712 - 5,44 1,168 61,630 78517
Changes in equity for 2017: ~ =F—LH
BE%E:
Totdcomprehensieincome. FMEENGEE
for the year \ - - - - B%) 178 136808
Shares issued under share RERERETE
option scheme Lk 25(c)i 4 1348 - (400) - - )
Transfer between reserves T = - = (430) = 430 S
Eouiy setfled share-based EREENRNE
ransactons 5855 - - . 30 . . %0
Dividends declared BERRE 25) - - - - - 66.418) (66,418)
Shares repurchased G 250/ (384) - 34 - - 92208 (92,299
Balance at 31 December 2017 W=%-tF1=A
St-BiER W 5,203 6,060 384 4,954 4813 4613 5791
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 25 EX - FHERKREE

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends b) BRE
Subsequent to 31 December 2017, the RZE—+F+A=+—H1%& "
directors proposed a final dividend of EEREBRBERAREERE A
HK$0.085 (2016: HK$0.05) per ordinary RR0.0857% 7L( —F — 7 : 0.05
share, amounting to RMB46,225,000 BIT) - & AR 46,2250007T
(2016: RMB31,462,000). The final dividend (ZZ—R"F : AR¥ 31,462,000
proposed after the end of the reporting period TL) e R EHIBRBEEZIRER
has not been recognised as a liability as at Bl B ARER R T —F T =
31 December 2017. A=+—HmamE-
Interim dividend of HK$0.06 per ordinary KRRIRZZE—EFNA—HE
share, amounting to RMB34,956,000, was &R HA IR B 5 IR E i AR 0.06 %
declared by the Company on 1 August 2017. JL A A R 834,956,000 7T °
The amount was fully paid on 19 August EHEFEER-_ZT—tFNA
2017. THABEEEXA -

(c) Share capital (c) B=&
() Authorised and issued share (i) ZEEREBITERAX

2017
TE-tF

No.ofshares  HK$'000  RMB'000 No. of shares RMB'000
RH%E Tér ARETn OEE BT ARETR

Authorised: R
Ordinary shares of BREGN AL
HK$0.01 each LERR 10,000,000,000 100,000 79,208 | 10,000,000,000 100,000 79,208

/=

Ordinary shares, issued ~ EETHREER :

and fully paid:
At1 January n—A-A 711,478,000 7115 5,583 711,148,000 7112 5,580
Shares issued under share  IREERRER BB 7RG

option scheme Bk 25(c)in)

(note 25(c)i) 550,000 5 4 330,000 3 3
Shares repurchased BERS

(note 25(c)i) (Htt 25(c)) (44,764,000) (448) (384) - - -
At 31 December RT-A=+-A 667,264000 6,672 5,208 711,478,000 7,115 5,583
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Share capital (Continued)

(i)

(ii)

Authorised and issued share
capital (Continued)

The equity shareholders are entitled
to receive dividends as declared from
time to time and are entitled to one
vote per share at meetings of the
Company. All ordinary shares rank
equally with regard to the Company’s
residual assets.

Shares repurchased

During the year ended 31 December
2017, the Company repurchased its
own shares on The Stock Exchange of

25 EBEXR - #FEKKRE @

(c) B=&
(i)

(ii)

(#&)
EERCBITRAE (&

RERRAERBIRE
KBRS - XA LA
BN ARRBRRARE £
B—R- A EBERMA
REFBEEZARZM

iz e

WA

BE-F+t%+-5
=+—ALFE ARA
NEBBARFHERA

Hong Kong Limited as follows: RIEBRIAEBFRHAT -

Number Highest Lowest

of shares price paid price paid Aggregate

Month/Year repurchased per share per share price paid
gft gff

/R BERGA SRESE SRREE Ef4E

HK$ HK$ RMB’000

BT BT ARETT

April 2017 —E—+%MA 18,487,000 2.66 2.29 40,426

August 2017 —E—+F)\A 26,277,000 2.44 2.21 51,872

44,764,000 92,298

The repurchase was governed by the
applicable laws of the Cayman Islands.
The shares had been cancelled
after buy-back. The total amount
paid on the repurchased shares of
RMB92,298,000 was paid wholly out
of retained profits.
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c)
(iii)

(d)
(i)

Share capital (Continued)

Shares issued under share
option scheme

During the 31 December 2017,
options were exercised to subscribe
for a total of 550,000 (31 December
2016: 330,000) ordinary shares in
the Company at a consideration of
RMB952,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB569,000), of which RMB4,000
(31 December 2016: RMB3,000)
and RMB948,000 (31 December
2016: RMB566,000) were credited to
share capital and the share premium
account respectively. The amount of
RMB400,000 (31 December 2016:
RMB245,000) has been transferred
from the capital reserve to the share
premium account in accordance with
policy set out in the note 1(r)(ii).

Nature and purpose of reserves

Share premium

Under the Companies Law of the
Cayman lIslands, the funds in the
Company’s share premium account
are distributable to the shareholders
provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed
to be distributed, the Company will be
in a position to pay off its debts as they
fall due in the course of business.

25 EBEXR - #HERKRE @

[N
(iii)

(c)

(d) fEE
(i

—E-tFER

(#&)
BREBREFTSRT
fiz 3
RZZE—-—tF+=A
=+—H8: BITFEERE
RS H550,000 1 (==
—R"NFE+_A=+—8:
330,000 ) X A 7] & i@
1% - REAARE952,000
T(ZE—XRF+ A
=+—A8 : AR¥569,000
gT) - R AR®4,0007T
(ZB—RFt+-A=1+—
H: AR¥3,0007m) XA
R¥948,000(=ZZF—7~
F+-A=+—H8: AR
# 566,0007T ) B 2 5l 5+
ABRAERBEGD HERER - B
AR 400,000L(=F
—NFE+ZA=+—8:
AR#245,0007T) K458
S ARE B E 1 (i) BT S BUR
BENEEBEERERD S
EhR -

HMEERAZ

R A0 EE
REAEHSRADE - K
NEEMHER ENES
ADRTHRR BIRRA
BEREEBREREERZ
% ARBLARNER
BERETFEIMRE -
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Rilii5 ¥R TeBIGE (#5)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicateqd)
(BRZ1TIEHZ S » UAEBST)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND 25 BX - #HERKRE @)
DIVIDENDS (Continued)
(d) Nature and purpose of reserves (d) REAUEERAZRE)
(Continued)
(i) Capital reserve (i) EXRE
Capital reserves comprise the EARRFEBEATIESR -
followings:
2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETT
The Group rEE
Equity settled share-based #EmAis & ARN &
transactions (Note 24) EMoR 5 (HE24) 4,815 5,285
Arising from reorganisation BEE/HES
(notes (i) and (ii)) (BHEE () B (i) 37,493 37,493
42,308 42,778
The Company AAFE]
Equity settled share-based #EmAia & ARN &
transactions (Note 24) EMoR 5 (HE24) 4,815 5,285
Avrising from reorganisation P E 482 4 (Bt & (i)
(note (ii)) 139 139
4,954 5,424
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

Nature and purpose of reserves

(Continued)

(i)

Capital reserve (Continued)

Note:

)

On 18 May 2009, the controlling
shareholder sold his entire equity
interest in Cabbeen China to Cabbeen
China Investments Limited (“Cabbeen
Investments”), so that Cabbeen
Investments became the holding
company of Cabbeen China. The
consideration for the transaction was
RMB11,200,000. The difference of
RMB37,354,000 between the initial
cash consideration and the capital of
Cabbeen China was recorded as a
capital reserve.

On 31 July 2012, the Company issued
and allotted 100 shares with par value
of HK$0.01 each as a consideration to
purchase the entire issued share capital
of Grandfull International Holdings
Limited (“Grandfull International”) and
Cabbeen International Holdings Limited
from the controlling shareholder. The
difference of RMB139,000 between
the purchase consideration and the
share capital of Grandfull International
and Cabbeen International Holdings
Limited was recorded as an increase
of shareholder’s contribution in capital
reserve.

25 EBEXR - #HERKRE @

(d)

RENEERAR @)

(i) BEARRHEGE

() R=ZZBEZAERA+N
B ERBEEBENE
EREAEIARE LS
FTREFBEEEBRAD
A(RERE]D  #HK
BEREKBFET A
ERAR - ZX BN
& & A R % 11,200,000
T mRSRERFE
EREEAEMNETEA
R # 37,354,000 7T 5T A
B fERS -

(i) R—E—=—Ft /=1
—B AARBEITRE
Z%100 % & A% ™ {E0.01
BITHIRG - R MIE
BRAR R B B B B B R
BERREESH
B R REBEBRERS
BARZPEHTRA
WRE - BERERSE
BB &R E R R
BRARBRA ZEA
=58 A R# 139,000 TR
BEAFEERERRKREL
BRIEIALK

—ELEER | FEBGERAT
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———— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(BRETTHEHES) - UAREST)

25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND

DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d) Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)
(iii) Capital redemption reserve

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(iv)

(v)

Capital redemption reserve represents
the nominal amount of the shares
repurchased.

Statutory reserve

As stipulated by regulations in the
PRC, the Company’s subsidiaries
established and operated in the
mainland China are required to
appropriate 10% of their after-tax-
profit (after offsetting prior year losses)
as determined in accordance with the
PRC accounting rules and regulations,
to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of
the registered capital. The transfer
to this reserve must be made before
distribution of profits to parent
companies.

The statutory reserve can be utilised,
upon approval by the relevant
authorities, to offset accumulated
losses or to increase capital of the
subsidiary, provided that the balance
after such issue is not less than 25%
of its registered capital.

Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising
from the translation of the financial
statements of operations outside
mainland China which are dealt with
in accordance with the accounting
policies set out in note 1(v).
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(d)
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(d)

(e)

Nature and purpose of reserves
(Continued)

(v) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2017, the aggregate
amount of reserves available for
distribution to equity shareholders of
the Company was RMB52,718,000
(2016: RMB72,934,000). After the end
of the reporting period the directors
propose a final dividend of HK$0.085
(2016: HK$0.05) per ordinary share
(note 25()).

Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when
managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide
returns for its equity shareholders and
benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products commensurately with the level of
risk and by securing access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and
manages its capital structure to maintain
a balance between the higher shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher
levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes adjustments to the capital
structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

25 EBEXR - #HEERKRE®

(d)

(e)

RENEERBAR @)

(v) f#EENDIKEE
A S o E + = A
E+_E| A it 95 & F 7<
N EI RS IR R
A AR ﬁ%52,718,000
T(ZE—RF: ARK
72,934,0007% )o MR &
HiERE  EFERRN
BKHJ%HQ A% iEA% 0.085
BT (ZE—7RF 1 0.05%8
70) (M5 25(0)) °

EXEE

AEEEREANEZBREAR
FEAKRERELLNEN BB

A e @ 2 7K S A 2 R E (B LA K2 A
EEKAREHE  BEAER

Hxﬁ’““):@#&&%ﬁﬁﬂ%\ S
mXﬂﬁ°

AEBEREGRETHERRERERLE
NBEFE - NEAEF R E mKF
WERX AR ERMNE S REE
WEHSREENRANETR X
?%2%%%1@ I B A EL
BRI AR EARGERE -
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25 CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e)

Capital management (Continued)

The Group monitors its capital structure with
reference to its debt position. The Group’s
strategy is to maintain the equity and debt
in a balanced position and ensure there are
adequate working capital to service its debt
obligations. The Group’s debt to asset ratio,
being the Group’s total liabilities over its total
assets, at 31 December 2017 was 46%
(2016: 42%).

Neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed
capital requirements.

26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES

Exposure to credit, liquidity, interest rate and
currency risks arises in the normal course of the
Group’s business. The Group’s exposure to these
risks and the financial risk management policies and
practices used by the Group to manage these risks
are described below.

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to trade and other receivables, deposits
with banks and other financial assets.
Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

(i)

Trade and other receivables
Credit evaluations are performed on
customers requiring credit terms. These
evaluations focus on the customer’s
history of making payments and current
abilities to pay and take into account
information specific to the customer as
well as to the economic environment.

The Group’s exposure to credit risk
is influenced mainly by the individual
characteristics of each customer and
therefore significant concentrations
of credit risk primarily arise when
the Group has significant exposure
to individual customers. As at 31
December 2017, 25% (2016: 26%)
of the total trade and bills receivables
were concentrated in one customer,
and 69% (2016: 61%) of the total
trade and bills receivables were
concentrated in five customers of the
Group.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is
represented by the carrying amount of
each financial asset in the consolidated
statement of financial position after
deducting any impairment allowance.
As at 31 December 2017, the Group
does not provide any guarantees
which would expose the Group to
credit risk.

Further quantitative disclosures in
respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade and other
receivables are set out in note 17.

26 £ EhE b
(@ 8
(i)

—E-tFER

EERAFE®
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B 5 R HEAEBWRIER
ARBIYHEREAYPNET
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REBEAZHEERRE
EXERPEAFEBNT
2 A sEAZ(E
FIRFMERNRR  Blg
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(@) Credit risk (Continued)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

(i)

(ii)

Trade and other receivables
(Continued)

As at 31 December 2017, the Group
had transferred bank acceptance bills
totalling RMB293,280,000 (2016:
RMB321,810,000), which were
derecognised as financial asset. The
transferees have recourse right to the
Group in case of default by the issuing
banks. In such cases, the Group
would have to repurchase these bank
acceptance bill at face value. These
bank acceptance bills mature six
months from respective dates of issue
and the Group’s maximum loss in case
of default are RMB293,280,000 (2016:
RMB321,810,000) as at 31 December
2017.

The Group accepts bank acceptance
bills issued by major banks in the
PRC and considers that the credit risk
associated with such bank acceptance
bills to be insignificant.

Deposits with banks

The Group mitigates its exposure to
credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institutions with established
credit rating. Given the high credit
ratings of the banks, management
does not expect any counterparty to
fail to meet its obligations.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

(iii) Other financial assets

The Group entered into certain wealth
management products with banks
during the year ended 31 December
2017. The management considers that
the counterparties are the banks with
high credit rating and, therefore, the
default risk is remote.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the
Group are responsible for their own cash
management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising
of loans to cover expected cash demands,
subject to approval by the management and
directors when the borrowings exceed certain
predetermined levels of authority.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
its liquidity requirements and its compliance
with lending covenants, if any, to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and
adequate committed lines of funding from
major financial institutions to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

All non-interest bearing financial liabilities
and discounted bills of the Group are carried
at amount not materially different from their
contractual undiscounted cash flow as all the
financial liabilities are with maturities within
one year or repayable on demand at the end
of the reporting period.

26 SHEMEERAFE®
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26 cTEEAREENRAFEG®
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk (Continued) (b) RBEEEMEZ)
The contractual undiscounted cash flow and RZE—tF+=A=+—H"
carrying amount of bank borrowings as at 31 RITEFNEHNRUIARSRE
December 2017 are set out as follow: MEREEERYIAT :

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
More than  More than
Within  1yearbut 2 year but
Carrying 1yearoron lessthan lessthan More than
31 December 2017 amount Total demand 2 year 5years 5years

RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
CLESEE ki
—FRE -ENL WENML
“F-tFt-A=t-H REE it EER WEMR EFNR EENMLE
ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARWTR ARETR ARET:R

Bank borrowings FER 288,007 325104 17,254 54304 253546 £

288,097 325,104 17,254 54,304 253,546 -

Contractual undiscounted cash flow
Morethan ~ More than
Within -~ 1yearbut 2 year but
Carrying 1 year or on less than lessthan  More than
31 December 2016 amount Total demand 2 year 5 years 5 years

RMB0OO  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMBOO0 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000
RNRMBALRE
—FR% —FRE WENL
T AFTZAZT-A A EEX  MEAA  RFNR EFENE
ARETT ARBTT ARETT ARBTT ARETE

Bank borrowings BITIER 127,095 127840 127,840 = - =

127,006 127,840 127,840 = = =
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(c)

Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily
from bank borrowings carried at variable
rates, which exposes the Group to cash flow
interest rate risk. The effective interest rate of
the bank borrowings of the Group as at 31
December 2017 was 6.10% (2016: 2.91%).

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 1% in interest
rates, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit after tax for the year and retained profits
by approximately RMB2,406,000 (2016:
RMB1,061,000). Other components of equity
would not be affected by the changes in
interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
impact on the Group’s profit for the year and
retained profits that would arise assuming
that there is an annualised impact on interest
income and expense by a change in interest
rates. The analysis has been performed on
the same basis for 2016.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(d)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk
primarily arising from bank deposits of
RMB1,276,000 (2016: RMB4,045,000)
denominated in RMB held by the entities
for which HK$ is the functional currency
and bank loan denominated in HK$ with
carrying value of RMB288,097,000 (2016:
RMB67,095,000).

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2017, it is estimated that a
general appreciation/depreciation of 1% in
RMB, with all other variables held constant,
would have decreased/increased the Group’s
net profit for the year and retained profits
by approximately RMB2,394,000 (2016:
decreased/increased by RMB615,000).

The sensitivity analysis assumes that the
change in foreign exchange rate had been
applied to re-measure the bank deposits and
bank loan which expose the Group to foreign
currency risk at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis excludes differences
that would result from the translation of the
financial statement of foreign operations into
the Group’s presentation currency.
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e)

Fair value

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the
fair value of the Group’s financial
instruments measured at the end of
the reporting period on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level
fair value hierarchy as defined in IFRS
13, Fair value measurement. The level
into which a fair value measurement is
classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance
of the inputs used in the valuation
technique as follows:

o Level 1 valuations: Fair value
measured using only Level 1
inputs i.e. unadjusted gquoted
prices in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities at
the measurement date.

o Level 2 valuations: Fair value
measured using Level 2 inputs
i.e. observable inputs which fail
to meet Level 1, and not using
significant unobservable inputs.
Unobservable inputs are inputs
for which market data are not
available.

° Level 3 valuations: Fair value
measured using significant
unobservable inputs.

26 SHEMEERAFE®
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26 cTEEAREENRAFEG®
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e) Fair value (Continued) (e) 2FEE)
() Financial assets measured at () BLAFEIFENEHE
fair value (Continued) E(E)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NEEZER(E)

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at

31 December 31 December 2017 categorised into
2017 RZB-tE+ZA=+-AH

RZB-—+F NVENEBDEBR

+=A=t+-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
WAYE F-8 BZH E=H
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000

ARETT AR¥Tn AR¥Txn

Recurring fair value REMNTETE
measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale HESRAE
financial assets (note 18~ (Fz£18) 188,000 - 188,000 -
Financial assets at fair value AT B AEZ
through profit o loss LEHEE
(note 18) (M 18) 60,000 - 60,000 -
Derivative financial fTEEMIA -
instruments:
~ Conversion option - ERERAE
embedded in LB
convertible loan (note 18) ~ (Hifz£18) 5,159 - - 5,159

Fair value at Fair value measurements as at
31 December 31 December 2016 categorised into
2016 RIZ—"ET-A=T-BM
RE-AE AFEHEAEA

+-A=1-H Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
MALE 5% B E=
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARETTE  ARETRT ARETR

Recurring fair value BEMNTEE

measurements
Assets: BE:
Available-for-sale EHESREAE
financial assets (note 18) ~ (FizE 18) 21,400 - 21,400 -
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e)

Fair value (Continued)

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December
2016 and 2017, there were no
transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The
Group’s policy is to recognise transfers
between levels of fair value hierarchy
as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

Valuation techniques and inputs used
in Level 2 fair value measurements

The fair value of wealth management
products in Level 2 is the estimated
amount that the Group would receive
at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the current
creditworthiness of the wealth
management products counterparties.

Information about Level 3 fair value

measurements

Valuation
techniques

f B 5

Conversion option Binomial lattice

embedded in model
convertible loan ZIa= Bhfe

AERERANE B
Lk

26 SHEMEERAFE®

(e)

Significant
unobservable
inputs
BEERT
BxEn 2B

Expected volatility
TRERIE

NREE)

(i)

BRATVEFENEHE
EE)
RNFEER(E)

HE_Z—XRFk=-F
—tF+ZA=+—8H1
FE E-REE_HK2
B S EMER - RS
AKBEBHE=F - XEE
BEERELEEBRER
B o

FE_RRFEAERAZ
B E M M A BIR

F_BMRNEMERZRF
BEAAEBRBREBSHR
WH z fhat 2% - EPa
REMERR ST ZE R
B

Weighted

average

MEFI9E

25.15-51.53% 37.51%

(2016: nil) (2016: nil)

(Z2—RF (Z2—RF

) )
ZE—tFEFR FERMERLF
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26 TRIEAREERAFEG®

AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)
(e) Fair value (Continued) (e)

DR E@E)

(i)

Financial assets measured at
fair value (Continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value
measurements (Continued)

The fair value of conversion option
embedded in convertible notes
is determined using binomial
lattice model and the significant
unobservable input used in the fair
value measurement is expected
volatility. The fair value measurement
is positively correlated to the expected
volatility. As at 31 December 2017, it is
estimated that with all other variables
held constant, an increase/decrease
in the expected volatility by 5% would
have decreased/increased the Group’s
profit by RMB313,000 (2016: Nil).

The movements during the period in
the balance of these Level 3 fair value
measurements are as follows:

(i)

BAVEFENEHE
E(E)
BRAE=RNFEFEZ
BF ()

AR EBEANS Sk
ZAFEDRBZENR
BERAEET mAFE
HEMAZEETAER
WABEABHREE - A
FEGEEEREEBEZIE
HEEER R —tF
+=—A=+—H8 " #FE
TERRR IR EF TN P& 5%

FrEHEMmESRFTTE
REB 25 F#5R L, 18
I# AR ¥ 313,000 (=
T—RNEF:E)o

2017
—E—tF ZE—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARET T
Conversion option ATEBE RN
embedded in L EHRE
convertible loan:
On issue day RE1TH 2,835 =
Changes in fair value HIR A 1B TR
recognised in 2 NTEEE)
profit or loss
during the period 2,324 -
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 5,159 -
Total gains or losses LIRS ERTIFEE
for the period included FFABEZHA
in profit or loss for assets W aSsk BB 1A%
held at the end of
the reporting period 2,324 =

Cabbeen Fashion Limited
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26 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
AND FAIR VALUES (Continued)

(e)

Fair value (Continued)

(ii)

Fair value of financial assets
and liabilities carried at other
than fair value

The carrying amounts of the Group’s
financial instruments carried at cost
or amortised cost were not materially
different from their fair values as at 31
December 2016 and 2017.

27 COMMITMENTS

(a)

(b)

Capital commitments

Capital commitments outstanding at
31 December 2017 not provided for in the
financial statements were as follows:

26 SHEMEERAFE®

() 2A¥E@E
(i) WFRDAFEIRZE
MEEREENAVE

RZE—RERZFT—+t
F+-A=+—8"'&&
B8] 1% K AN ok 8 SR A AN 51 BR
ZemTAMEREDEREE
AFETESEAER -

27 KiE

(@) EAREE
R=F—tF+=A=+—A
R RRTIRB BN R EIT
AAEEI -

2017 2016

—E2—+tF TE—RF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETIT

Contracted for = EI%@ o 19,248 11,750
Authorised but not EREMERRTLY

contracted for 26,683 17,484

45,931 29,234

Operating leases commitments

At 31 December 2017, the total future
minimum lease payments under non-
cancellable operating leases are payable as

(b) RKEHEAE
RZTE—tF+=A=+—H"
BRETHHECERERGTHR
REERENKRENT -

follows:

2017 2016
—E—+F —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AR®ET T
Within 1 year —FA 9,991 27,554

After 1 year but within —FBAFN
5 years 7,106 57,225
After 5 years T’ - 14,052
17,097 98,831

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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27 COMMITMENTS

(b)

Operating leases commitments
(Continued)

The Group leases a number of properties
under operating leases. The leases typically
run for an initial period for one to six years,
at the end of which period all terms are
renegotiated.

28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the related party information disclosed
elsewhere in the financial statements, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions.

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Operating lease with related
parties

The operating lease charges in respect of
properties paid and payable to Shishi City
Junyuan Development Co., Ltd. (“Junyuan
Development”) (BAfimBIRERBR A
&]) amounted to RMB2,907,000 (2016:
RMB2,819,000) for the year ended 31
December 2017, in which RMB2,907,000
(2016: RMB2,819,000) constitute continuing
connected transactions as defined in
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. Junyuan
Development is 100% indirectly owned by Mr.
Ziming Yang, the controlling shareholder. The
disclosures required by Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules are provided in section headed
“Continuing connected transactions” of the
Reports of the Directors.

Annual Report 2017
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AEBRELEHOEEZIEY
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28 ERBEHIERS

BETSER E A5 R BT AR
oh - AEEIT U TEAMB RS -

(a) HBEBLIHNEEHEE

HE-_ZT—+tF+=-_A=+—H
IHFE - EBNREMER
mERERBR A A(]BEIRE
RNDHEEHEERAARK
2,907,000 L(ZZFE—7R"F : AR
#2,819,0007L ) HAF AR
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28 MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Operating lease with related
parties (Continued)

The total future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases that
are payable to Junyuan Development as
follows:

Within 1 year —FR

28 BERBEHLERZ @)

(a) HEREBMATHELHEE @)

AR S HETR T ERARIR
FERMNARSEHENFKEELN
T

2016
TN
RMB’000
ARETTT

2017
—E—tF

RMB’000
ARBT T

1,182 1,252

Key management personnel
compensation

Remuneration for key management personnel
of the Group, including amounts paid to the
Company’s directors as disclosed in note 6
and certain of the highest paid employees as
disclosed in note 7, is as follows:

(b) EEEEASHM

AEBETEERAEME (B
SN FHEEENARRRE
ERMETARENE TS
BE®FIB) T

2017 2016
—E—+tF —E—RF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARET T
Short-term employee % R B fa A
benefits 7,297 14,274
Contributions to retirement RVRABHIFHEI
benefit scheme 373 387
Discretionary bonus FIBIEAL 1,583 1,390
Equity settled share-based #EmAs & ARN &
payment expenses EMON A 360 341
9,613 16,392

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs”
(note 4(p)).

FiNemEEN [BIRA] (M
4(0)) °

—E-tFER FERMGERR A
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29

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

F UAEEST)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated
and are based on experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting
application of those policies and the sensitivity
of reported results to changes in condition and
assumptions are factors to be considered when
reviewing the financial statements. The principal
accounting policies are set forth in note 1. The
Group believes the following critical accounting
policies involve the most significant judgements and
estimates used in the preparation of the financial
statements.

(@) Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business less estimated costs
of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale. These estimates
are based on the current market conditions
and the historical experience of selling
products with similar nature. Any change in
the assumptions would increase or decrease
the amount of inventories write-down or
the related reversals of write-down made in
prior years and affect the Group’s net assets
value. The Group reassesses these estimates
annually.

Annual Report 2017
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29 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade and other
receivables

The Group estimates the impairment
allowances for trade and other receivables by
assessing the recoverability based on credit
history and prevailing market conditions. This
requires the use of estimates and judgements.
Allowances are applied to trade and other
receivables where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances
may not be collectible. Where the expectation
is different from the original estimate, such
difference will affect the carrying amounts
of trade and other receivables and thus the
impairment loss in the period in which such
estimate is changed. The Group reassesses
the impairment allowances annually.

Depreciation and amortisation

Property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis over
the estimated useful lives, after taking
into account the estimated residual value.
Intangible assets except for those with an
indefinite live are amortised on a straight-
line basis over the estimated useful lives.
The Group reviews the estimated useful lives
of the assets regularly in order to determine
the amount of depreciation and amortisation
expenses to be recorded during any reporting
period. The useful lives are based on the
Group’s experience with similar assets and
taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation and amortisation
expenses for future periods are adjusted
prospectively if there are significant changes
from previous estimates.

20 EAREFHEFRHE @)

(b)

(c)
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29 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
(Continued)

(d) Bank acceptance bills

As set out in note 26(a)(i), the Group
considers that the credit risk associated with
bank acceptance bills issued by major banks
in the PRC to be insignificant. The Group
monitors the credit risk of issuing banks. The
judgement to derecognise bank acceptance
bills upon discounting or endorsement is
reviewed when the credit risk of issuing
banks deteriorates significantly.

30 COMPANY-LEVEL STATEMENT OF
FINANCIAL POSITION

20 B AREFHEFRHE @)

(d) SRITERE

W FE26()() BTt © AEER A
B ERITEITHIRITEARE
BN EERBRIETERK o K
SEEREITRITVEERR -
ERITRTNEERRBERL
B - BRIR s SRR FERIRTT
AR A H BT S N AR RS -

30 DEEBEMRRE

2017 2016
—E—tF —ERF
No\t\e RMB’000 RMB’000
LbE=s AR®F AREFIT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries KB ARINIRE 6,038 5,678
Current assets REEE
Other receivables H Ath W R IE 65,501 85,859
Cash and cash equivalents HekIREFEY 2,028 4,367
S R 67,529 | 90,226
Current liabilities REBEE
Other payables and accruals H At A 5RIE &

EEtEH 15,646 17,387
R R 15646 | 17,387
Net current assets REBEEFE 51,883 72,839
NET ASSETS BEEFE 57,921 78,517

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BXK#EE 25(a)

Capitals VN 5,203 5,583
Reserves (i 52,718 72,934
NET ASSETS EEFRE 57,921 78,517

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of
directors on 9 February 2018.

Mr. Siu Keung Ng
RDBRE
Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director

TTEAE R NTTEE
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Mr. Qiang Wei
BERrE

Executive Director
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ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTIES 31 BR&ERA
A

As at 31 December 2017, the directors consider the RNZFE—tF+HA=+—H EFR
ultimate controlling party of the Company to be Mr. RAR RN RRIER T BGERALE -
Ziming Yang.

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF 32 BE-ZE—tH+=A
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS =t+—HLEFECEME
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED e REMMVIERT ~ FETERIR
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE RENTRETE

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, HEAMBHRERTZELE  BEgHE
the IASB has issued a number of amendments, AlZB g MMmEIRBE] - Ml EAIR
new standards and interpretations which are not 2B ZEBII R EAREE=T
yet effective for the year ended 31 December 2017 —t+tF+ A=+ —HLEFEHRAE
and which have not been adopted in these financial M BRAMERRIAKERA - A TR
statements. These include the following which may AR RS EAB R B AR -

be relevant to the Group.

Effective for
accounting periods

beginning on or after

RT3 B z2&
BBRNETHBEN
IFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018
BIPR A S EERIFE 9% - £FH LA —E-N\F—H—H
IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with customers 1 January 2018
BRI S EERIFE 155 - KEEFL SNz —E-N\F—H—H
Amendments to IFRS 2, Share-based payment: 1 January 2018
Classification and measurement of —ET-N\&F—H—H

share-based payment transactions

PR B A S RIS 2 SR AR
KRG BERITH - KRG BER
AR Z.2 PR E

IFRIC 22, Foreign currency transactions and advance consideration 1 January 2018
BRI mE2RBEEGRBE 225 - JNES G RETHE —F-\%$—A—H
IFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019
BIFR 5 EERIE 165% - HE —E-NF—H—H
IFRIC 23, Uncertainty over income tax treatments 1 January 2019
BRI B mE2REE SR EE 280  FEHEES T Tt —E-NF—H—H

2 tEEE | FREHERLT 195
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32

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of what the impact of these
amendments, new standards and interpretations
is expected to be in the period of initial application.
So far the Group has identified some aspects of the
new standards which may have a significant impact
on the consolidated financial statements. Further
details of the expected impacts are discussed
below. As the assessment completed to date is
based on the information currently available to the
Group, the actual impacts upon the initial adoption
of the standards may differ, and further impacts
may be identified before the standards are initially
applied in the Group’s interim financial report the six
months ended 30 June 2018. The Group may also
change its accounting policy elections, including
the transition options, until the standards are initially
applied in the financial report.

IFRS 9, Financial instruments

IFRS 9 will replace the current standard on
accounting for financial instruments, IAS
39, Financial instruments: Recognition and
measurement. IFRS 9 introduces new requirements
for classification and measurement of financial
assets, including the measurement of impairment
for financial assets and hedge accounting. On the
other hand, IFRS 9 incorporates without substantive
changes the requirements of IAS 39 for recognition
and derecognition of financial instruments and the
classification of financial liabilities. IFRS 9 is effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2018 on a retrospective basis. The Group plans
to use the exemption from restating comparative
information and will recognise any transition
adjustments against the opening balance of equity
at 1 January 2018. Expected impacts of the new
requirements on the Group’s financial statements
are as follows:

Annual Report 2017
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Classification and measurement

IFRS 9 contains three principal classification
categories for financial assets: measured at (1)
amortised cost, (2) fair value through profit or
loss (FVTPL) and (3) fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVTOCI):

The classification for debt instruments
is determined based on the entity’s
business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual
cash flow characteristics of the asset.
If a debt instrument is classified
as FVTOCI then interest revenue,
impairment and gains/losses on
disposal will be recognised in profit or
loss.

For equity securities, the classification
is FVTPL regardless of the entity’s
business model. The only exception
is if the equity security is not held for
trading and the entity irrevocably elects
to designate that security as FVTOCI.
If an equity security is designated as
FVTOCI then only dividend income on
that security will be recognised in profit
or loss. Gains, losses and impairments
on that security will be recognised in
other comprehensive income without
recycling.

32
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=t+—HILEEECEME
i RERBIEET - FETERI R
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Classification and measurement
(Continued)

The Group has assessed that its financial
assets currently measured at amortised cost
and FVTPL will continue with their respective
classification and measurements upon the
adoption of IFRS 9.

With respect to the Group’s financial assets
currently classified as “available-for-sale”,
these are investments in principal-guaranteed
wealth management products issued by
banks in PRC. Determined based on the
business model and the contractual cash flow
characteristics of each wealth management
product, there is possibility that the Group
will need to classified them as FVTPL or
amortised cost on transition to IFRS 9.

The classification and measurement
requirements for financial liabilities under
IFRS 9 are largely unchanged from IAS 39,
except that IFRS 9 requires the fair value
change of a financial liability designated at
FVTPL that is attributable to changes of that
financial liability’s credit risk to be recognised
in other comprehensive income (without
reclassification to profit or loss). The Group
currently does not have any financial liabilities
designated at FVTPL and therefore this new
requirement may not have any impact on the
Group on adoption of IFRS 9.
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF

AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

IFRS 9, Financial instruments (Continued)

(b) Impairment

The new impairment model in IFRS 9 replaces
the “incurred loss” model in IAS 39 with an
“expected credit loss” model. Under the
expected credit loss model, it will no longer
be necessary for a loss event to occur before
an impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an
entity is required to recognise and measure
either a 12-month expected credit losses or
lifetime expected credit loss, depending on
the asset and the facts and circumstances.
The Group expects that the application of the
expected credit loss model will result in earlier
recognition of credit losses.

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

IFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers.
IFRS 15 will replace the existing revenue standards,
IAS 18, Revenue, which covers revenue arising
from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
IAS 11, Construction contracts, which specifies the
accounting for revenue from construction contracts.
The Group is currently assessing the impacts of
adopting IFRS 15 on its financial statements. Based
on the assessment completed to date, the Group
has identified the following areas which are likely to
be affected:
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017

(Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(a)

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

Timing of revenue recognition

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are
disclosed in note 1(u). Currently, revenue from
the sale of goods is generally recognised
when the risks and rewards of ownership
have passed to the customers.

Under IFRS 15, revenue is recognised when
the customer obtains control of the promised
good or service in the contract. IFRS 15
identifies 3 situations in which control of the
promised good or service is regarded as
being transferred over time:

()

(i)

When the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits
provided by the entity’s performance,
as the entity performs;

When the entity’s performance creates
or enhances an asset (for example
work in progress) that the customer
controls as the asset is created or
enhanced;

When the entity’s performance does
not create an asset with an alternative
use to the entity and the entity has
an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(@) Timing of revenue recognition (Continued)
If the contract terms and the entity’s activities
do not fall into any of these 3 situations, then
under IFRS 15 the entity recognises revenue
for the sale of that good or service at a single
point in time, being when control has passed.
Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership
is only one of the indicators that will be
considered in determining when the transfer
of control occurs.

As a result of this change from the risk-and-
reward approach to the contract-by-contract
transfer-of-control approach, it is possible
that once the Group adopts IFRS 15 some
of the Group’s contracts the point in time
when revenue is recognised may be earlier
or later than under the current accounting
policy. However, further analysis is required to
determine whether this change in accounting
policy may have a material impact on the
amounts reported in any given financial
reporting period.

(b) Significant financing component
IFRS 15 requires an entity to adjust the
transaction price for the time value of money
when a contract contains a significant
financing component, regardless of whether
the payments from customers are received
significantly in advance or in arrears.
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(b) Significant financing component
(Continued)
Currently, the Group would only apply such
a policy when payments are significantly
deferred, which is currently not common in
the Group’s arrangements with its customers.
Currently, the Group does not apply such
a policy when payments are received in
advance.

Advance payments are not common in the
Group arrangements with its customers, and
the length of time between the payment date
and the completion date of legal assignment
(i.e. the date when the customers obtain
control of the goods) is usually a few months.

The Group has assessed that this component

in the Group’s advance payment schemes is
not likely to be significant to the contract.
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32 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

IFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers (Continued)

(c) Sales with a right of return
Currently when the customers are allowed
to return the Group’s products, the Group
estimates the level of expected returns and
makes an adjustment against revenue and
cost of sales.

The Group has assessed that the adoption
of IFRS 15 will not materially affect how the
Group recognises revenue and cost of sales
when the customers have a right of return.
However, the new requirement to recognise
separately a return asset for the products
expected to be returned will impact the
presentation in the consolidated statement
of financial position as the Group currently
adjusts the carrying amounts of inventory for
the expected returns, instead of recognising
a separate asset.

The Group plans to elect to use the
cumulative effect transition method for the
adoption of IFRS 15 and will recognise the
cumulative effect of initial application as
an adjustment to the opening balance of
equity at 1 January 2018. As allowed by
IFRS 15, the Group plans to apply the new
requirements only to contracts that are not
completed before 1 January 2018. Since
the number of “open” contracts for sales of
goods at 31 December 2017 is limited, the
Group expects that the transition adjustment
to be made upon the initial adoption of IFRS
15 will not be material.
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32

Cabbeen Fashion Limited

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases

As disclosed in note 1(k), currently the Group
classifies leases into operating leases, and accounts
for the lease arrangements according to the nature
of the lease. The Group enters into leases as the
lessee.

IFRS 16 is not expected to impact significantly on
the way that lessors account for their rights and
obligations under a lease. However, once IFRS 16 is
adopted, lessees will no longer distinguish between
finance leases and operating leases. Instead,
subject to practical expedients, lessees will account
for all leases in a similar way to current finance lease
accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure a lease
liability at the present value of the minimum future
lease payments and will recognise a corresponding
“right-of-use” asset. After initial recognition of this
asset and liability, the lessee will recognise interest
expense accrued on the outstanding balance of the
lease liability, and the depreciation of the right-of-use
asset, instead of the current policy of recognising
rental expenses incurred under operating leases
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As a
practical expedient, the lessee can elect not to
apply this accounting model to short-term leases (i.e.
where the lease term is 12 months or less) and to
leases of low-value assets, in which case the rental
expenses would continue to be recognised on a
systematic basis over the lease term.

Annual Report 2017

22 —+H+=H
=t+—BHIEFECHEME

i R AEMBERT ~ FETER R
RENIRERE 4

BT EREERE1655% - HE
FNAART EE 1 () FT I EE - AN EIR A
E0HERRERE  UREBEHENEE
HHELPHETTIIER - NEEESAM
ARTIZLTEAD

EHERGEREENEI6HRETS
AiEFE LA ARBRLOBEE-EFN R
EBARNAR - AW —BRAEER
B RELBE 165 AMABTER
IRMEMERCERE - AR - AT
BEETENRE - ABAABIRERER
BEMESTEEAZEUNFNEME
O - IRANRGBEE - &FHA
i B SEAENRABERR LT
ERSEE - REERAERD [EH%E]
BE - NP HERZEERAE®R - &
AABERTERBESTELENTIE
A RERELEERE - MIERERE
BRI R G EERRBRIRLE
HHOFMEAMNAERY - (EA—BA{T
EERZE  ARARETS ISR
NEAREHRAEE (RS A12@AK
LT REEBEEENHE RZERE
T SR B EENEENIZRES
EERER o



32

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 will primarily affect the Group’s accounting
as a lessee of leases for properties, plant and
equipment which are currently classified as
operating leases. The application of the new
accounting model is expected to lead to an
increase in both assets and liabilities and to impact
on the timing of the expense recognition in the
statement of profit or loss over the period of the
lease. As disclosed in note 27(b), at 31 December
2017 the Group’s future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases amount
to RMB17,097,000 for properties, the majority of
which is payable either between 1 and 5 years after
the reporting date. Some of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities,
with corresponding right-of-use assets, once IFRS
16 is adopted. The Group will need to perform a
more detailed analysis to determine the amounts
of new assets and liabilities arising from operating
lease commitments on adoption of IFRS 16, after
taking into account the applicability of the practical
expedient and adjusting for any leases entered into
or terminated between now and the adoption of
IFRS 16 and the effects of discounting.
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Cabbeen Fashion Limited

POSSIBLE IMPACT OF
AMENDMENTS, NEW STANDARDS
AND INTERPRETATIONS ISSUED
BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR THE
YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2017
(Continued)

IFRS 16, Leases (Continued)

IFRS 16 is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019. The standard offers
different transition options and practical expedients,
including the practical expedient to grandfather the
previous assessment of which existing arrangements
are, or contain, leases. If this practical expedient is
chosen, the Group will apply the new definition of a
lease in IFRS 16 only to contracts that are entered
into on or after the date of initial application. If the
practical expedient is not chosen, the Group will
need to reassess all of its decisions about which
existing contracts are, or contain, leases, using the
new definition. Depending on whether the Group
elects to adopt the standard retrospectively or follow
a modified retrospective method of recognising
a cumulative-effect adjustment to the opening
balance of equity at the date of initial application, the
Group may or may not need to restate comparative
information for any changes in accounting resulting
from the reassessment. The Group has not yet
decided whether it will choose to take advantage
of this practical expedient, and which transition
approach to be taken.
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———— FIVE YEARS SUMMARY

DFite

2017 2016 2015 2014
“E-tE ZERF “Z-1F it
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AR®TR  ARETR ARETT  ARBTT  ARETR
Revenue e 1,089,106 1,160,799 1,356,486 1,098,188 943,492
Cost of sales HERA (551,493) (604,829) (730,032) (636,185) (553,757)
Gross profit 7 537,613 555,970 626,454 462,003 389,735
Other income Bl A 42,786 51,709 56,805 60,115 44171
Seling and distrioution HERDHAR
EXpenses (153,392) (160,425) (121,607) (78,641) (45,143)
Administrative and other ~ {TRUREMEERT
operating expenses (125,671) (194,198) (166,811) (121,264) (107,324)
Profit from operations GEREN 301,336 253,056 394,841 322,213 281,439
Finance cost RERAR (16,555) (5,848) (3,137) (1,538) (7,045)
Profit before taxation AR A 284,781 247208 391,704 320,675 274,394
Income tax FriaHt (81,568) (65,519) (104,146) (85,173) (79,039)
Profit for the year ER A 203,213 181,689 287,558 235,502 195,355
Farnings per share SREHN
Basic (RMB) EX(ARE) 0.29 0.26 0.404 0.35 0.25
Diluted (RMB) BE(ARE) 0.29 0.25 0.402 0.35 0.25
—E—LEFHR | FERGERLT
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——— FIVE YEARS SUMMARY (CONTINUED)

RFIRe (18)

2017
“E-tF

RMB'000
ARBTR

2016
“TRE
RMB'000
ARETT

2015
~“T-hE
RMB’000
ARETT

2014
—T-E
RMB000
ARETTL

2013
—-=

IV
ARBTT

Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment #1% ~ B Rkl 73,076 57,521 29,817 15,657 13,892
Interests in leasehold mEMETHERRZ
land held for own use ME TR
under operating lease 23,312 23,319 - - -
Intangible assets BYEE 40,218 34,848 35,297 22,275 24,462
Prepayments for acquisition YRRz RikfE < BRI IR
of plant and equipment 9,744 = = = =
Other loans receivables ERKER 64,118 - - - -
Deferred tax assets BRESIREE 26,158 37,786 24,368 16,661 10,897
236,626 153,474 80,482 54,503 49,251
Current assets REBEE
Inventories F& 337,052 328,813 266,765 105,024 50,367
Trade and other receivables & 5 REfMENFIE 445,829 465,086 485917 272914 162,648
Other financial assets HthemEaE 253,159 21,400 10,000 - 60,000
Deposits with banks RESRB=({EA
with original maturity TR
date over three months 452,860 275,400 288,622 365,231 165,960
Pledged bank deposits BERRTEN 105,015 239,068 428,375 307,235 199,330
Cashand cash equivalents A& RREEFEN 134,593 222,885 204,543 324,451 531,786
1,728,508 1552,652 1774,222 1,364,855 1,170,091
Current liabilities ik =4
Bank borrowings FITER 16,636 127,095 220,479 101,212 90,450
Trade and other payables ~ BHREMERNFIE 590,042 555,696 704,182 566,449 497,273
Current tax payable FERBNERR 19,929 30,041 26,758 31,799 29,031
626,607 712,832 951,419 699,460 616,754
Non-current liabilities FhBaE
Bank borrowings RITER 271,461 S S S S
Deferred tax liabilties EREHERE 11,770 11,577 15,384 2,781 -
283,231 1,577 15,384 2,781 -
Net assets BEFE 1,055,296 981,717 896,901 717,207 602,588
Capital and reserves EeRfE
Share capital B 5,203 5,583 5,580 5,578 5,578
Reserves &l 1,018,653 976,134 891,321 711,629 597,010
1,023,856 981,717 896,901 717,207 602,588
Non-controlling interests ~ FFZRExR 31,440 = = = -
Total equity BiER 1,055,296 981,771 896,901 717,207 602,588
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